
 

Overview & Scrutiny scrutiny@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Culture, Tourism & Enterprise Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 23 November 2009 

Time: 4.00pm 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillors: 
Randall (Chairman), Davis, Drake (Deputy 
Chairman), Harmer-Strange, Hawkes, Kennedy, 
C Theobald and Turton 

Contact: Julia Riches/Karen Amsden 
Scrutiny Support Officer 
 
julia.riches@brighton-
hove.gov.uk/karen.amsden@brighton-
hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

32. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 1 - 2 

 

33. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 Minutes of the meeting on 7 October 2009. 

3 - 10 

 

34. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

35. QUESTIONS AND LETTERS 

 There are none. 

 

 

36. BRIGHTON MARATHON  - VERBAL UPDATE 

 Presentation by Tim Hutchings, The Grounded Events Company. 

 

 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

37. VISITBRIGHTON CONTACT CENTRE REVIEW 

 Copy attached. 

11 - 28 

 Contact Officer: Suzanne Mantell Tel: 29 - 2613  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

38. UK CITY OF CULTURE PROPOSAL 

 Proposal and feedback attached.  

29 - 100 

 Contact Officer: Paula Murray Tel: 29-2534  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

39. LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT 09/10 MID YEAR PROGRESS 

 Copy attached 

101 - 
146 

 Contact Officer: Lisa Shaw Tel: 291131  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

40. BUSINESS RETENTION AND INWARD INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

 Copy attached. 

147 - 
156 

 Contact Officer: Andy Glover Tel: 01273 291093  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

41. WORK PROGRAMME 

 Copy attached. 

157 - 
158 

 Contact Officer: Julia Riches Tel: 01273 29-1084  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 



CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

42. ITEMS TO REFER TO CABINET MEMBER, CABINET,  OR COUNCIL  

 

 PART TWO 

43. PART TWO MINUTES FROM 7 OCTOBER 2009 159 - 
162 

 
 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Julia Riches (email 
julia.riches@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email scrutiny@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
 
 

 
Date of Publication - Friday, 13 November 2009 

 
 

 





       Agenda Item 32  
 
 
To consider the following Procedural Business: 
 
A. Declaration of Substitutes 
 

Where a Member of the Commitee is unable to attend a meeting for 
whatever reason, a substitute Member (who is not a Cabinet Member) 
may attend and speak and vote in their place for that meeting. 
Substitutes are not allowed on Scrutiny Select Committees or Scrutiny 
Panels. 

 
 The substitute Member shall be a Member of the Council drawn from 

the same political group as the Member who is unable to attend the 
meeting, and must not already be a Member of the Committee. The 
substitute Member must declare themselves as a substitute, and be 
minuted as such, at the beginning of the meeting or as soon as they 
arrive.  

 
 
B. Declarations of Interest 
 
 (1) To seek declarations of any personal or personal & prejudicial 

interests under Part 2 of the Code of Conduct for Members in 
relation to matters on the Agenda.  Members who do declare such 
interests are required to clearly describe the nature of the interest.   

  
 (2) A Member of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission, an 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee or a Select Committee has a 
prejudicial interest in any business at a meeting of that Committee 
where –  
(a) that business relates to a decision made (whether 
implemented or not) or action taken by the Executive or another 
of the Council’s committees, sub-committees, joint committees or 
joint sub-committees; and 
(b) at the time the decision was made or action was taken the 
Member was  
 (i) a Member of the Executive or that committee, sub-committee, 
joint committee or joint sub-committee and  
 (ii) was present when the decision was made or action taken. 

 
 (3) If the interest is a prejudicial interest, the Code requires the 

Member concerned:  
(a) to leave the room or chamber where the meeting takes place 

while the item in respect of which the declaration is made is 
under consideration. [There are three exceptions to this rule 
which are set out at paragraph (4) below]. 

(b) not to exercise executive functions in relation to that business 
and  

1



(c) not to seek improperly to influence a decision about that 
business. 

 
(4) The circumstances in which a Member who has declared a 

prejudicial interest is permitted to remain while the item in respect 
of which the interest has been declared is under consideration 
are: 
(a) for the purpose of making representations, answering 

questions or giving evidence relating to the item, provided that 
the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the same 
purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise, BUT the 
Member must leave immediately after he/she has made the 
representations, answered the questions, or given the 
evidence; 

(b) if the Member has obtained a dispensation from the Standards 
Committee; or 

(c) if the Member is the Leader or a Cabinet Member and has 
been required to attend before an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee or Sub-Committee to answer questions. 

 
C. Declaration of Party Whip 
 

To seek declarations of the existence and nature of any party whip in 
relation to any matter on the Agenda as set out at paragraph 8 of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Ways of Working. 

 
D. Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

To consider whether, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted, or the nature of the proceedings, the press and public 
should be excluded from the meeting when any of the following items 
are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the 
report is confidential and therefore not available to the public. 

 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public 
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 
 

2



AGENDA ITEM 33 
 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

4.00PM 7 OCTOBER 2009 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors Randall (Chairman); Davis, Drake (Deputy Chairman), Harmer-Strange, 
Hawkes, Kennedy, Marsh and C Theobald 
 
Co-opted Members:   
 

 
 

 
PART ONE 

 
 

17. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
17a Substitutes 
 
17.1 Councillor Mo Marsh for Councillor Craig Turton. 
 
17b Declaration of Interests 
 
17.2 Councillor Randall declared a personal and prejudicial interest in Item 27 and that he 
would leave the room for that Item. Councillor Hawkes declared an interest in Item 30 as a 
member of the Board of City College Board. Councillor Harmer-Strange declared an interest in 
Item 22 as a Governor of Hillside School. 
 
17c Exclusion of press and public 
 
17.3 In accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, it was considered 
whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
any items contained in the agenda, having regard to the nature of the business to be 
transacted  and the nature of the proceedings and the likelihood as to whether, if member of 
the press and public were present, there would be disclosure to them of confidential or exempt 
information as defined in section 1001 (1) of the said Act. 
 
1.4 RESOLVED – that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the discussion of 
Items 30 and 31 under Category 3. 
 
 
18. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

3



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

7 OCTOBER 
2009 

 
18.1  RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 2 July 2009 be approved and 
signed. 
 
19. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
19.1 The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, in particular Mark Richardson, Sarah 
Watson and Matthew Hellett from Carousel.  The Chairman informed the Committee about two 
very informative Scrutiny Workshops, one on Mobile Libraries and Equal Access, and one on 
Pavilion Gardens.  He had also met with both Councillor Ted Kemble, Cabinet Member for 
Enterprise, and Simon Fanshawe of the Economic Partnership to discuss the ad-hoc panel’s 
draft report on Environmental Industries. He had also met with Roger French, Chairman of the 
LSP.  
 
20. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
20.1 There were none. 
 
21. QUESTIONS AND LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
21.1 There were none. 
 
22. PRESENTATION FROM CAROUSEL 
 
22.1 The Chairman welcomed Mark Richardson the Artistic Director of Carousel, and Sarah 
Watson and Matthew Hellett, Oska Bright Steering Committee Members, to the meeting. They 
gave a short presentation outlining the work of Carousel (for copy see minute book). Carousel 
was an arts organisation that supported people with learning disabilities to achieve their artistic 
ambitions. The four main areas of work were: Shut Up and Listen Music Programme; High Spin 
Collective; regular Arts Showcase Club nights; and Oska Bright Film Festival. 
 
22.2 The Oska Bright Film Festival started in 2004 and won the National Lottery Award for Best 
Arts Project in 2008. Oska Bright 2009 will be a three day festival on 17, 18, and 19 November 
showing 60 new short films.  In 2010 the Film Festival will be on tour across the UK and hoped 
to be touring Australia, New Zealand and Hungary. In 2012 a double-decker bus will be turned 
into a cinema to show people across the UK who can’t get out easily some Oska Bright films. 
 
22.3 The five aims of the Oska Bright Festival were to: make it possible for learning disabled 
film makers to show their films all over the world; encourage film makers to get better and 
better by offering training and networking opportunities, giving advice and feedback, awards 
and bursaries; develop new audiences, taking the festival to people who would not normally be 
able to visit cinemas; make the only library of learning disabled film; and develop access for 
learning disabled film makers and audiences to training film, television and cinema companies. 
 
22.4 A short film was then shown to the Committee before Members asked questions.  In 
answer to a question on funding, the Committee were told that they were still able to do the 
majority of their projects, despite the economic downturn.  Lottery money had decreased but 
was still available, and following a meeting with the Broadcasting Disability Team, some 
funding had recently been reinstated.  A fund raising campaign was due to start the following 
day to raise money for the mobile cinema. 

4



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

7 OCTOBER 
2009 

 
22.5 The Committee thanked Mr Richardson, Ms Watson and Mr Hellett for attending the 
meeting and for a most informative session. 
 
 
23. SPORTS DEVELOPMENT UPDATE 
 
23.1 Ian Shurrock, Head of Sports & Leisure and Jan Sutherland, Community Sports 
Development Manager, introduced the report. The aim of the Sports Development Team was 
to create new, and promote existing sports opportunities and encourage more people to be 
more active.  The key areas were participation, development of clubs and volunteers, support 
for funding for clubs and the promotion of opportunities that were available.  In response to a 
question about timescales, the Committee were told that programmes ran throughout the year 
and were regularly monitored.  
 
23.2 Following a question on funding levels, the Active for Life Programme received £365,000 
from Sport England and around £150,000 from the PCT.  Mr Shurrock offered to bring a report 
on the funding and monitoring of sports programmes to a future Committee meeting.  A request 
was made for health benefits of regular exercise to be made clear in reports on sport and 
physical activity programmes. It was noted that football teams set up by the Active for Life 
Team had helped reduce anti-social behaviour. The Heath Walks programme was also 
recognised as an excellent scheme. The Heath Walks Programme was funded jointly by the 
Council and the NHS/PCT with 50 volunteers leading them. 
 
23.3 The Chairman thanked the officers for the report and agreed to have a future report. 
 
23.4 RESOLVED – that a report on the funding and monitoring of sports programmes was 
brought to a future Committee meeting. 
 
24. MOBILE LIBRARIES AND EAS - VERBAL UPDATE 
 
24.1 Sally McMahon, Head of Libraries and Information Services, provided the Committee with 
a verbal update following the Scrutiny Workshop on 9 September 2009.  In Bevendean, there 
had been several attempts to have a mobile library stop with the last one closed in 2005.  
Wendy Barratt, the Community Libraries Manager, had been in discussions with the Head 
Teacher in Bevendean School and they were going to trial a stop outside the school from 
January 2010. 
 
24.2 In Windlesham Close in Portslade, Ms Barratt had identified groups of flats and supported 
housing who may benefit from the service. They were still considering the options, including a 
static collection. 
 
24.3 Statistically, around 22,5000 to 23,5000 people use each service which is under 2% of the 
total use of libraries across the city.  This is, however, an important service as it reaches 
people who can not access library services any other way. 
 
24.4 The Committee thanked Ms McMahon for the update and for the work that had been 
undertaken following the Scrutiny Workshop. 
 
 

5



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

7 OCTOBER 
2009 

25. LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - 08/09 
 
25.1 Paula Murray, Head of Culture and the Economy introduced the report. The covering 
report took the economic development indicators and provided context and comparative 
information. There was a time delay in the system so some of the information was dated.  Ms 
Murray suggested that the Committee may wish to receive more up to date information at its 
November meeting. The comments of the Committee could be fed back into the November 
Cabinet Member Meeting.  Ms Murray asked for comments on the style of the covering report. 
 
25.2 It was remarked that the ward information and comparator information was helpful. The 
idea of addressing one section of the indicators at a time was also useful.  Following a question 
on the ‘Breakthrough Programme’, this was very successful and had been used as a case 
study during the re-launch of the City Employment and Skills Plan (CESP). A further update 
would be provided at the next meeting. 
 
25.3 A question was asked about the indicators for the libraries service and the Committee 
were informed that there had been a data collection problem, particularly on the percentage 
take-up of ITC time in the libraries.  Following a question on Continued Professional 
Development (CPD) for teachers, Ms Murray would request information on why 25 rather than 
60 teachers had attended the sessions. CPD was tailored specifically to teachers and it may be 
an issue of timing and problems backfilling teachers’ places. 
 
25.4 RESOLVED – that the Committee receive a further update at its meeting in November 
2009. 
 
26. BRIGHTON & HOVE'S PROGRAMME FOR 2012 
 
26.1 Paula Murray, Head of Culture & Economy, and Pauline Freestone, 2012 Co-ordinator 
introduced the report.  Ms Murray told the Committee that 2009 had been a “dip” year following 
all the energy around 2012 in 2008.  The Citywide Partnership had met twice and agreed a set 
of themes, namely: participation; profile and the economy; and infrastructure.  Ms Freestone 
remarked that they had been building networks across the city and were using 2012 as a ‘hook’ 
to increase the activities on offer, to repackage activities and to develop new projects. 
Accentuate, the Legacy Trust funded disability project was being launched in Brighton on 3 
December 2009 to coincide with 1000 days until the start of the Paralympic Games.  The City 
Sports and Activity Awards were due to launch the grants scheme. Last year there were 40 
applications and 23 grants were given out to 21 sports. Since free swimming had started, 
almost 10,000 under 16s and 3,000 over 60s had taken part.  Following a question on 
swimming, the Committee were told that the initiative was for 2 years and was being closely 
monitored.  
 
26.2 The next stage was to look at targeted groups (for example older people and those with 
young children) to take events to them. There was small amount of funding available for 
targeted free swimming lessons.  
 
26.3 The idea of engaging with harder to reach groups was welcomed and the Chairman 
thanked the officers for bringing the report. 
 
27. SCOPING REPORT FOR AD HOC PANEL PROPOSALS 
 

6



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

7 OCTOBER 
2009 

This Item was taken after Item 28 and before Item 23. 
 
Councillor Bill Randall left the room for this Item and Councillor Pat Drake took the Chair. 
 
27.1 Paula Murray, Head of Culture & Economy introduced the report. The report set out 
information on three proposals for future Ad Hoc Panels namely: the use of empty commercial 
premises; the future of New England House; and cultural services for children and young 
people. 
 
27.2 On the use of empty commercial premises, the report concluded that any review of this 
area would not have the impact in Brighton & Hove that it may have in other areas, because of 
the vacancy and rental rates. The Appendix to the report set out what use had been made of 
empty properties 
 
27.3 On the development of New England House, since the proposal was put forward, a group 
of officers had been mandated to develop a feasibility study and options analysis into the future 
of the building, in partnership with the University of Sussex.  Any scrutiny panel would be likely 
to duplicate this work.  Ms Murray suggested that the Committee be kept informed of the work 
of this group. 
 
27.4 On the cultural provision for children and young people in the city, Ms Murray informed the 
Committee that a Children’s Festival is due to take place in April 2010. Part of this will be a 
conference launching a national network of children’s festivals. Ms Murray suggested that it 
may be timely to look at the range and availability, strengths and any gaps in the provision of 
cultural services for children in the city.  She also suggested that the conference could be used 
to launch the recommendations of any panel. It was noted that if this inquiry was to go ahead, 
the Children and Young Peoples Overview and Scrutiny Committee (CYPOSC) should be 
informed. 
 
27.5 The Head of Scrutiny, Tom Hook, informed the Committee that there were currently 16 
scrutiny panels in progress so it would not be practical to commit to completing a panel by April 
2010.  The Children’s Festival could, however, be used as an information gathering session if 
that was helpful.  
 
27.6 It was agreed that the next subject for an ad-hoc panel would be the provision of cultural 
services for children but no timescale for completion was set. It was also agreed that the 
Committee would request that they were kept informed of the work of the officer group looking 
at New England House. 
 
 
27.7 RESOLVED – (a) that the next ad hoc panel be established to look at the provision of 
cultural services for children and young people; 
(b) that the Committee be kept informed of the work of the officer group looking at New 
England House. 
 
 
28. ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGIES - REPORT FROM THE AD-HOC PANEL 
 
This item was taken after Item 22 on the agenda. 
 

7



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

7 OCTOBER 
2009 

28.1 The Chairman introduced the report and thanked all the Officers who had been involved in 
the Inquiry.   He informed the Committee that he had met with Councillor Ted Kemble, the 
Cabinet Member for Enterprise, who was broadly supportive of the report and its 
recommendations.  Paula Murray, Head of Culture and Economy, told the Committee that at 
the Economic Partnership meeting the previous night, Councillor Kemble had introduced the 
Environmental Technologies report and it had been suggested that Councillor Randall would 
be invited to a future meeting to present the report. It was commented that it was an excellent 
report and it was hoped the recommendations were adopted. 
 
28.2 RESOLVED –  (a) to endorse the report; 
(b) that the report recommendations were referred to the council’s Executive and to the 
appropriate partner organisations; 
(c) to add the progress of the Inquiry’s recommendations to the work programme. 
 
29. WORK PROGRAMME 
 
29.1 The Chairman introduced the work programme and noted that an update on Foredown 
Tower would be added as requested, and that there was an additional item for November on 
the Visitor Information Contact Centre.  He also informed the Committee that the next meeting 
was at 4pm on 23 November and that there was an additional meeting to consider the budget 
on 14 December 2009. 
 
29.2 The item on South Downs was welcomed and it was suggested that it could cover the 
funding opportunities presented by the creation of the Park, and any plans for an interpretation 
centre. 
 
29.3 An item on the heritage of the city was suggested and it was agreed that the Brighton & 
Hove Archaeological Society could be invited to a meeting to accompany a report on artefacts 
the Council has.  
 
29.4 An update on Maderia Drive was requested but it was agreed that this was a potential 
item for the Environment and Community Safety Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
29.5 The state of music venues in the city was suggested as a future item.  It was noted that 
the Brighton Institute for Modern Music had provided an interesting report for the Arts 
Commission.  It was agreed that this item be added to the future work programme. 
 
29.6 Public Art and Planning was suggested as a future item and it was agreed this would be 
helpful. 
 
29.7 A presentation on the city’s approach to tourism was suggested as a future item. 
 
29.8 RESOLVED – that the following items were added to the future work programme: an 
update on Foredown Tower; the archaeological heritage of the city; music venues in the city; 
public art and planning; and the city’s approach to tourism. 
 
PART TWO 
 
30. MAJOR PROJECTS UPDATE 
 

8



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

7 OCTOBER 
2009 

31. MINUTES 9 SEPTEMBER - PART 2 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 6.30pm 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  
 

9



10



CULTURE, TOURISM & 
ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 37 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

  

 

Subject: VisitBrighton Contact Centre Review 

Date of Meeting: 23 November 2009 

Report of: The Director of Culture and Enterprise 

Contact Officer: Name:  Suzanne Mantell Tel: 29 - 2613 

 E-mail: Suzanne.mantell@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected:  All 

 

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE  

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

 

1.1 This report sets out the options for the future of the VisitBrighton Contact 
Centre service, as identified as a work stream in the Visitor Services 
Strategy 2006. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

2.1 That the committee:  

  

 (i) note the VisitBrighton Contact Centre Review set out in the appendix 
to this report; 

 

 (ii) note the Recommendations section following consultation with 
stakeholders; 

 

 (iii) give feedback on the report and its recommendations. 

 

3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

3.1 VisitBrighton is the city’s official tourism “arm” and is responsible for 
marketing the destination to visitors, selling the destination as a leisure, 
business and conference destination, and providing services to visitors 
once they have arrived in the city. 

11



 

3.2 The Visitor Services team within VisitBrighton provide the front line 
services at the Visitor Information Centre, and via a dedicated Contact 
Centre, where staff handle enquiries by telephone, by email and by post. 

 

4. CONSULTATION 

 

4.1 Consultation has taken place with a wide range of stakeholders, 
including VisitBrighton Partners, Tourism South East, South Downs 
National Park, and VisitBrighton staff. 

 

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 

Financial Implications: 

5.1 Option 5 in the appendix represents the best value for money.  Part of 
the business case for the ticketing system and call centre at the Royal 
Pavilion was that it could eventually be shared with Visitor Services – 
this will improve the value for money of the call centre investment. 

The small cost of losing the Premium Rate Line could be met by the 
efficiences and custom arising from the extra call handling capacities of 
a shared call centre. 

 

Finance Officer Consulted: Mr Peter Francis      29th October 2009 

 
 

Legal Implications: 

5.2.1 This report sets out a series of options, none of which have adverse 
legal or Human Rights implications. 

 

Lawyer Consulted: Bob Bruce 21st October 2009 

 

Equalities Implications: 

5.3 If the committee agrees with the recommendations set out in the report 
then the implications for all Equalities groups will be positive, as it will 
make the service more accessible to visitors, particularly those on 
lower incomes and from overseas.  For further information please refer 
to the Equalities Impact Assessment for VisitBrighton’s Visitor 
Information Service team. 

 

Sustainability Implications: 

5.4 There are no sustainability implications to consider. 

 

Crime & Disorder Implications:  

5.5 There are no crime and disorder implications consider. 

12



 

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

5.6 The statistics and costings relating to the various options are found 
within the appendix to this report. 

 

Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

5.7 There is the potential for closer partnership working with the Royal 
Pavilion team. 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 

Appendices: 

1. VisitBrighton Contact Centre Review 

 

Documents in Members’ Rooms: 

1. None 

 

Background Documents: 

1. Visitor Services Strategy 2006 

2. Visitor Services Equalities Impact Assessment 

 

13



14



  Appendix 1 

 

         
 
 
VisitBrighton  

Contact Centre Review 
November 2009  

15



  Appendix 1 

 

VisitBrighton Contact Centre Review 

 
Introduction  
 
VisitBrighton’s Visitor Services team produced a strategy document in 2006 
which looked at recommendations for the future of their service.  At that 
time there were several recommendations made, and in the last two 
years we have relocated the Visitor Information Centre (VIC) to the Royal 
Pavilion, opened an official Visitor Information Point at Brighton Toy & 
Model Museum, and worked with colleagues in the Sustainable Transport 
team to introduce the new pedestrian wayfinding scheme in the city 
centre.  It is now timely that we look at the options for the service’s 
Contact Centre. 
 

Background 

 
The VisitBrighton contact centre service has been operating via a 
premium rate telephone number since 2000.  The Premium Rate Line (PRL) 
was introduced following an audit of telephone answer times throughout 
the council; at that time the service was receiving around 500,000 calls 
per year, but the staff were only able to answer around 51,000 calls, ie just 
over 10% - all other callers received the busy tone, which sent a negative 
message to both visitors and stakeholders. 
 
In order to answer more calls, a contact centre operation was set up 
using an “Interactive Voice Response” (IVR) platform which gives callers 
options to hear some recorded information, as well as the facility to speak 
to an assistant.  A PRL was chosen to offset the costs of the new system 
and the extra staffing required to ensure the service was a success.  The 
system currently in place ensures that 100% of calls are answered. 
 
All calls to the PRL are charged at 50p per minute.  VisitBrighton earns an 
“out payment” of 33p in each 50p, ie 66%.  The remainder is paid to the 
line provider, Opal Telecom.  VisitBrighton holds a current licence from 
PhonePayPlus to operate a live premium rate service. 
 
When the service launched in 2000 there were nearly 75,000 calls to the 
system, and we earned £40,000.   However, the number of calls, and 
therefore the income, has dropped by up to one third year on year.  It is 
difficult to say whether this is because it is a PRL, or because it coincided 
with the huge growth in use of the internet and email as a source of 
information – certainly the number of email enquiries received by the 

16



  Appendix 1 

 

VisitBrighton team rose rapidly for the first few years; the drop in telephone 
enquiries also followed a national trend within other Tourist Information 
Centres around the country.  By 08/09, the number of calls had dropped 
to 12,707, and the income earned was just £9,475.  The current income 
target in this financial year is £16.970.  Trends so far this year show that 
income will drop again, and we are forecasting less than £8,000 in income 
in 09/10.  VisitBrighton will need to absorb this under-achievement through 
other income generation or by cutting expenditure.  
 
The following table shows the number of calls and revenue from 2000 to 
20009. 
 

Year No of calls £s revenue 

00/01 (partial year) 74,359 39,934 

01/02 94,838 49,900 

02/03 65,427 34,564 

03/04 46,724 30,115 

04/05 36,577 20,103 

05/06 33,185 17,726 

06/07 23,422 13,684 

07/08 17,282 11,805 

08/09 12,707 9,475 

 

Telephone calls represent only a percentage of the total enquiries we 
receive to our service.  In total, the Visitor Services team welcome nearly 
300,000 visitors to the Vistor Information Centre, and respond to more than 
55,000 personal enquiries, 10,500 emails and 1,200 postal enquiries each 
year.  In additon, the service also receives around one million unique 
visitors to the website each year. 
 
One of the drawbacks of operating a premium rate line is that queuing is 
not allowed on live premium rate services – if all the operators are busy, 
the caller can listen to the options again, or pre-recorded information, but 
if they don’t choose one of these options, then they are invited to try 
again later, and the call has to be terminated.  
 

Advantages and Disadvantages of a PRL service 

 

Advantages Disadvantages 

100% of calls to the service are now 
answered. 

A PRL can put off some callers, 
particularly older people. 

The service now only receives 
genuine Visitor Information enquiries 

We are unable to use the PRL 
number on any overseas 

17



  Appendix 1 

 

– previously many of the calls were 
from customers using the service as 
a cheaper option than Directory 
Enquiries, which was already 
charging for its calls, or eg calls 
about train times outside our area, 
because the National Rail line was 
often engaged. 

campaigns or promotions as it is not 
accessible to callers outside the UK. 

When the service was launched it 
had the backing of the Brighton & 
Hove Hotels Association who were 
pleased that they were no longer 
losing possible recommendations, 
referrals and bookings due to 
missed calls. 

Staff find it challenging to keep 
customers on the line long enough 
to take their details, so are less able 
to convert enquiries into bookings or 
ticket sales, or to capture consumer 
data for marketing purposes. 

18



  Appendix 1 

 

Options 

 
There are a number of options available, which are identified as follows: 
 

Option 1: Keep Premium Rate Line @ 50p per minute: 

 
We could continue operating the PRL as at present.  However, with the 
volume of calls dropping year on year, it would become unsustainable 
within a few more years, as can be seen from the following table: 
 

Year No of calls £s revenue 

00/01 (partial year) 74,359 39,934 

01/02 94,838 49,900 

02/03 65,427 34,564 

03/04 46,724 30,115 

04/05 36,577 20,103 

05/06 33,185 17,726 

06/07 23,422 13,684 

07/08 17,282 11,805 

08/09 12,707 9,475 

Forecast for future years 

09/10 10,165 7,580 

10/11 8,132 6,064 

11/12 6,505 4,851 

12/13 5,204 3,880 

13/14 4,163 3,104 

 

 
Option 2: Keep Premium Rate Line but change to 50p whole call costs 

 
“Drop charge” tariffs may increase the length of the call, but 
VisitBrighton’s revenue would decrease dramatically.  Although the cost 
of the whole call would only ever be 50p to the customer, we  would only 
receive the current out payment from the first minute of the call.  For 
every minute thereafter we would be charged 0.02p per minute which 
would be deducted from our monthly outpayment.  Based on the 12,707 

calls received in 2008/09, and an estimate provided by Opal Telecom, this 
would mean revenues of only £2,951, rather than the £9,475 achieved.  

Changing to 50p whole call would be unlikely to halt the decline in the 
number of calls, as it would still be giving a negative message to visitors, 
and so the downward projection would be similar to that of 50p per 
minute, and the resulting income would be much lower than at present. 
 

19



  Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 

 

Option 3: Keep Premium Rate Line but increase cost of call to 75p or £1 

per minute: 
 
Based on 2008/09’s call volumes, revenue could increase to £14,212 (@ 
75p per minute) or £18,500 (@ £1.00 per minute).  However these figures 
should be treated with caution – the number of calls would be likely to 
decrease at a much faster rate if the cost increases, especially as email is 
now so accessible as a medium, and we would risk losing the good will of 
both visitors and local stakeholders. 
 
 

Option 4: Change to National Rate Number (0871) 

 
National rate numbers are not viewed with as much suspicion by visitors, 
and so it would be likely to at least halt the decline in the number of calls, 
if not actually increase them.  However, based on the 12,707 calls in 
08/09, we would be likely to earn only £947.50 – which, though a 
substantial drop from the revenue based on 50p per minute calls could 
encourage and enable the staff to convert more enquiries into 
bookings/sales, thereby earning revenue for our service, and increasing 
business for the city’s accommodation providers, attractions and venues. 
If we changed to a National Rate number we could retain the existing IVR 
platform, telephony equipment and office space, and it would be a 
positive message to both our visitors and our stakeholders. 
 
The following table compares the projected revenue from a national rate 
number and the revenue received in 2008/09, based on the 12,707 calls 
received. 
 

No of calls £s @ 50p per 

min 

£s @ national 

rate 

Gap Number of 

bookings 

needed to 

plug gap * 

12,707 £9,475 £947.50 £8,527.50 570  

 
* based on an average booking value of £150.00.  This is the number of 
extra bookings that the staff would need to make each year just to fund 
the gap in the current income received, not allowing for further decline in 
the number of calls, and not allowing for the  shortfall against the current 

20



  Appendix 1 

 

income target.  It has to be recognised that converting this number of 
bookings is not necessarily achievable – many of our enquiries are for one 
night stays at the weekend, which the staff are not able to book, due to 
the industry’s requirement of a minimum two night stay at weekends 
throughout most of the year. 
 
 
Option 5: Relocate VisitBrighton’s Contact Centre to the Royal Pavilion and 

work together with the new Royal Pavilion Contact Centre team  

 
The Royal Pavilion launched their new contact centre operation in July 
2009.  It is designed to maximise revenue through increased sales of 
admission tickets, educational tours etc.  The Pavilion have invested in 
new ticketing software and telephony equipment and their staff have 
been trained to understand the full breadth of the Royal Pavilion & 
Museum’s offer.  They are able to handle all calls to their service, with 
“champions” in each area of activity. 
 
The Pavilion use a range of local rate lines, with different numbers for each 
of their services.  If VisitBrighton opted for a local rate line, there would be 
no income due to us (but as shown above, the income from a national 
rate number would be considerably less than at 50p per minute anyway).  
By working in partnership with the Royal Pavilion team, it could offer the 
possibility of sharing accommodation, and the opportunity to cross train 
each team in handling simple enquiries, which would benefit both teams.  
The Visitor Information staff would remain as “champions” of their own 
visitor enquiries, and would be responsible for fulfilling all transactional 
sales (eg accommodation bookings, non-Pavilion ticket sales etc), but 
could, for example, quite easily sell admission tickets to the Royal Pavilion 
alongside, with the revenue going to the Pavilion team. Likewise the 
Pavilion team could be trained how to use VisitBrighton’s database  
to enable them to answer simple enquiries about attractions and events in 
the city.   
 
There would be benefits to both teams, who would also be able to cover 
for each other during lunch breaks, sickness, or annual leave, thereby 
ensuring a quality service to all customers.  It would be beneficial to have 
two separate lines, one for the more complex accommodation enquiries, 
and one for non accommodation – each line could have a different 
system of handling overflow calls, ie the more general, non 
accommodation enquiries could be passed to the Royal Pavilion team if 
necessary, while the accommodation calls stayed with the VIC team, 
who have the product knowledge required to advise visitors on where to 
stay, and the software to capture customer data and make bookings. 

21



  Appendix 1 

 

 
This option would have the greatest potential to grow the number of 
accommodation bookings made by the contact centre staff, as it would 
be very easy for the team to keep the customer on the phone long 
enough to take their details, and even to make the booking for them 
while they are still on the line.  
 
Another major benefit would be that local rate numbers are accessible to 
overseas callers, who cannot contact us via the premium rate service as 
0906 numbers are not accessible outside the UK.  In addition the Pavilion’s 
system allows calls to queue and a reporting module shows staff how 
many calls are waiting.  Overflow calls could still be routed to back-up 
staff in Brighton Town Hall where the rest of the VisitBrighton team are 
based.   
 
There is a slight danger that the number of calls might actually grow and 
the number of VIC staff would not be adequate to support the level of 
enquiries. 
 
With this option there are some start-up costs involved as we would need 
to purchase new telephone handsets and licences to link in to the 
Pavilion’s call handling software.  An indication of these costs is given in 
the following table: 
 

Start up costs  Ongoing costs 

1x IP handsets @ £145 
each 

£145 Handset maintenance @ £67 
pa x 2 

£67 

1 x Supervisor CMS 
software 

£370 Maintenance @ £74 £74 

2 x Agent licence @ 
£281 each 

£562 Line rental costs per line @ £10 
per month per line 

£240 

Programme writing by 
ntl/Dimension Data  

£2,000 
(estimat
ed cost) 

  

Connection charge 
for two easily 
memorable                  
0300 numbers  

£400   

Total £3,477  £381 

 

 

 

Option 6: Cease all call handling enquiries as per VisitLondon. 

22



  Appendix 1 

 

 
This would give a very negative message to prospective visitors, who are 
still at the decision making stage of their visitor journey.  As Brighton & 
Hove no longer have an annual brochure, and not all our customers have 
access to online information, we would be unable to help anyone who 
was not able to email us their enquiry.  The negative perceptions of 
Brighton & Hove as a destination could be very harmful to the city’s 
£400m+ annual visitor spend. 
 

23



  Appendix 1 

 

 
Budget Implications 

 
The following chart shows the budget implications for each option based 
on the 09/10 budget.  The 3rd and 4th column use a traffic light system to 
indicate the level of impact. Please also read the notes * following this 
table. 
 

Option Budget implication 

(current income target 
(£16,970), less any 
anticipated income, 
plus any start up costs). 
 

Impact on visitor 

satisfaction 

Impact on 

ability to 

support 

accommodatio

n booking 

revenue 

1 £9,390 Red Red 

2 £14,019 Red Red  

3 £2,758 (@ 75p pm) 

 

£1,530 @ £1 pm * 

Red  

 

Red 

 

Red  

 

Red 

4 £16,023 Amber Amber 

5 £20,828 ** Green Green 

6 £16,970 Red Red  

 
* but nb, as explained in this document, this is neither necessarily 
achievable nor sustainable. 
** includes annual costs of £381 in year one for software, licences etc.  
plus there would be start up costs in year 1 of approx £3,500. 
 
 

24



  Appendix 1 

 

Consultation & Feedback 

 
This document has been sent to a range of interested groups including 
local VisitBrighton Partners, and staff, in order to get feedback on the 
options given above. 
 
 
Please complete the form at the end of this document and return by 
Friday 25 September 2009 via fax, post or email to: 
Suzanne Mantell  
Visitor Services Manager 
VisitBrighton 
1st Floor 
Brighton Town Hall 
Brighton 
BN1 1JA 
Tel 01273 292613 
Fax 01273 292617 
Email suzanne.mantell@visitbrighton.com 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



  Appendix 1 

 

 
 
 

VisitBrighton  
Contact Centre Review Feedback Form 
 
There are six options given in the consultation document: 

1 Keep PRL @ 50p per minute 
2 Keep PRL but change to 50p whole call costs 
3 Keep PRL but increase cost of call to 75p or £1 
4 Change to National Rate number 
5 Change to local rate number and work with the Royal Pavilion 
6 Cease all call handling enquiries. 

 
Which of these options do you prefer and why?   
 
Please fill in the form overleaf and retun it, by Friday 25 September 2009 
via fax, post or email to Suzanne Mantell, Visitor Services Manager, 
VisitBrighton, 1st Floor, Brighton Town Hall, Brighton, BN1 1JA, Tel 01273 
292613, Fax 01273 292617,  
Email suzanne.mantell@visitbrighton.com 
 
You do not have to provide your details unless you want to – however it 
would be very useful to know which sector you belong to, so I would be 
grateful if you could indicate this in the table overleaf. 
  
Thank you for your help. 
 
 
 
Suzanne Mantell 
Visitor Services Manager 
VisitBrighton 
 
 
 
 

26



  Appendix 1 

 

 
 

 

VisitBrighton Contact Centre Review 

 

Please return this form by Friday 25 September 2009 via fax, post or email 
to Suzanne Mantell, Visitor Services Manager, VisitBrighton, 1st Floor, 
Brighton Town Hall, Brighton, BN1 1JA, Tel 01273 292613, Fax 01273 292617,  
Email suzanne.mantell@visitbrighton.com 
 
 
 

Preferred option number and comments: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sector (please indicate): 

 
Accommodation    Shop/Shopping Centre 
Attraction/Activity Provider    Event Organiser 
Restaurant/Café/Bar/Pub   Venue 
Brighton & Hove City Council team  Other (please state) 
 

Your name (optional) 

 

Your business name (optional)  

 

 
 
Thank you in advance for taking the time to participate in this review. 
 

27



  Appendix 1 

 

Recommendations 

 
The contact centre review document was sent out to both VisitBrighton 
staff, and a wide range of stakeholders, including VisitBrighton Partners, 
Tourism South East, South Downs National Park. 
 
Feedback from stakeholders was low, although evenly spread amongst 
different sectors. 
 
From responses received, stakeholders overwhelmingly chose Option 5, 
with only one stakeholder opting to close the service, and one wanting to 
look more closely at options 5 & 6 again. 
 
Staff were more divided, but still, overall, choosing Option 5, although the 
VIC team itself were more inclined towards Option 4. 
 

Option No Stakeholders 
(11) 

Staff (17) Overall (28) 

1 0% 0% 0% 

2 0% 5.88% (1) 3.57% (1) 

3 0% 0% 0% 

4 0% 29.41% (5) 17.86% (5) 

5 81.82 % (9) 58.82% (10) 67.86% (19)  

6 9.09% (1) 5.88% (1) 7.14% (2) 

No decision 9.09% (1) 0% 3.57% (1) 

 
 
The clear recommendation is to relocate the Contact Centre operation 
to the Royal Pavilion and introduce a new, local rate enquiry number.  
However, choosing Option 5 does not preclude considering Option 6 at 
some point in the future. 
 
 
 
   

28



 

 

UK City of Culture 2013 Outline Proposals – Feedback Form 

Bidding City: Brighton and Hove  

Assessors:  Stephen Nicol (0161 926 9214) and Chris Paddock (0207 608 7206) 

If you would like to discuss this feedback, please contact one of the two assessors named above directly. 

Summary Feedback 

The proposal outlines a set of activities that seeks to build upon Brighton and Hove’s well 

established strengths in the creative and cultural sector and its established infrastructure for hosting 

a broad range of activities. It is clear that Brighton and Hove is ‘ready to go’ and could be well placed 

to deliver a high quality programme for UK City of Culture. However, at present the thinking 

underpinning the bid seems to lack ambition and this would disadvantage Brighton and Hove in the 

assessment of initial bids. With this in mind there are three key points to consider in working up you 

bid: 

 

1. It is important that initial bid submissions illustrate clearly the nature of the step change that 

would occur as a result of the UK City of Culture designation  

2. We need to see more clearly the added value that UK City of Culture designation would 

bring to the area (and beyond) – and in particular what enhanced or additional activities 

and events would take place beyond the excellent baseline of activity DCMS are seeking a 

UK City of Culture that is more than just a wrap around of existing activity. 

3. You may also need to reconsider scale of funding needed to deliver a higher impact 

programme. 

 

In addition to this, the following points  / additions may be worth considering in developing the bid: 

· Demonstrate much more clearly the specific involvement of local people, particularly those in 

deprived communities and how City of Culture will make a difference 

· Consider Brighton and Hove as City of Culture in the wider context; how will the city extend its 

reach beyond London and the South East? 

 

 

Your Area and the Overall Vision 

The proposal focuses on a clearly defined area, which already has a strong brand and reputation as a 

visitor location. The vision is helpfully split into local, regional and national geographies, although 

this perhaps highlights the need to provide more detail on the ‘local’, particularly in relation to 

Brighton and Hove’s most deprived communities. 

 

29



Given Brighton and Hove’s proximity and relationship with London, it will be important to illustrate 

how the City can involve and reach out to the rest of the country. 

 

The themes outlined within the vision provide a broad basis and can clearly encompass a wide range 

of different activities as the programme evolves – at present they feel like broad concepts and will 

need more flesh on the bones. In future submissions, it would be useful if further analysis can be 

provided to show how this is different to what might be happening in Brighton and Hove anyway 

(and how 2013 will be different). 

 

Cultural and Artistic Objectives 

The approach put forward is described as “building on the existing cultural calendar”. An element of 

this is fine, but a successful UK City of Culture would need to demonstrate substantial added value 

over ad above baseline activity. Given your area’s excellent baseload activity, there is an opportunity 

to really deliver an impactful year of cultural activity. 

 

Clearly, Brighton and Hove already has the cultural and visitor infrastructure necessary to deliver a 

high quality, diverse cultural programme. An emphasis is placed on the balance between large and 

small projects, again it would be good to see evidence of how the smaller projects will reach out to 

harder to reach groups and build upon existing activities to engage people in culture. 

 

Clearly, the specific projects alluded to in relation to each theme will need to be elaborated upon in 

subsequent submissions. 

 

It is also suggested that the population of the city is a key asset. In this respect, it will be useful if you 

can demonstrate how they will be galvanised (perhaps through a volunteer programme).  

 

Social Objectives 

It is clear that there are interesting examples of engagement within the city, but at present the 

approach to engaging isolated neighbourhoods is weak (especially given that “reaching out” is a key 

part of the vision). The initial bid should build on this further, developing the ideas (such as the 

dance programme for the Tarner Neighbourhood) to show how City of Culture would impact on the 

whole population of the city. 

 

Economic Objectives 

Given Brighton and Hove’s existing success as a visitor location, we are pleased that the bar is set 

very high when it comes to seeing an increase in visitor numbers and spend. The existing strategy for 

festivals clear creates momentum to increase this. In the initial bid, it will be important to consider 

the added value that the City of Culture designation would bring to this.  

 

Likewise, Brighton and Hove is an important location for creative and cultural businesses. It is 

imperative that the bid shows how these strengths will be used to secure local, national and regional 

impact. The current description of the creative sector and what City of Culture would bring are a bit 

opaque. 

 

Organisation and Partnership 

It is clear that the partnership mechanisms are in place to deliver a high profile, high impact year of 

events and activities. We would like to understand how wider engagement in the design and 

delivery of a City of Culture programme would be ensured with grassroots groups and different parts 

of your area and its communities. 

 

Funding 

30



For a year’s worth of enhanced events and activities the budget outlined is modest – our 

understanding is that you are seeking only £1m in additional funding. Although there are obviously 

limitations on the monies available, DCMS and the Advisory Panel will want to see an indication that 

the programme of activity will deliver high impact. This may mean including a broader range of 

activities (including ‘associated projects and capital developments’) under the UKCC2013 banner.  

 

Elements of the budget (admin and marketing in particular) seem low for an event of this 

magnitude. 

 

Legacy 

The initial bid will clearly need to give more detail in the legacy. It is not clear how things will change 

from 2013 onwards as a result of City of Culture – for instance do you expect a lasting increase in 

engagement in previously un-engaged groups? Will this contribute to social inclusion amongst these 

groups? 

 

 

31



32



UK CITY OF CULTURE 2013 
OUTLINE PROPOSAL FORM 

BRIGHTON & HOVE ARTS COMMISSION 

Supported by
BBRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 

    

Agenda Item 38

1

33



Section One: Your Area and the Overall Vision: [2 pages] 

1 What is the geographical area covered by your bid and why does this area make sense as a 
UK City of Culture?  

The area covered by this bid is the city of Brighton and Hove.  Brighton and Hove has a clear identity as a 
city and serves audiences locally, in its hinterlands but also from London and Europe in particular.  There 
are clear boundaries and it is a recognised destination already which would make the city very 
marketable as a UK City of Culture. 

2 Why does your area need to see the sort of step change that could be delivered by being UK 
City of Culture? 

Brighton and Hove is a city of contrasts, on the national scale of deprivation statistics it ranks 29
th
 out of 

60 for cities nationally, out of all of the 354 local authorities in England, it figures in the lowest quartile as 
the 79

th
 most deprived (2007 figures).  Unemployment is an issue for us, in Brighton and Hove it stood at 

6.8% in 2008, equating to 9,500 people.  This compares with a South East Regional unemployment figure 
of 4.4% and a national figure of 5.7% in the same year.  In terms of employment, the city needs to create 
an additional 8,000 jobs by the year 2016 in order to meet the demand that our rise in working age 
population will create.  If the city is to meet Government targets on employment, that figure would double 
to 16,000.  Brighton and Hove relies heavily on its tourism economy which accounts currently for over 
£400m per year.  The success of our tourism offer in turn depends on the cultural offer and year round 
calendar, which needs to be refreshed and renewed.  Visitors come to Brighton and Hove for something 
different, something unique - and that something is very often the culture.  Although we have a relatively 
high level of engagement in culture in the city, there are still significant numbers of people who face 
barriers to participation.  In summary, there are many aspects of the city that need to change and 
improve and the role of culture in delivering change and improvement is something the city 
believes in and the year would galvanise. 

3 What is the overall vision you have for the nature and impact of a UK City of Culture 
programme in your area?  

The overall vision would be locally, to have an all pervasive City of Culture programme with maximum 
visibility across the city, really reaching parts of our communities that have not yet benefitted from cultural 
participation or activity.  Regionally we would increase and enhance our role as an economic and cultural 
driver for the South East, the programme having a perceivable impact on the economy.  Nationally and 
internationally we would raise and improve our cultural profile and visitor figures and impact positively on 
our ability to attract and retain business.   

The nature and impact of the programme would also be specifically to realise the enormous artistic 
potential that lies here in the city but is as yet unrealized.  We could, and would, bring together 
organisations such as Disney and Babel (digital media production company) with Blast Theory (digital arts 
organisation) with Dreamthinkspeak (site specific theatre company) for example and see what new level 
of artistic work and impact could come out of that kind of collaboration.  The incredible diversity of the 
artistic community here is a significant strength – the year would be the opportunity to unite those diverse 
strands into something new at a gear changed level of impact and reach.  

4 What are the main themes and components of your programme of activity during 2013?  

Thematically, the programme would build on the strengths and perceptions and challenges of the city and 
would be likely to include the following elements: 

Old and new: that is an extremely marketable, heritage profile alongside the ‘Supercity’ image of cutting 
edge innovation, the development of ancient crafts skills as well as those for new technologies and new 
economic models.  This theme cuts across our architecture, our aspirations to develop skills for 

2

34



employment for the future and our pride in the history of the city and the expansion of the use of our 
historic buildings.   

The Unimagined and unexpected: there will be elements in the programme that at this point in time are 
unimaginable – this is a place where invention happens, whether it be research funded programmes 
between our universities and creative industries or large scale commissions asking for the unique, events 
that couldn’t happen anywhere else.  

Ambition and aspiration: building directly on the programmes in the Cultural Olympiad that emphasise 
excellence and individual achievement, a strand of the programme that works both at the level of 
individual and citywide ambition.  For the individual, this would mean working primarily with the long term 
unemployed, to offer opportunities for personal development, for learning skills and increasing 
employability through culturally led programmes of change.  At a city level, this would translate into a new 
level of cultural ambition and achievement, connecting the city’s artistic resources to each other and 
plugging them into a network of national and international peers that will raise their game.   

Collaboration and partnership: thematically these elements will underpin the development and delivery 

of all aspects of the programme; maximising budgets and resources, building new and lasting 

professional relationships, creating more than the sum of parts.  Artistic collaboration will also be the mark 

of the programme; the chemistry of a collection of high powered artistic people creating a new type of 

programme. 

Diversity and tolerance: we are a city where the perception of most people is that we live and let live, 
this is something to be proud of and to build on with cultural programmes that address community 
cohesion globally and in a targeted way in areas where it is less successful.  The city is known for its 
outdoor events and many of these have an energetic and celebratory dynamic.  Looking towards 2012, 
the city is also developing a strand of outdoor events that link sports and arts in a new dynamic.  For 
2013, our outdoor programme would build on our theme of diversity and tolerance and look to a more 
thoughtful, slower, contemplative and philosophical place for inspiration; to our connection with the 
landscape around us and with others around us.   

3

35



Section Two: Cultural and Artistic Objectives: [2 pages]

1 What would be distinctive and innovative about your cultural programme (including any 
headline projects)?  

Brighton and Hove is a city defined by its “and”: we are a city of collaboration, new ideas, new 
partnerships and new practice. It is a connected city defined by the individuals that choose make it their 
home and the evolving communities they choose to be part of.  The city is compact enough for 
connections to be made easily and fluidly for collaborations to flourish. Even small scale projects and 
interventions can make a huge impact in this human sized environment. The difference would be the 
nature and scale of the collaborations, the opportunity to take the city's powerful artistic and 
digital creativity to another level to earn it a European significance.  

Our cultural life is not defined by a range of monolithic arts establishments but is largely grass roots up, 
driven by the vision and ideas of a large and active creative and cultural population.  We are an active 
city: we have the highest levels of engagement with the arts outside London, a culturally aware population 
keen to get involved and a critical mass of creative professionals working across sectors and art-forms, 
for money and for love. In essence a city that looks to the future and ‘wants to make a difference’.  The
year would be a virtuous circle of boosting the cultural firepower in a city where that has the effect 
of boosting the economy which in turn helps to create jobs and foster growth.

2 How would you deliver cultural excellence including involvement of local as well as national 
and international artists?  

Led by the Brighton Festival, the artistic curatorship of the year would be a coming together of a range of 
artists and cultural figures, potentially with a guiding light of an overall artistic lead of the stature and 
nature of a Nick Cave or Sam Mendes.  In this last year alone the city has attracted and captured the 
attentions of artists from Anish Kapoor to Sir Ian McKellan to Simon Callow to Carleen Anderson.  To 
create and curate the programme for the year, we would draw on the power the city has to attract and 
engage this level of interest and talent and the combined programme would represent a real step change 
for Brighton and Hove.  We would do this through the powerful range of contacts the partners in the bid 
have to use; the Brighton Festival guest and resident artists, the University of Brighton list of visiting 
Professors and Fellows, Theatre Royal Brighton and the Ambassador Theatre Group contacts for 
example.  The Royal Pavilion and our historic buildings would invite the involvement of a national 
museum curator to expand practice. 

We intend to build on our existing cultural calendar but use this as an opportunity to encourage and 
facilitate artistic risk taking through brokering new connections between our cultural festivals and events 
and guest artists. For one year only each of these events will invite guest artists to work alongside the 
events individual curatorial and artistic teams. These artists could be local, national or international and 
will be selected in partnership between the city of culture group and the events themselves.  

3 Which cultural partnerships and networks would be involved?  

  Brighton & Hove Arts Commission; the city’s independent cultural partnership to lead the bid and 
programme 

  Creative Brighton; an industry led group representing the creative and cultural industries sector 

  Wired Sussex; a large network of digital media companies 

  The Economic Partnership; the city’s partnership focussing on the economic health and 
development of the city 

  Brighton Live; a festival and grouping of city based music industry organisations and 
professionals 

  White Night partnership – all the city’s main cultural venues and festivals 

  Like Mind Brighton 

4

36



  The Open Houses; a large scale network of artists exhibiting in residential and other spaces 
across the city during May and December. 

  The national Cultural Cities Network; a group of cultural cities that came out of the shared 
experience of bidding to host the European Capital of Culture and have experience of developing 
and delivering two national scale projects across the network. 

4 What existing venues, organisations and events do you intend to use/build upon?  

We would work with a wide range of organisations, venues and events in the city both cultural and others 
– appropriating programmes for the year for example using the entire library network, the museum and art 
gallery and historic buildings, a specially curated programme for the Theatre Royal Brighton for 2013.  
Key longstanding events in the city’s calendar would also provide the mainstay to be built upon; the 
Brighton Festival, the Children’s Festival and the range of successful community based festivals in the 
year.

Most importantly; the year would draw on the resource of the artistic community that is here – the real 
strength and depth is in the people we have in the city and the people that the city has recourse to. 

For a full range of venues, organisations and events please see Appendix One

5 What is your baseline position and how would you extend participation in arts and culture 
amongst the residents of your area?  

We are fortunate to have a high level of current participation in arts and culture (62% 2008).  We would 
use the opportunity of the city of culture to extend engagement; both targeting those who do not yet 
participate or who face barriers to participation and also to extend participation by getting people to try 
something different.  This could be reflected in the choice of guest artistic curator. An example would be 
to encourage the Brighton Live audience to try out the Open Houses through inviting a high profile 
musician to be guest artistic curator of the open houses.  In terms of extending participation of those who 
do not take part, please see the information below in Section Three point 4. 

6 How would you ensure diversity in the cultural and artistic programme? 

The monitoring of the diversity of the programme both in terms of activities and participants would be the 
responsibility specifically of the sub group established by the Brighton and Hove Arts Commission 
charged with taking an overview of the year and reporting back to the Commission on a regular basis.  
Additionally, Tolerance and Diversity would be one of the major themes for the year. 

7 How would you build on and link to the Cultural Olympiad or other key events such as 
Glasgow 2014? 

Brighton and Hove’s programme of activity looking towards 2012 is structured under 3 themes: increasing 
participation, improving the infrastructure and enhancing the city’s profile and economy.  At a local level 
these are extremely compatible with any City of Culture programme to be developed and there are events 
and strands in the 2012 programme that will find a natural home within the programme for 2013.  At a 
national level, the themes of the Cultural Olympiad of excellence and personal development and success 
would also be built upon in programmes of skills development particularly focussing on those who are 
unemployed and young people.  More specifically, there are some initiatives that the city is part of i.e. 
Stories of the World, that we would build directly on – in this case in terms of audience development.    

An outline sample programme of key festivals and events is attached at Appendix Two.

5

37



Section Three: Social Objectives [1 page] 

1 What role do you see the culture programme playing in the regeneration of your area? 
There would be benefit in two distinct areas of regeneration; physical and social.  The UK City of Culture 
Year would give a focus and impetus to existing capital developments – both public sector and 
commercial and could be used to incorporate several staging posts or key milestones in order to 
galvanise their progress or raise their profile.  In terms of social regeneration, the focus of the 
participation programme would be majorly on those people who face barriers to participation and 
engagement – aiming to leave a lasting legacy of sustained involvement and enhanced life chances. 

2 How would the UK City of Culture increase engagement of young people in training, education 
and employment? 

Opportunities to skill up for employment in the creative and culture sector would be threaded through all 
aspects of the programme for the year.  The year itself would be the culmination of several strands of 
skills development work currently at early stages in Brighton and Hove.  These include our Creative 
Apprenticeship scheme, the work of organisations like DV8 locally in training young people, the creative 
dimension to our Futures Jobs Fund scheme, our involvement in the New Deal of the Mind initiative, the 
inclusion of learning and skills opportunities in our existing cultural events such as White Night where 
there is a strand this year of adult learning for the first time. 

3 How would the UK City of Culture programme improve community cohesion in parts or all of 
your area? 

The programme would aim to improve community cohesion across the city by large scale initiatives and 
creating a shared sense of pride in the city with the overall impact of the title.  As with the Liverpool 
experience, there would be a public concentration on the positives of Brighton and Hove – both for 
residents and visitors and the deliberate building up of a shared sense of pride and ownership in the city.  
On a more local and targeted level, there would be a number of projects that aimed to tackle specific 
issues in specific areas; for example, a dance programme for the Tarner neighbourhood aiming to build 
links with the community and the National Dance Agency based in the city looking forward to when they 
are re-located into their new home as part of a mixed development planned on the borders of the Tarner 
area.

4 How would the UK City of Culture Programme reach out to and engage with different 
communities in your area? 

Firstly, aspects of the programme that area venue and city centre based would have engagement and 
access strategies built in. These strategies might include the provision of special transport, the use of 
specially commissioned support materials, working with existing neighbourhood based organisations, 
partnerships and individuals liaising with communities on a regular basis to ensure engagement.  We 
would also deploy networks such as the city’s community libraries to provide information about the 
programme and opportunities available.   

Secondly, there would be a range of initiatives and projects that came out of particular communities and 
locations and we would ensure a geographical spread of those.  There are some fantastic locations and a 
diverse range of communities across the city and there would be opportunities to support work coming 
from those locations and people.  The programme would establish structures and seed funding e.g. small 
scale, light touch grant schemes to encourage the development of community based programmes to be 
included in the year.  Our community libraries network would also have a particular role to play here in the 
creation and support of neighbourhood based individual community initiatives that might centre around 
those buildings and facilities, and the extension of the already successful micro museum programme. 

5 How will you ensure that the UK City of Culture programme is accessible to all groups in 
society? 

We have a well established process of Equality Impact Assessment across services, initiatives and 
strategies in the local authority.  This system of assessment and subsequent action planning would be 
applied across the whole UK City of Culture programme.  The guidance is attached at Appendix Three.

6

38



Section Four: Economic Objectives [1 page] 

1 What boost to your visitor economy do you envisage in 2013 and in subsequent years? 

The tourist economy currently accounts for an economic impact of just over £400m.  We would aim to 
increase this by 25% by 2013 by majoring on the large scale, accessible, attractive and high profile 
aspects of our cultural calendar and focussing on increasing the international staying visitor market.  We 
would work closely with our hotels and attractions and extend our marketing over the period up to 2013, 
using the UK City of Culture year as a staging post but extending the reach of the strategy beyond the 
actual year.

2 How would being UK City of Culture link into your current and planned approach to marketing 
your area for visitors? 

We are currently in year 2 of a 3 year strategy to build the capacity of the Festivals offer in the city as part 
of a wider regional programme funded by the Regional Development Agency, looking towards 2012.  Part 
of that has been stepping up the marketing of the cultural offer in the city, majorly the festivals offer, to a 
wider range of audiences including a London launch and European marketing initiatives.  Being UK City 
of Culture would give us an excellent bridge to take us from 2012 forwards – maximising the media 
attention and building links with that media that the title would bring with it, using it as a strapline on our 
existing marketing and centring campaigns around it. 

The web based Visit Brighton as our main marketing tool for visitors already features the cultural offer of 
the city, but this title would create an ideal focus for its campaigns – looking to use it to attract visitors in 
the lead up to 2013 as well as the year itself, at a time when many in the tourism industry are predicting 
falls in visitor numbers for 2012.  While web traffic has grown hugely in recent years we would expect to 
increase unique visits to the site at 10% above previous year’s growth; currently we are experiencing 
month on month growth of between 10% and 25%. VisitBrighton would also aim to increase by 50% it’s 
hosting of visits by journalists generating over £4.5m in equivalent advertising spend. 

Our local newspaper The Argus would also use its web based capacity to publicise the city and its events 
around the year achieving a national and international reach to potential visitors/repeat visitors.  

3 What is the current strength of the creative economy/sector in your area and how will the UK 
City of Culture help boost this? 

Culture and the creative industries is a key employment sector for us – it currently represents about 10% 
of employment in the city and has been the fastest growing business subsector for the last 5 years.  This 
is not the largest employment sector in the city, and it is not the sole answer to our employment issues – 
however, its further development and growth would have a positive impact on employment, both directly 
and indirectly.  The sector has identified some clear specific needs in terms of its growth; space, finance, 
skills.  Those are all objectives that are currently factored into existing strategies for development in the 
city.  The UK City of Culture would give an added focus to those and a framework in which to feature and 
highlight those companies and subsectors in a positive way.  There is still a lack of understanding of the 
way this sector works and the exposure could help in terms of relationships with developers, potential 
financers, careers services, and young people for example.  Moreover, sections of the creative industries 
are more likely to offer higher level entry jobs which we are in need of in Brighton and Hove – having a 
very highly educated workforce but a lack of jobs at that level.  Additionally, there would be elements of 
the programme for the year and in the lead up that would centre around skills development for 
employment in the creative and cultural sector building on work currently happening and in the planning. 

The indirect benefit of the strength of our creative industries sector is its contribution to the identity and 
reputation of the city as a cultural destination. 

7

39



Section Five: Organisation and Partnership [2 pages]

1 Who is leading the bid? 

The bid would be led by the Brighton and Hove Arts Commission, the city’s independent cultural 
partnership.  The Arts Commission has a seat on the city’s Local Strategic Partnership and is made up of 
a mixed group of cultural organisations, individuals and local councillors.  The Arts Commission is 
supported by the City Council in terms of its administrative and executive functions. 

2 Who else is involved in supporting the bid? 

A wide range of organisations and partnerships are already involved in supporting the bid and would be 
involved in its further development and delivery: The Economic Partnership, The Argus (local paper), the 
City Council, Wired Sussex (a network of digital media companies), University of Brighton, University of 
Sussex plus the entire membership of the Brighton and Hove Arts Commission. 

3 If successful in your bid, how would the development and delivery of the UK City of Culture 
programme be managed? 

The Brighton and Hove Arts Commission would oversee the development and delivery of the programme.  
It would establish a sub group responsible for the detailed development of the programme alongside 
delivery partners.  It would use its existing meeting and reporting structure to maintain an overview of the 
programme and its progress and achievements.  For the duration of the programme, the Arts Commission 
would invite additional members to sit on the commission; the Editor of the local newspaper, 
representatives from the Economic Partnership and the Business Forum, representatives from the local 
tourism sector for example.  An executive group would undertake the programme management with 
specific initiatives sub-contracted to delivery partners.  The financial management of the programme 
would be undertaken by the executive team and run through the city council’s existing financial systems.  
Please see the management diagram attached at Appendix Four.

4 What previous track record in organising and delivering significant programmes of cultural 
events and activity do you and your partners have? 

The Brighton and Hove Arts Commission successfully developed the city’s bid for the Urban Cultural 
Programme funding in 2002.  The programme ran over 3 years from 2003–06 and involved many of the 
partners proposed in the partnership to deliver the UK City of Culture.  A short evaluation summary of this 
programme is attached at Appendix Five.  Prior to this, the city council established a structure which 
delivered a smaller scale programme to support the city’s bid for the European Capital of Culture. 

On an individual basis, the partners to the bid have extensive experience in programme development and 
management: the city council is a leader in the field of event management see Appendix Six for a 
Beacon Status case study on event management and licensing.  There is a full range of venues 
represented in the partnership with the Brighton Dome venues operating three venues on a year round 
basis, Theatre Royal Brighton an Ambassadors Theatre Group 950 seater commercial theatre through to 
smaller scale experimental spaces.  There is also extensive experience amongst the partners of festival 
programming and management and specifically the successful delivery of outdoor events and site specific 
work.  Other partners lead the field in the development and delivery of participatory work for a wide range 
of groups such as Same Sky and Carousel.

8

40



Section Six:  Funding [1 page] 

1 How much do you expect it to cost to deliver your proposed programme in 2013? 

The core budget is estimated at around £3million.  This would not include associated projects or capital 
developments that were linked in with the year. 

2 How much of this total cost would require additional funding over and above current 
levels of support for culture in your area? 

The fundraising target is currently estimated at £1million. 

3 From where do you expect to get this funding (public sector sources, private 
sector sponsorship, sales revenue for events?) 

Fundraising would be from a mixture of public and private sector sources as well as support in kind from 
delivery and media partners. 

See outline budget below: 

UK City of Culture - Budget 

Expenditure £k

Programme: events, festivals, venues 2,000 

Programme: participatory and community 500 

Programme: employment skills initiatives 300 

Management, Admin and Fundraising 100 

Marketing and PR   75 

Evaluation  25 

TOTAL  3m 

Income £k

Partners: existing programming budgets 1,500 

Partners: existing participatory and community 300 

Partners: existing employment skills initiatives 100 

BHCC Staff management time 50 

BHCC Communications & PR activity plus Argus coverage and support 50 

Fundraising Target  1,000 

TOTAL  3m 

9

41



Section Seven: Legacy [1 page]

1 How, generally, will you ensure that the impact of being UK City of Culture in 2013 is not just a 
one off? 

The aspirations in the city around cultural development, artistic ambition, employment, inequality, 
economic development, community cohesion and safety are not new.  They are all represented in a 
number of strategies, policies and other articulations of ambition by the partners involved in this bid which 
go beyond 2013.  Those ambitions to make Brighton and Hove a better place for people who live, work 
and visit here do not end with 2013.  The city’s use of the UK City of Culture initiative would be for the 
sake of furthering its core aspirations and part of that ongoing journey.  In practice, the different elements 
that made up the programme for 2013 would be built into broader, longer strategies for development.  
2013 would be a milestone in the development of those ambitions –it would boost certain objectives and 
priorities and give a voice and a vehicle for projects and ideas – but for Brighton and Hove it is a step on 
the way and not the end in itself.  

2 What will be the main elements of the lasting legacy in your area from being UK City of Culture 
in 2012 (culturally, socially or economically)? 

We would hope to increase the numbers of people engaging in cultural activity by targeting the 
participatory programmes towards those who are currently not engaging.  We would hope to increase the 
economic impact of tourism by 2013 and using the year to boost that.  We would hope to see a 
sustainable increase in both the number and range of creative sector based opportunities for skills 
development and employment and the take up by young people in particular.  We would hope to use the 
year to give an injection of profile and motivation to a small number of capital developments.  Finally, we 
would aspire to raise permanently, the level of cultural and artistic ambition and achievement coming out 
of the city. 

 

10

42



Appendix 1 

List of Venues, events and organisations to be built upon 

Venues Events Organisations 

Brighton Dome venues (3 
spaces; 1,800 concert 
auditorium, large scale flexi 
space and small scale theatre  

Brighton Festival (3 week large 
scale festival in May in its 42

nd

year) 

Brighton Dome and Festival Ltd 
(organisation running both the 
Dome venues and the Brighton 
Festival)

Theatre Royal Brighton 
(Ambassadors Theatre Group 
950 seater 200 year old theatre) 

Brighton Festival Fringe (3 
week Fringe Festival in May) 

Same Sky (leading community arts 
organisation) 

The Royal Pavilion plus all of 
the city council run historic 
buildings

OSKA Bright (biannual 
international film festival for 
filmmakers with a learning 
disability run by Carousel) 

Carousel (organisation working 
with people with learning 
difficulties

The Basement (small scale 
experimental rehearsal and 
performance space) 

PRIDE (largest free PRIDE 
event in the country) 

University of Brighton 

Nightingale (small scale 
experimental studio theatre)  

Un-Disciplined (new festival led 
by consortium of arts 
organisations) 

University of Sussex 

The Fishing Museum, Brighton 
Seafront

White Night (24 hour cultural 
festival) 

The Argus (local Newsquest 
publication) 

Fabrica (contemporary art 
gallery in converted church) 
plus a further network of 15 
small to medium scale 
contemporary art galleries 
across city 

Children’s Festival (biannual 
festival for children) 

South East Dance (national dance 
agency for South East) 

Brighton Museum and Art 
Gallery

Hip Hop Festival Lighthouse (film and digital media 
training and commissioning 
organisation) 

Community libraries and city 
centre Jubilee Library 

Brighton Photo-Biennial and  
Brighton Photo Fringe 

Brighton Institute of Modern Music 
(training organisation with 3 
facilities in the city) 

Komedia (3 space cabaret, 
music, comedy venue ) 

Cine City (annual film festival) Brighton and Hove Music and 
Performing Arts Trust (music and 
performing arts for all young 
people in the city)  

University of Brighton Art 
Gallery

Early Music Festival Junk TV – community film 
production company 

The Old Market (mixed 
programme venue in Hove) 

Sacred Music Festival Queenspark Books – community 
writing and publishing organisation 

Range of church spaces in the 
city that regularly programme 
events and exhibitions 

Burning the Clocks (large scale 
participatory event for winter 
solstice) 

Brighton Live – (music network 
running annual festival and 
promoting local bands) 

Outdoor spaces to include: 
Jubilee Square, New Road, the 
seafront, Victoria Gardens and 
the Old Steine Gardens 

Children’s Parade (large scale 
parade involving every school 
in the city to open the Brighton 
Festival each year) 

Age Concern 

Open Houses; hundreds of 
residential spaces and studios 
opening twice a year 

The Great Escape (annual 
music industry focussed festival 
in May) 

Primary Care Trust 

Duke of York’s Cinema 
(Picturehouse one screen 
cinema) 

Aquafestival (new event for 
Brighton and Hove’s 2012 
programme) 

West Pier Trust 

Brighton Centre and Hove 
Centre

Brighton Marathon Creative Brighton 

New Community Stadium (half 
constructed) 

Science Festival Brighton and Hove Albion Football 
Club

Brighton and Hove Philharmonic 

 

11

43



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 

S
a
m

p
le

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 –

 F
e
s
ti

v
a
ls

/E
v
e
n

ts
 

 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 

M
a

rc
h

A
p

ri
l

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 S
c
ie

n
c
e

 F
e

s
ti
v
a

l 
S

p
ri

n
g

 F
o

rw
a

rd
 

L
a

u
n

c
h

 E
v
e

n
t 

W
in

te
r 

P
ri

d
e

 
U

n
d

is
c
ip

lin
e
d

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 F
e

s
ti
v
a

l 

M
a

y
 

J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
 

A
u

g
u

s
t

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 F
e

s
ti
v
a

l 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 F
e

s
ti
v
a

l 
F

ri
n

g
e
 

T
a

k
e

 P
a

rt
 

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 F

e
s
ti
v
a

l 

T
h

e
 G

re
a

t 
E

s
c
a

p
e

 

A
rt

is
t 

O
p

e
n

 H
o

u
s
e

s
 

S
o

u
n

d
w

a
v
e

s
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 C
a

rn
iv

a
l 

P
ri

d
e

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

W
h

it
e

 N
ig

h
t 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 L
iv

e
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 P
h

o
to

 F
ri

n
g

e
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 A
rt

 F
a

ir
 

D
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
C

a
m

e
ra

 

W
h

it
e

 A
ir

 
C

o
lo

u
r 

O
u

t 
o

f 
S

p
a

c
e

(e
x
p

e
ri

m
e

n
ta

l 
m

u
s
ic

)

C
in

e
 C

it
y
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 E
a

rl
y
 M

u
s
ic

 F
e

s
ti
v
a

l 

B
u

rn
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
lo

c
k
s
 

O
u

t 
o

f 
th

e
 O

rd
in

a
ry

 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 F
e

s
ti
v
a

l 
o

f 
S

a
c
re

d
 M

u
s
ic

 

B
la

c
k
 H

is
to

ry
 M

o
n

th
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 F
o

o
d

&
 D

ri
n

k
 F

e
s
ti
v
a

l 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 C

o
m

e
d

y
 F

e
s
ti
v
a

l 

O
s
k
a

 B
ri

g
h

t 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
D

a
y
 o

f
th

e
 D

is
a

b
le

d
 

 

1
2

44



Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit   3  

Equalities Impact Assessments (EIAs) 
are good practice and legally required. 
They use data and consultation to 
define the positive and negative 
impacts of our policies, strategies and 
services on different communities - 
including staff. They lead to action to 
prevent discrimination and promote 
positive community relations and 
equality.

Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) Toolkit 

Procedure and guidelines for conducting 
impact assessments on polices, strategies and services

13

45



4   Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit 

Introduction 3

Section One
The importance and value of Equalities Impact Assessments (EIAs) 4 - 8

Equalities Impact flow diagram 9

Section Two
How to conduct an Equalities Impact Assessment – 10 steps 10 - 20

Support to Impact Assessors  21

Appendices
Appendix 1 - EIA Toolkit Template  22 

Appendix 2 – Publication Template  25

The Appendices attached to this document can be filled out, saved and returned 
via email. 

To open them simply double click the file. 

You will be able to now enter text into the tables and save to your hard-drive, as well as printing 
hard-copies. 

To rotate the pages for ease of viewing, follow ‘View’, ‘Rotate View’. 

The EIA Toolkit can also be made available in 
large print, Braille or audio tape.  Please contact 
Equalities and Inclusion Team on 01273 291577

Contents

14

46



Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit   3  

We undertake Equalities Impact 
Assessments (EIAs) because:

s฀7E฀NEED฀TO฀ENSURE฀THAT฀WE฀ARE฀
properly serving our diverse local 
COMMUNITY฀AND฀THAT฀SERVICES฀ARE฀
genuinely accessible to all

s฀%)!S฀ACTIVELY฀SUPPORT฀THE฀PRACTICAL฀
delivery of our Equality and 
Inclusion Policy and our Equality 
3CHEMES฀TO฀HELP฀US฀MEET฀THE฀
Equality Standard for Local 
Government

s฀!LL฀PUBLIC฀BODIES฀MUST฀UNDERTAKE฀
%)!S฀OF฀THEIR฀POLICIES฀AND฀
functions, as set out in equalities 
legislation

Equalities Impact 
Assessment (EIA) 
Toolkit 

Introduction

The toolkit tells you:

s฀WHEN you need to conduct an EIA

s฀HOW to conduct an EIA – a step by 

step process

s฀WHO฀IS฀RESPONSIBLE฀AND฀AT฀WHAT฀
level for EIAs

s฀WHO฀CAN฀HELP฀WITH฀INFORMATION฀
and support.

9OU฀CAN฀USE฀THE฀TOOLKIT฀TO฀ASSESS฀
WHETHER฀THE฀POLICIES฀WHICH฀GUIDE฀
YOUR฀WORK�฀THE฀PROCEDURES฀YOU฀
OPERATE฀AND฀THE฀DAY฀TO฀DAY฀WORKING฀
PRACTICES฀YOU฀HAVE฀DEVELOPED฀ARE฀
LIKELY฀TO฀HAVE฀A฀POSITIVE฀OR฀NEGATIVE฀
IMPACT฀ON฀DIFFERENT฀GROUPS฀WITHIN฀
our diverse communities. Having 

MADE฀THIS฀ASSESSMENT�฀YOU฀CAN฀TAKE฀
action to prevent direct and indirect 

discrimination and promote positive 

COMMUNITY฀RELATIONS�฀EQUALITY฀AND฀THE฀
PROPER฀APPLICATION฀OF฀HUMAN฀RIGHTS�

Council Priorities:

s฀0RIORITY฀/NE฀฀ 0ROTECT฀THE฀ENVIRONMENT฀WHILE฀GROWING฀THE฀ECONOMY

s฀Priority Two  Make better use of public money

s฀Priority Three   Reduce inequality by increasing opportunity

s฀Priority Four฀฀฀ &AIR฀ENFORCEMENT฀OF฀THE฀LAW

s฀0RIORITY฀&IVE฀฀฀ /PEN฀AND฀EFFECTIVE฀CITY฀LEADERSHIP฀

15

47



4   Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit 

What is an EIA?

An EIA is used to look at proposed 
or existing policies or strategies to 
IDENTIFY฀WHAT฀EFFECT฀OR฀LIKELY฀EFFECT฀THEY฀
WILL฀HAVE฀ON฀DIFFERENT฀GROUPS฀IN฀THE฀
COMMUNITY�฀)T฀CAN฀ALSO฀BE฀THE฀PROCESS฀
FOR฀ANALYSING฀THE฀IMPACT฀OF฀A฀SERVICE฀
OR฀FUNCTION฀ON฀DIFFERENT฀GROUPS฀IN฀THE฀
community.

%)!S฀HELP฀YOU฀ANTICIPATE฀AND฀IDENTIFY฀
THE฀EQUALITY฀CONSEQUENCES฀OF฀POLICIES�฀
strategies and service delivery. EIAs 
SHOULD฀BE฀USED�฀AS฀FAR฀AS฀POSSIBLE�฀TO฀
ensure any negative consequences 
for a particular group or sector 
OF฀THE฀COMMUNITY฀ARE฀ELIMINATED�฀
MINIMISED฀OR฀COUNTERBALANCED฀BY฀OTHER฀
MEASURES�฀4HEY฀ALSO฀ENABLE฀YOU฀TO฀
use opportunities to promote positive 
RELATIONS฀BETWEEN฀GROUPS฀AND฀TO฀
ADDRESS฀HISTORICAL฀INEQUALITIES�฀

You must include an EIA:

s฀IN฀THE฀EARLY฀STAGES฀OF฀POLICY฀
DEVELOPMENT฀SO฀THAT฀IT฀CAN฀INFORM฀
ANY฀DECISIONS฀YOU฀MAKE�฀HELPING฀
you to integrate and mainstream 
EQUALITIES฀INTO฀YOUR฀WORK�฀

s฀WHEN฀REVIEWING฀THE฀EFFECTIVENESS฀
and performance of your service. It 
WILL฀HELP฀YOU฀IDENTIFY฀EQUALITY฀ISSUES฀
AS฀WELL฀AS฀OPPORTUNITIES฀TO฀PROMOTE฀
equalities and inclusion 

Section One

4HE฀IMPORTANCE฀AND฀VALUE฀OF฀
Equalities Impact Assessments 
(EIAs)

Why we need to do EIAs

It’s good practice – and necessary 
if we are to deliver our equalities 
agenda for the city.

%)!S฀WILL฀HELP฀US฀DRIVE฀FORWARD฀THE฀
EQUALITIES฀AGENDA฀LOCALLY฀AND฀WITH฀OUR฀
partners. 

4HE฀CITY�S฀DIVERSITY฀IS฀ONE฀OF฀ITS฀
STRENGTHS฀AND�฀AS฀A฀COUNCIL�฀WE฀ARE฀
COMMITTED฀TO฀DRAWING฀ON฀THE฀DIVERSITY฀
of our community to create a more 
INCLUSIVE฀"RIGHTON฀�฀(OVE�

EIAs enable us to:

s฀IDENTIFY฀WHETHER฀WE฀ARE฀EXCLUDING฀
certain groups and individuals from 
any of our services

s฀IDENTIFY฀DIRECT฀OR฀INDIRECT฀
discrimination

s฀CONSIDER฀ALTERNATIVE฀POLICIES฀OR฀
MEASURES฀THAT฀MIGHT฀ADDRESS฀ANY฀
adverse impact or use opportunities 
to improve community relations

s฀MAINSTREAM฀EQUALITY฀IN฀OUR฀POLICIES฀
and practices 

s฀TARGET฀RESOURCES฀MORE฀EFFECTIVELY฀
and improve services

s฀SHOW฀EXTERNAL฀INSPECTORS฀AND฀
REVIEWERS�฀SUCH฀AS฀THE฀%QUALITY฀
3TANDARD�฀THE฀VALUE฀OF฀THE฀APPROACH฀
WE฀HAVE฀ADOPTED฀TO฀ACHIEVE฀

 our goals.

16

48



Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit   5  

It’s a statutory requirement 

4HERE฀IS฀NOW฀A฀REQUIREMENT฀TO฀CARRY฀OUT฀
%)!S�฀3INCE฀����฀"RIGHTON฀�฀(OVE฀HAS฀
ADOPTED฀THE฀APPROACH฀OF฀USING฀%)!S฀TO฀
ASSESS฀IMPACT฀AGAINST฀THE฀SIX฀EQUALITIES฀
STRANDS�฀ETHNICITY�฀DISABILITY�฀GENDER�฀AGE�฀
SEXUAL฀ORIENTATION฀AND฀RELIGION�฀FAITH฀
or belief.

0LEASE฀ENSURE฀THAT฀YOU฀ARE฀CLEAR฀ABOUT฀
OUR฀%QUALITIES฀�฀)NCLUSION฀0OLICY฀AND฀THE฀
COMMITMENTS฀MADE฀WITHIN฀OUR฀2ACE฀
%QUALITY฀3CHEME�฀$ISABILITY฀%QUALITY฀
3CHEME฀AND฀'ENDER฀%QUALITY฀3CHEME�฀

4HE฀KEY฀LEGISLATION฀IS฀LISTED฀BELOW�฀
Contact your directorate equalities lead 
OR฀THE฀CORPORATE฀%QUALITIES฀AND฀)NCLUSION฀
4EAM฀FOR฀MORE฀INFORMATION฀ON฀THE฀
LEGISLATION฀AND฀HOW฀IT฀AFFECTS฀YOU�฀

The Race Relations (Amendment) 
Act 2000

4HE฀ACT฀REQUIRES฀LOCAL฀AUTHORITIES฀
to promote race equality in policy 
making, service delivery, regulation and 
ENFORCEMENT฀AND฀EMPLOYMENT�฀4HE฀THREE฀
key elements in promoting race 
equality are:

s฀ELIMINATING฀DISCRIMINATION

s฀PROMOTING฀EQUALITY฀OF฀OPPORTUNITY

s฀PROMOTING฀GOOD฀RACE฀RELATIONS�

4HE฀2ACE฀2ELATIONS฀�!MENDMENT	฀!CT฀
����฀PLACED฀A฀DUTY฀ON฀AUTHORITIES฀
TO฀PRODUCE฀A฀2ACE฀%QUALITY฀3CHEME฀
and to conduct EIAs of proposed and 

existing policies and service functions 
FOR฀ANY฀ADVERSE฀IMPACT�฀&OLLOWING฀
THE฀IMPACT฀ASSESSMENT�฀THE฀RESULTS฀
MUST฀BE฀PUBLISHED฀AND฀THE฀AGREED฀
ACTIONS฀IMPLEMENTED฀AND฀THEIR฀DELIVERY฀
monitored.

The Disability Discrimination 
Act 2005 (DDA)

4HE฀$$!฀PLACED฀A฀DUTY฀ON฀LOCAL฀
AUTHORITIES฀TO฀ELIMINATE฀DISCRIMINATION฀
against disabled people and promote 
DISABILITY฀EQUALITY฀IN฀THE฀AREAS฀OF฀SERVICE฀
DELIVERY�฀PHYSICAL฀ACCESSIBILITY฀AND฀
EMPLOYMENT�฀4HERE฀IS฀A฀REQUIREMENT฀TO฀
PRODUCE฀A฀$ISABILITY฀%QUALITY฀3CHEME฀
setting out actions to be undertaken 
BY฀THE฀COUNCIL฀TO฀PROMOTE฀EQUALITY฀
of opportunity for disabled people. 
)N฀ADDITION฀THERE฀IS฀A฀RESPONSIBILITY฀
to involve disabled people in policy 
DEVELOPMENT�฀THIS฀SHOULD฀BE฀CONSIDERED฀
WHEN฀UNDERTAKING฀%)!S฀OF฀POLICIES�

The Equality Act 2006

)NTRODUCED฀A฀NEW฀PUBLIC฀DUTY฀TO฀
eliminate gender discrimination and 
PROMOTE฀GENDER฀EQUALITY�฀!UTHORITIES฀ARE฀
required to produce a Gender Equality 
3CHEME฀INCLUDING฀AN฀EQUAL฀PAY฀POLICY฀
and audit, and to tackle occupational 
SEGREGATION�฀4HIS฀INCLUDES฀WOMEN�฀MEN฀
and trans people.

4HE฀!CT฀ALSO฀EXTENDS฀THE฀REQUIREMENT฀
not to discriminate on grounds of sexual 
orientation or religion/belief to goods, 
facilities, services, premises, education 
AND฀THE฀EXERCISE฀OF฀PUBLIC฀FUNCTIONS�

17

49



6   Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit 

Employment Equality Regulations

4HE฀FOLLOWING฀REGULATIONS฀OUTLAW฀
discrimination in employment and 
training and put a responsibility on 
EMPLOYERS฀TO฀ENSURE฀THAT฀HARASSMENT฀
does not occur.

2ELIGION฀OR฀"ELIEF
4HE฀%MPLOYMENT฀%QUALITY฀�2ELIGION฀OR฀
Belief) Regulations came into force 
ON฀�฀$ECEMBER฀�����฀!฀REFERENCE฀TO฀
religion/belief includes a reference to 
lack of religion/belief.

3EXUAL฀/RIENTATION
4HE฀%MPLOYMENT฀%QUALITY฀�3EXUAL฀
Orientation) Regulations came into force 
ON฀�฀$ECEMBER฀�����

Sexual orientation is defined in 
THE฀2EGULATIONS฀AS฀BEING฀hA฀SEXUAL฀
ORIENTATION฀TOWARDS�

�A	฀฀PERSONS฀OF฀THE฀SAME฀SEX�฀

�B	฀฀PERSONS฀OF฀THE฀OPPOSITE฀SEX�฀OR฀

�C	฀฀PERSONS฀OF฀THE฀SAME฀SEX฀AND฀OF฀THE฀
OPPOSITE฀SEX�฀h

Age
4HE฀%MPLOYMENT฀%QUALITY฀�!GE	฀
Regulations came into force on 1 
October 2006.

4HIS฀HAS฀IMPLICATIONS฀FOR฀YOUNGER฀
and older people in employment and 

ENCOURAGES฀EMPHASIS฀ON฀COMPETENCY฀
RATHER฀THAN฀YEARS฀OF฀EXPERIENCE�฀

7E฀ARE฀NOT฀CARRYING฀OUT฀THE฀%)!S฀JUST฀
TO฀MEET฀OUR฀STATUTORY฀DUTIES฀n฀WE฀
WANT฀TO฀USE฀THEM฀AS฀A฀TOOL฀TO฀CHANGE฀
outcomes and make a real difference 
TO฀PEOPLE�S฀LIVES�฀"Y฀DOING฀THIS฀WE฀WILL฀
COMPLY฀WITH฀BOTH฀THE฀DETAIL฀AND฀THE฀
SPIRIT฀OF฀THE฀LEGISLATION�

It will help us deliver other key 
local and national agendas.

4HE฀WORK฀WE฀DO฀ON฀%)!S฀WILL฀FEED฀INTO฀
AND฀ENHANCE฀A฀WIDE฀RANGE฀OF฀OTHER฀
local and national priorities including:

s฀3ERVICE฀PLANNING – Actions 
IDENTIFIED฀WITHIN฀%)!S฀WILL฀FEED฀INTO฀
a range of council plans at all levels, 
including annual Service Plans, 
$IRECTORATE฀0LANS�฀THE฀#ORPORATE฀
Plan and our many statutory and 
non-statutory plans

s฀3OCIAL฀INCLUSION฀n฀4HE฀OUTCOMES฀
OF฀%)!S฀WILL฀SUPPORT฀OUR฀WORK฀
on social inclusion, feeding into 
THE฀DELIVERY฀OF฀THE฀3USTAINABLE฀
Community Strategy and our Local 
!REA฀!GREEMENT�฀THROUGH฀THE฀����฀
#OMMUNITY฀0ARTNERSHIP

s฀4HE฀%QUALITY฀3TANDARD฀FOR฀
Local Government and other 
external inspections – Equality, 

18

50



Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit   7  

DIVERSITY฀AND฀HUMAN฀RIGHTS฀ARE฀NOW฀฀
INTEGRAL฀PARTS฀OF฀THE฀GOVERNMENT�S฀
POLICY฀AGENDA�฀!฀ROBUST฀FRAMEWORK฀
FOR฀%)!S�฀WITH฀GOOD฀EVIDENCE฀OF฀THEIR฀
impact on service delivery outcomes, 
WILL฀ENABLE฀US฀TO฀ACHIEVE฀ALL฀THE฀LEVELS฀
OF฀THE฀%QUALITY฀3TANDARD฀FOR฀,OCAL฀
'OVERNMENT฀AND฀TO฀ENSURE฀THE฀CITY฀IS฀
IN฀A฀POSITION฀TO฀MEET฀OTHER฀EXTERNAL฀
CHALLENGES

s฀0ROMOTING฀HUMAN฀RIGHTS฀n฀HELPING฀
US฀ENSURE฀THAT฀WE฀WORK฀WITHIN฀THE฀
HUMAN฀RIGHTS฀PRINCIPLES฀OF฀FAIRNESS�฀
respect, equality, autonomy and 
dignity.

Equalities and business planning

4HE฀CORPORATE฀GUIDANCE฀FOR฀ANNUAL฀
business/team plans integrates equalities 
WITHIN฀THE฀OVERALL฀BUSINESS฀PLANNING฀
FRAMEWORK�฀4HERE฀IS฀AN฀EXPECTATION฀THAT฀
THE฀TIMETABLE฀AND฀OUTCOMES฀OF฀%)!S฀
WILL฀BE฀INCLUDED฀IN฀THESE฀PLANS฀INCLUDING฀
actions related to equalities monitoring, 
engagement, overcoming barriers and 
improving access to information and 
SERVICES�฀AND฀CONTRACTS฀WITH฀EXTERNAL฀
providers.

Accountability and responsibility

!LL฀OFlCERS�฀AS฀WELL฀AS฀MEMBERS฀OF฀
THE฀COUNCIL�฀HAVE฀SOME฀DEGREE฀OF฀

Section One

4HE฀IMPORTANCE฀AND฀VALUE฀OF฀
Equalities Impact Assessments 
(EIAs)

RESPONSIBILITY฀FOR฀ENSURING฀THAT฀%)!S฀
ARE฀CONDUCTED�฀7HENEVER฀A฀REVIEW฀
of a function or service is proposed 
OR฀REQUIRED฀AND฀WHENEVER฀A฀POLICY฀OR฀
STRATEGY฀IS฀DEVELOPED฀OR฀REVIEWED�฀THE฀
MANAGERS฀RESPONSIBLE฀FOR฀THAT฀SERVICE฀OR฀
POLICY฀ARE฀ACCOUNTABLE฀FOR฀THE฀%)!�฀7HEN฀
REPORTS฀FOR฀DECISIONS฀ARE฀SUBMITTED฀TO฀THE฀
#ABINET฀OR฀4HE฀-ANAGEMENT฀4EAM฀�4-4	฀
FOR฀CONSIDERATION�฀THE฀#ABINET฀MEMBERS฀
WILL฀EXPECT฀TO฀SEE฀THE฀RESULTS฀OF฀THE฀%)!S฀
IN฀THE฀REPORTS�฀

4O฀ENSURE฀OWNERSHIP฀AT฀THE฀MOST฀SENIOR฀
MANAGEMENT฀LEVELS฀AND฀TO฀ALLOW฀FOR฀
CROSS
CUTTING฀ANALYSIS฀ACROSS฀THE฀COUNCIL�S฀
services, all EIAs must be signed off by:

s฀THE฀RELEVANT฀$EPARTMENTAL฀
-ANAGEMENT฀4EAM฀�$-4	

s฀THE฀CORPORATE฀%QUALITIES฀AND฀)NCLUSION฀
Team

)T฀IS฀RECOGNISED฀THAT฀THE฀JOURNEY฀TO฀
EQUALITY฀CANNOT฀ACHIEVE฀EVERYTHING฀AT฀
once and our service-based, functional 
%)!S฀ARE฀INTEGRATED฀INTO฀A฀THREE฀YEAR฀
ROLLING฀PROGRAMME�฀LINKED฀TO฀THE฀
COUNCIL�S฀%QUALITY฀3CHEME฀!CTION฀0LAN�฀
-ANAGERS฀SHOULD฀DO฀THE฀BEST฀THEY฀CAN฀
WITH฀THE฀TIME�฀INFORMATION฀AND฀RESOURCES฀
AVAILABLE฀TO฀THEM�฀%)!S฀MAY฀IDENTIFY฀
THINGS฀THAT฀YOU฀CANNOT฀SOLVE฀NOW฀BUT฀
WILL�฀NEVERTHELESS�฀PROVIDE฀INFORMATION฀
TO฀HELP฀WITH฀LONGER฀TERM฀PLANNING�฀.EW฀
INFORMATION฀MAY฀ALSO฀COME฀TO฀LIGHT฀AT฀
a later stage, so it is important not to 

19

51



8   Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit 

DRAW฀A฀LINE฀AFTER฀THE฀COMPLETION฀OF฀THE฀
ASSESSMENT�฀BUT฀TO฀BE฀OPEN฀TO฀THE฀NEED฀
FOR฀REVIEW฀AND฀CONSTANT฀IMPROVEMENT�

Managing the EIA process

-ANY฀OFlCERS฀EXPRESS฀CONCERN฀AT฀THE฀
START฀OF฀THE฀%)!฀PROCESS฀n฀THEY฀BELIEVE฀
THAT฀THE฀PROCESS฀WILL฀BE฀TOO฀COMPLEX฀AND฀
resource intensive and cannot be fitted 
IN฀ALONGSIDE฀THE฀DEMANDS฀OF฀THE฀@DAY฀
JOB��

EIAs do take time and resources – but, 
%)!S฀CAN฀HELP฀US฀PROVIDE฀BETTER฀SERVICES฀
AND฀WE฀HAVE฀A฀STATUTORY฀OBLIGATION to 
DO฀THEM฀AS฀PART฀OF฀OUR฀RESPONSIBILITIES฀
AROUND฀SERVICE฀PROVISION�฀7E฀MUST฀
ENSURE฀THAT฀THEY฀ARE฀COMPLETED฀ON฀NEW฀
or restructured services and strategies 
BEFORE฀THE฀CHANGE฀TAKES฀PLACE�฀

4HE฀FOLLOWING฀TIPS฀MAY฀HELP�

•฀ 3TART฀PLANNING฀EARLY฀n฀AT฀THE฀START฀OF฀
THE฀PROCESS฀OF฀MAPPING฀OUT฀A฀POLICY�฀
AT฀THE฀START฀OF฀THE฀YEAR฀IN฀WHICH฀YOUR฀
SERVICE฀REVIEW฀IS฀SCHEDULED฀OR฀AT฀THE฀
start of developing your organisational 
CHANGE฀PROPOSALS�฀4HIS฀WILL฀ALLOW฀
YOU฀TO฀USE฀ALL฀THE฀TIME฀AVAILABLE฀AND฀
TO฀FULLY฀INTEGRATE฀YOUR฀%)!฀SO฀THAT฀
you do not, for example, undertake 
CONSULTATION฀ON฀YOUR฀POLICY฀AND฀THEN฀
REALISE฀YOU฀HAVE฀FAILED฀TO฀CONSULT฀ANY฀
OF฀THE฀EQUALITIES฀GROUPS�

s฀ 2EMEMBER฀THE฀PRINCIPLES฀OF฀
PROPORTIONALITY฀AS฀YOU฀SCOPE฀YOUR฀
REVIEW n฀WHICH฀PARTS฀OF฀YOUR฀SERVICES฀
HAVE�฀OR฀COULD฀HAVE�฀MOST฀IMPACT�฀
7HICH฀GROUPS฀ARE฀MOST฀LIKELY฀TO฀BE฀
affected by your service, positively or 
NEGATIVELY�฀4HIS฀WILL฀HELP฀YOU฀FOCUS฀
your efforts and direct your resources 
WHERE฀THEY฀WILL฀HAVE฀MOST฀IMPACT�

฀ !SK฀FOR฀SUPPORT฀n฀DISCUSS฀YOUR฀%)!฀WITH฀
YOUR฀DIRECTORATE฀EQUALITIES฀LEAD฀AND฀THE฀
corporate Equalities and Inclusion Team. 
4HEY฀WILL฀NOT฀UNDERTAKE฀THE฀%)!฀FOR฀YOU�฀
BUT฀THEY฀CAN฀HELP฀YOU฀GET฀STARTED฀BY฀
running a kick-start session for you, give 
you examples of completed EIAs, provide 
YOU฀WITH฀INFORMATION฀AND฀SUPPORT�฀AND฀
give you feedback on your EIA as it 
develops.

 ,OOK฀AT฀WHAT฀OTHERS฀HAVE฀DONE฀n฀THERE฀
ARE฀POCKETS฀OF฀BEST฀PRACTICE฀ACROSS฀THE฀
COUNCIL฀WHERE฀%)!S฀HAVE฀BEEN฀COMPLETED�฀
AS฀WELL฀AS฀EXAMPLES฀OF฀%)!S฀WHICH฀HAVE฀
BEEN฀COMPLETED฀BY฀OTHER฀PUBLIC฀SERVICES�฀
#ONSULTATION฀DATA฀IS฀AVAILABLE฀ACROSS฀THE฀
COUNCIL฀AND฀THE฀!NALYSIS฀AND฀2ESEARCH฀
4EAM฀CAN฀HELP฀WITH฀ADVICE฀ON฀TOOLS฀AND฀
TECHNIQUES�

 'ET฀A฀TEAM฀OF฀PEOPLE฀TOGETHER฀TO฀
WORK฀ON฀THE฀%)!฀n฀THIS฀WILL฀HELP฀YOU฀
develop your ideas, bring in experiences 
AT฀DIFFERENT฀LEVELS฀ACROSS฀THE฀TEAM�฀AND฀
MEANS฀THAT฀TASKS฀CAN฀BE฀SHARED�

 Plan consultation and communication 
- THE฀MORE฀YOU฀PLAN฀THIS฀IN฀ADVANCE฀THE฀
MORE฀LIKELY฀IT฀IS฀THAT฀YOU฀MAY฀BE฀ABLE฀TO฀
LINK฀IN฀WITH฀OTHER฀PLANNED฀CONSULTATIONS฀
and/or communication processes in your 
DEPARTMENTS฀OR฀RELATED฀ONES฀IN฀OTHER฀
TEAMS�฀'UIDANCE฀ON฀ENGAGING฀WITH฀
COMMUNITIES฀WILL฀BE฀AVAILABLE฀FROM฀THE฀
#OMMUNITY฀%NGAGEMENT฀&RAMEWORK�฀
FROM฀/CTOBER฀�����฀7HEN฀CONSIDERING฀
consultation be clear:

฀7HETHER฀THE฀INFORMATION฀IS฀ALREADY฀฀ ฀
     available

฀7HO฀YOU฀NEED฀TO฀CONSULT

฀7HAT฀YOU฀ARE฀ASKING฀

฀(OW฀YOU฀SHOULD฀ASK฀FOR฀THAT฀
information

฀7HAT฀THE฀BENElTS฀ARE฀�IMMEDIATE฀OR฀
LONG
TERM	฀TO฀THE฀COMMUNITIES฀

20

52



Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit   9  

%)!฀mOWCHART
4HE฀IMPORTANCE฀AND฀
value of Equalities Impact 
Assessments (EIAs)

M
o

n
it

o
r 

&
 R

e
v
ie

w
  

Monitor & Review  

A
ct

io
n
 P

la
n
 &

 P
u

b
li
sh

 
A

ss
e
ss

G
a
th

e
r 

In
te

ll
ig

e
n
ce

P
re

p
a
re

St
ep

s 
1-

3
St

ep
s 

4
&

5
St

ep
 6

St
ep

s 
7-

9
St

ep
 1

0

Decide who 
will do the 
assessment

Identify the 
aim/purpose 
of the policy/ 

function

Assess 
relevance to 

equality 
diversity

Identify the 
scope and 

focus of the 
assessment

Assess relevant 
data and research

Undertake and/or 
review consultation

There is an 
adverse impact

Is the adverse 
impact illegal? If it 
is, is it avoidable? Review to see if equality 

can be promoted, make 
adjustments, and then 

publish

Publish results and 
review the assessment 
to see if impact is as 
positive as it can be Take steps to 

remedy, and 
then publish

No adverse 
impact - equality 

not promoted

 No adverse impact 
and it promotes 

equality
Outcome 1.

Assess the impact of 
outcomes

Outcome 3. Outcome 2.

21

53



10   Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit 

3ECTION฀4WO
(OW฀TO฀CONDUCT฀AN฀
Equalities Impact 
Assessment (EIA)

EIAs must be undertaken when:

s฀9OU฀ARE฀DEVELOPING฀A฀NEW฀POLICY฀OR฀REVIEWING�CHANGING฀AN฀EXISTING฀POLICY

s฀9OUR฀SERVICE฀IS฀DUE฀FOR฀AN฀%)!฀UNDER฀THE฀%QUALITIES฀)MPACT฀!SSESSMENT฀TIMETABLE

s฀9OUR฀SERVICE฀UNDERTAKES฀A฀SERVICE฀REVIEW�INSPECTION

s฀9OUR฀SERVICE฀IS฀BEING฀REORGANISED

•฀฀(OW฀AND฀WHEN฀YOU฀WILL฀FEEDBACK฀ON฀ACTIONS฀TO฀BE฀TAKEN฀AS฀A฀RESULT

Equalities considerations paragraphs in committee reports

!LL฀COMMITTEE฀REPORTS฀ARE฀REQUIRED฀TO฀INCLUDE฀A฀PARAGRAPH฀SUMMARISING฀THE฀
REPORT�S฀EQUALITIES฀IMPLICATIONS�฀4HE฀EQUALITIES฀IMPLICATIONS฀SECTION฀ON฀REPORTS฀MUST฀
STATE฀WHETHER฀AN฀%)!฀HAS฀BEEN฀CARRIED฀OUT฀OR฀IS฀DUE฀TO฀BE฀CARRIED฀OUT�฀

)F฀AN฀%)!฀HAS฀NOT฀BEEN฀DONE฀THIS฀SECTION฀MUST฀SAY฀WHY฀NOT฀�FOR฀EXAMPLE�฀s฀
BECAUSE฀OTHER฀PREPARATORY฀WORK฀HAS฀COVERED฀THESE฀ISSUES�฀OR฀THAT฀AN฀EXISTING฀
EVALUATION฀OF฀THE฀SERVICE฀OR฀STRATEGY฀HAS฀IDENTIlED฀THAT฀THERE฀WILL฀BE฀NO฀
equalities impacts). 
)F฀ONE฀IS฀PLANNED฀IT฀MUST฀SAY฀WHEN฀IT฀WILL฀BE฀CARRIED฀OUT฀AND฀HOW฀COUNCILLORS฀s฀
WILL฀BE฀INFORMED฀OF฀ITS฀OUTCOME฀AND฀INVOLVED฀IN฀FURTHER฀DECISION฀MAKING�฀
)F฀AN฀%)!฀HAS฀BEEN฀COMPLETED฀THIS฀SECTION฀MUST฀SUMMARISE฀HOW฀THE฀RESULTS฀OF฀s฀
THE฀ASSESSMENT฀HAVE฀BEEN฀INCORPORATED฀INTO฀THE฀CONTENT฀OF฀THE฀REPORT�฀)T฀MUST฀
ALSO฀STATE฀WHERE฀THE฀%)!฀IS฀BEING�HAS฀BEEN฀PUBLISHED�

The ten steps to undertaking an Equalities Impact Assessment are:

Step 1฀฀ $ECIDE฀WHO฀WILL฀CONTRIBUTE฀TO฀THE฀%)!
Step 2฀฀ )DENTIFY฀THE฀AIMS฀AND฀OBJECTIVES฀AND฀THE฀PURPOSE฀OF฀THE฀POLICY฀OR฀SERVICE
Step 3฀฀ )DENTIFY฀THE฀SCOPE฀AND฀FOCUS฀OF฀THE฀%)!

Step 4฀฀ !SSESS฀RELEVANT฀DATA฀AND�OR฀UNDERTAKE฀RESEARCH
Step 5  Assess and/or undertake consultation

Step 6  Assess impact and outcomes

Step 7  Reduce any adverse impact/promote positive impact 
Step 8  Action planning and sign off
Step 9฀฀ 0UBLISH฀RESULTS

Step 10฀฀ -ONITORING฀AND฀REVIEW

!N฀%)!฀TEMPLATE฀IS฀INCLUDED฀AS฀!PPENDIX฀�฀OF฀THIS฀TOOLKIT�฀)T฀IS฀MEANT฀AS฀A฀GUIDE฀TO฀
ENABLE฀YOU฀TO฀ORGANISE฀THE฀KEY฀INFORMATION�฀)T฀IS฀ESSENTIAL฀THAT฀YOU฀READ฀THROUGH฀
THE฀��฀STEPS฀BELOW฀IN฀DETAIL�฀)T฀IS฀lNE฀FOR฀YOU฀TO฀USE฀ANY฀STRUCTURE฀FOR฀YOUR฀lNAL฀
REPORT฀BUT฀YOU฀MUST฀COVER฀THESE฀KEY฀STEPS฀IN฀APPROPRIATE฀DEPTH�

Prepare

Gather 
Intelligence

Assess

Action Plan 
& Publish

Monitor & 
Review

22

54



Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit   11  

Step 1 Decide who will contribute to the EIA

)DENTIFY฀THE฀PEOPLE฀WHO฀WILL฀LEAD฀AND฀BE฀RESPONSIBLE฀FOR฀UNDERTAKING฀THE฀
%)!฀AND฀OTHER฀PEOPLE฀WHO฀WILL฀CONTRIBUTE฀TO฀THE฀ASSESSMENT�฀4RY฀TO฀GET฀A฀
BALANCE฀OF฀SKILLS฀AND฀EXPERIENCE฀AS฀WELL฀AS฀A฀MIX฀OF฀STAFF฀AT฀DIFFERENT฀LEVELS�฀&OR฀
EXAMPLE�฀YOU฀COULD฀INCLUDE฀SOME฀FRONT
LINE฀STAFF฀�WHO฀DEAL฀WITH฀OUR฀CUSTOMERS฀
FACE฀TO฀FACE฀EVERY฀DAY	฀TO฀GET฀THEIR฀PERSPECTIVE�฀

4HE฀ASSESSMENT฀TEAM฀NEEDS฀ENOUGH฀KNOWLEDGE฀OF฀THE฀SERVICE฀TO฀MAKE฀VALID฀
JUDGEMENTS�฀BUT฀NEEDS฀TO฀BE฀AS฀OBJECTIVE฀AS฀POSSIBLE�฀&OR฀SOME฀ASSESSMENTS�฀
PARTICULARLY฀SMALLER฀ONES�฀IT฀MAY฀BE฀MORE฀APPROPRIATE฀TO฀HAVE฀A฀@VIRTUAL฀TEAM��฀
WITH฀ONE฀OR฀TWO฀PEOPLE฀TAKING฀RESPONSIBILITY฀FOR฀THE฀REVIEW฀BUT฀DRAWING฀ON฀
THE฀KNOWLEDGE฀AND฀EXPERTISE฀OF฀OTHERS฀AS฀AND฀WHEN฀NECESSARY�฀)T฀IS฀IMPORTANT฀
TO฀CONSIDER฀RIGHT฀AT฀THE฀START฀OF฀THE฀REVIEW฀WHO฀YOU฀WILL฀NEED฀TO฀INVOLVE฀SO฀THAT฀
THEY฀CAN฀PLAN฀AND฀PREPARE�฀

4RY฀TO฀AVOID฀DUPLICATION฀BY฀UNDERTAKING฀THE฀ASSESSMENT฀AS฀PART฀OF฀ANOTHER฀
REVIEW�฀&OR฀EXAMPLE�฀IF฀YOU฀ARE฀UNDERTAKING฀A฀SERVICE฀REVIEW฀THIS฀SHOULD฀
INCORPORATE฀THE฀%)!�

Step 2 Identify the aims, objectives and purpose of the 
policy or service

4HE฀AIMS฀AND฀OBJECTIVES฀OF฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀YOU฀ARE฀ASSESSING฀
NEED฀TO฀BE฀CLEARLY฀STATED฀AND฀DOCUMENTED฀AT฀THE฀OUTSET฀OF฀AN฀%)!�฀3ET฀OUT฀
WHAT฀YOU฀WANT฀THE฀POLICY฀OR฀STRATEGY฀TO฀ACHIEVE฀AND฀HOW฀THESE฀AIMS฀WILL฀
BE฀ACHIEVED�฀)F฀YOU฀ARE฀ASSESSING฀A฀SERVICE�฀BE฀CLEAR฀ABOUT฀THE฀PURPOSE฀AND฀
FUNCTION฀OF฀THE฀SERVICE฀�I�E�฀ITS฀AIMS	฀AS฀WELL฀AS฀HOW฀THE฀SERVICE฀OPERATES฀�ITS฀
OBJECTIVES	�

s฀!IMS฀ARE฀GENERAL฀STATEMENTS฀ABOUT฀WHAT฀YOU฀WANT฀THE฀POLICY฀OR฀STRATEGY฀
TO฀ACHIEVE฀OR฀THE฀PURPOSE฀AND฀FUNCTION฀OF฀THE฀SERVICE�

s฀/BJECTIVES฀ARE฀MORE฀SPECIFIC฀STATEMENTS฀SETTING฀OUT฀WHAT฀YOU฀WILL฀DO฀TO฀
ACHIEVE฀YOUR฀AIMS�

0REPARE
Steps in undertaking an 
Equalities Impact Assessment 
of a policy, strategy or service

23

55



12   Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit 

 0RIORITY฀%QUALITY฀3TRANDS ฀3OCIAL฀)NCLUSION฀+EY฀'ROUPS

s฀!GE
s฀$ISABILITY
s฀%THNICITY
s฀'ENDER฀�INCLUDING฀

Transgender)
s฀2ELIGION฀OR฀"ELIEF
s฀3EXUAL฀/RIENTATION

s฀(OMELESS฀PEOPLE
s฀5NEMPLOYED฀PEOPLE
s฀0EOPLE฀EMPLOYED฀ON฀A฀PART
TIME�฀TEMPORARY฀OR฀

casual basis
s฀,ONE฀PARENTS
s฀0EOPLE฀WITH฀CARING฀RESPONSIBILITIES
s฀0EOPLE฀WITH฀MENTAL฀HEALTH฀NEEDS
s฀0EOPLE฀WITH฀SUBSTANCE฀MISUSE฀ISSUES
s฀0EOPLE฀WITH฀()6
s฀2EFUGEES฀�฀ASYLUM฀SEEKERS
s฀%XnOFFENDERS฀AND฀PEOPLE฀WITH฀UNRELATED฀CONVICTIONS
s฀0EOPLE฀EXPERIENCING฀DOMESTIC฀VIOLENCE

!฀CRUCIAL฀ASPECT฀OF฀THE฀REVIEW฀IS฀THE฀
STRENGTH฀OF฀THE฀SCOPING�฀)T฀IS฀IMPORTANT฀
TO฀BE฀CLEAR฀ABOUT฀WHAT฀THE฀%)!฀NEEDS฀TO฀
COVER�฀9OU฀WILL฀NEED฀TO฀ASK�

s฀#OULD฀THIS฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀
affect some groups in society 
DIFFERENTLY�

s฀7ILL฀IT฀PROMOTE฀EQUAL฀OPPORTUNITIES฀
FOR฀THESE฀GROUPS�

4HE฀KEY฀GROUPS฀COVERED฀BY฀OUR฀
%QUALITIES฀�฀)NCLUSION฀0OLICY฀ARE฀SET฀OUT฀
above.

.OT฀ALL฀OF฀THESE฀GROUPS฀WILL฀ALWAYS฀BE฀
RELEVANT�฀$ElNE฀THE฀RELEVANT฀GROUPS฀FOR฀
THE฀SPECIlC฀POLICY�฀FUNCTION฀OR฀SERVICE฀
AND฀ADD฀THEM฀TO฀THE฀TEMPLATE฀AT฀
Appendix 1. 

.�"�฀0EOPLE฀MAY฀FALL฀INTO฀MORE฀THAN฀ONE฀
OF฀THESE฀GROUPS฀AND฀THEN฀POTENTIALLY฀
face multiple discrimination.

9OU฀WILL฀NEED฀TO฀CONSIDER฀PEOPLE฀FROM฀
THESE฀GROUPS฀AS฀SERVICE฀USERS�฀STAFF฀AND฀
THE฀WIDER฀COMMUNITY�฀9OU฀MAY฀ALSO฀
NEED฀TO฀INCLUDE฀OTHER฀STAKEHOLDERS฀SUCH฀
as partners or contractors/suppliers.

)T฀IS฀ESSENTIAL฀THAT฀YOU฀CONSIDER฀THE฀
POTENTIAL฀FOR฀DISCRIMINATION฀UNDER฀THE฀
legislation listed earlier.

3TEP฀� Identify the scope and focus of the EIA

1.฀$OES฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀OR฀ITS฀
IMPLEMENTATION฀DIRECTLY฀DISCRIMINATE�

2.฀$OES฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀
indirectly discriminate on grounds of race, 
gender, disability, age, sexual orientation, 
RELIGION฀OR฀BELIEF�฀

)N฀ASSESSING฀INDIRECT฀DISCRIMINATION฀
CONSIDER�

s฀DOES฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀IN฀ITS฀
intention or implementation target or 
EXCLUDE฀A฀SPECIFIC฀EQUALITY฀CATEGORY�฀)S฀
THIS฀JUSTIFIED�฀

s฀DOES฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀IN฀ITS฀
intention or implementation affect some 
EQUALITY฀CATEGORIES฀DISPROPORTIONATELY�฀)S฀
THIS฀JUSTIFIED�

s฀IS฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀LIKELY฀TO฀
be equally accessed by people from all 
EQUALITY฀CATEGORIES�฀)F฀NOT�฀CAN฀THIS฀BE฀
JUSTIFIED�

s฀ARE฀THERE฀BARRIERS฀THAT฀MIGHT฀INHIBIT฀ACCESS฀
TO฀THE฀SERVICE฀OR฀THE฀BENEFITS฀OF฀THE฀POLICY�฀
STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE�฀

#ONSIDER�
s฀#OMMUNICATION฀AND฀INFORMATION  e.g. 

WILL฀INFORMATION฀ABOUT฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀
or service be available in alternative 
FORMATS�฀7ILL฀$EAF฀AND฀DISABLED฀
people be able to easily contact and 
COMMUNICATE฀WITH฀THE฀SERVICE�

24

56



Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit   13  

0REPARE
Steps in undertaking an 
Equalities Impact Assessment 
of a policy, strategy or service

s฀0HYSICAL฀ACCESS – e.g. can disabled 
PEOPLE฀ACCESS฀THE฀SERVICE�

s฀,OCATION฀n฀E�G�฀IS฀THE฀SERVICE฀
LOCATED฀IN฀AN฀AREA฀ACCESSIBLE฀TO฀THE฀
EQUALITY฀CATEGORIES฀THAT฀IT฀SERVES�

s฀!PPROPRIATENESS฀– e.g. is 
THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀
APPROPRIATE฀TO฀THE฀NEEDS฀AND฀
CULTURES฀OF฀THE฀EQUALITY฀CATEGORIES�฀
E�G�฀RELIGIOUS฀NEEDS�

s฀2ESTRICTIVE฀FACTORS฀n฀E�G�฀ARE฀THERE฀
any restrictive factors in relation to 
THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀THAT฀
MIGHT฀LEAD฀TO฀A฀NEGATIVE฀IMPACT฀
for some or all equality categories, 
E�G�฀NATIONAL฀LEGISLATION฀THAT฀TAKES฀
precedent over equality legislation 
SUCH฀AS฀!SYLUM฀AND฀)MMIGRATION฀
,EGISLATION�฀STATUTORY฀CHARGING฀
STRUCTURE�฀ETC�

s฀3TAFFING฀ISSUES฀ARE฀AN฀IMPORTANT฀
PART฀OF฀YOUR฀%)!฀n฀THIS฀WOULD฀
INCLUDE฀LOOKING฀AT฀YOUR฀WORKFORCE฀
PROFILE฀AND฀CONSIDERING฀WHETHER฀
THERE฀ARE฀ANY฀SPECIFIC฀EQUALITIES฀
issues in relation to service delivery 
and your staff.

3. In addition to identifying any 
adverse impacts you also need to 
CONSIDER฀THE฀positive impacts of 
your policy, strategy or service on all 
THE฀EQUALITY฀STRANDS�฀&OR฀EXAMPLE฀YOU฀
MIGHT฀CONSIDER�฀

s฀HOW฀YOUR฀COMMUNICATIONS�฀LEAFLETS฀
and advertising promote equality, 
reflect diversity and demonstrate 
THAT฀YOUR฀SERVICE฀IS฀ACCESSIBLE฀TO฀ALL฀
groups; 

s฀MAKING฀LINKS฀WITH฀LOCAL฀COMMUNITY฀
OR฀VOLUNTARY฀SECTOR฀GROUPS฀WHO฀
provide similar services to specific 
EQUALITIES฀GROUPS฀TO฀SHARE฀GOOD฀

practice and ideas; 

s฀TAKING฀POSITIVE฀ACTION฀IN฀
advertising services or 
employment possibilities via local 
voluntary and community sector 
groups; 

s฀WHAT฀TRAINEESHIPS฀OR฀
APPRENTICESHIPS฀YOU฀MAY฀BE฀
able to offer to people from 
under-represented groups and/
OR฀WHETHER฀YOU฀COULD฀OFFER฀
placement opportunities to people 
from disadvantaged groups 
LOOKING฀TO฀GET฀BACK฀INTO฀WORK�฀

&URTHER฀ADVICE฀IS฀AVAILABLE฀FROM฀YOUR฀
#OMMUNICATIONS�฀(2฀OR฀%QUALITIES฀�฀
Inclusion Team contact.

4.฀4AKE฀A฀PROPORTIONATE฀APPROACH฀
n฀ASSESSING฀THE฀EQUALITIES฀IMPACT฀OF฀
THE฀POLICY฀SHOULD฀BE฀PROPORTIONATE฀
TO฀THE฀LIKELY฀IMPACT฀OF฀THE฀POLICY�฀
STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE�฀)SSUES฀YOU฀SHOULD฀
CONSIDER฀INCLUDE�฀THE฀NUMBER฀OF฀
PEOPLE฀LIKELY฀TO฀BE฀AFFECTED�฀THE฀SIZE฀
OF฀THE฀BUDGET�AMOUNT฀OF฀MONEY฀
INVOLVED�฀THE฀EXTENT฀OF฀THE฀PROPOSED฀
CHANGE�฀AND฀THE฀WIDER฀PUBLIC฀POLICY฀
IMPLICATIONS�฀4HIS฀MEANS฀YOU฀WILL฀
MORE฀RIGOROUSLY฀ASSESS฀POLICIES฀WHICH฀
ARE฀LIKELY฀TO฀HAVE฀A฀SIGNIFICANT฀IMPACT฀
ON฀THE฀LOCAL฀COMMUNITY�

5.฀4HINK฀ABOUT฀THE฀EQUALITIES฀
implications at all stages of 
PROCUREMENT฀
฀FROM฀SPECIFYING฀THE฀
SERVICE฀YOU฀WANT�฀TO฀LETTING฀CONTRACTS�฀
to tendering, to monitoring actual 
DELIVERY�฀)F฀YOU฀HAVE฀SERVICES฀WHICH฀
are externally provided, bring 
PARTNERS฀INTO฀THE฀%)!฀PROCESS�

25

57



14   Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit 

Data sources to be considered should 
include:

s฀quantitative data฀n฀DATA฀THAT฀PROVIDES฀
numerical information, e.g. 

 7ITHIN฀THE฀SERVICE� number of users/
non-users, case outcomes, complaints and 
SATISFACTION฀LEVELS฀BROKEN฀DOWN฀BY฀EQUALITY฀
strand, monitoring of contracts 

 /UTSIDE฀THE฀SERVICE� population 
FIGURES�฀OTHER฀CENSUS฀DATA�฀)NDICES฀OF฀
-ULTIPLE฀$EPRIVATION฀INFORMATION�฀ANNUAL฀
government returns, local surveys 
UNDERTAKEN฀WITH฀OR฀BY฀COMMUNITY฀GROUPS

s฀qualitative data฀n฀DATA฀THAT฀REVEALS฀
PEOPLE�S฀PERCEPTIONS฀AND฀VIEWS฀OF฀
THE฀SERVICE฀OR฀POLICY�฀E�G�฀ANALYSIS฀OF฀
complaints, outcomes of focus group 
discussions, customer or opinion surveys, 
MONITORING฀THE฀EFFECTS฀OF฀SERVICE฀CHANGE฀
across different groups

s฀demographic data฀ON฀THE฀LOCAL฀
POPULATION฀n฀COMMUNITY฀AND฀WORKFORCE

)T฀MAY฀BE฀THAT�฀WHEN฀UNDERTAKING฀YOUR฀lRST฀
%)!�฀YOU฀lND฀THAT฀THERE฀IS฀LITTLE฀OR฀NO฀DATA฀
AVAILABLE฀WHICH฀CAN฀BE฀ANALYSED฀TO฀SHOW฀
PEOPLE฀BY฀EQUALITIES฀GROUP�฀)F฀SO�฀THE฀REVIEW฀
TEAM฀SHOULD฀CLEARLY฀IDENTIFY฀AND฀DOCUMENT฀
GAPS฀AND฀INADEQUACIES฀IN฀DATA�฀EXPLAIN฀HOW฀
THESE฀WILL฀BE฀ADDRESSED฀AND฀HOW฀FUTURE฀
IMPACT฀WILL฀BE฀MONITORED�฀4HIS฀CAN฀THEN฀FORM฀
part of your EIA action plan.

Step 4 Assess relevant data and/or undertake research

-ANAGERS฀NEED฀TO฀DECIDE฀AND฀DOCUMENT฀WHAT฀DATA฀AND฀MONITORING฀INFORMATION฀IS฀TO฀BE฀
EXAMINED฀IN฀ORDER฀TO฀MAKE฀A฀JUDGEMENT฀ABOUT฀THE฀IMPACT฀OF฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀
UPON฀THE฀EQUALITY฀CATEGORIES฀AND฀GROUPS฀WITHIN฀THEM�฀%QUALITIES฀MONITORING฀GUIDANCE฀IS฀
AVAILABLE฀ON฀THE฀COUNCIL�S฀INTRANET�฀OR฀FROM฀THE฀%QUALITIES฀AND฀)NCLUSION฀TEAM�฀

Resources to help with data and 
information

4HE฀COUNCIL฀PUBLISHES฀A฀WIDE฀RANGE฀OF฀
DATA฀AND฀INFORMATION�฀MUCH฀OF฀WHICH฀CAN฀
BE฀SPLIT฀INTO฀THE฀EQUALITIES฀GROUPS�฀9OU฀
CAN฀lND฀THIS฀ON฀THE฀COUNCIL�S฀WEBSITE�฀
ON฀THE฀INTRANET฀OR฀IN฀HARD฀COPY฀FROM฀THE฀
performance/information officers (contact 
X฀����	�฀)N฀/CTOBER฀����฀A฀SYSTEM฀CALLED฀
"(,)33฀IS฀LAUNCHED฀ON฀THE฀COUNCIL�S฀WEBSITE�฀
4HIS฀WILL฀SHOW฀CITY฀WARD฀PROlLES฀THAT฀GIVE฀
DEMOGRAPHIC฀INFORMATION฀AND฀A฀GENERAL฀
BREAK฀DOWN฀OF฀INFORMATION฀BY฀WARD�฀
INCLUDING฀NATIONAL฀INDICATORS฀RELEVANT฀TO฀THE฀
local area. 

)N฀ADDITION฀TO฀THE฀ABOVE฀INFORMATION�฀THE฀
COUNCIL฀WORKED฀WITH฀THE฀����฀#OMMUNITY฀
0ARTNERSHIP฀TO฀PRODUCE฀THE฀2EDUCING฀
)NEQUALITY฀2EVIEW�฀INFORMATION฀AND฀EVIDENCE฀
OF฀INEQUALITY฀AND฀DISADVANTAGE฀ACROSS฀THE฀
CITY�฀4HE฀PROCESS฀AND฀RESULTS฀OF฀THIS฀REVIEW฀
CAN฀BE฀FOUND฀ON฀THE฀COUNCIL�S฀WEBSITE�฀
HTTP���WWW�BRIGHTON
HOVE�GOV�UK�INDEX�
CFM�REQUEST�C�������� 

7HEN฀SEEKING฀NEW฀INFORMATION฀AND฀DATA�฀
YOU฀SHOULD฀FOLLOW฀THE฀COUNCIL�S฀%QUALITIES฀
-ONITORING฀'UIDELINES�฀WHICH฀ARE฀AVAILABLE฀
ON฀THE฀INTRANET�฀9OU฀SHOULD฀ALSO฀CONSIDER฀
THE฀USE฀OF฀NATIONAL฀DATA฀AND฀INFORMATION฀
including guidance from professional bodies 
THAT฀COULD฀BE฀RELEVANT฀TO฀YOUR฀SERVICE฀AREA�

26

58



Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit   15  

#ONSIDER฀THE฀FOLLOWING฀BEFORE฀
UNDERTAKING฀CONSULTATION�

A	฀฀2EVIEW฀THE฀RESULTS฀OF฀PREVIOUS฀CONSULTATION฀
EXERCISES฀TO฀SEE฀IF฀WE฀ALREADY฀HAVE฀RECENT฀
RELEVANT฀CONSULTATION฀DATA�฀)F฀WE฀DO฀HAVE฀
SUCH฀DATA�฀ANALYSE฀WHETHER฀THERE฀ARE฀
ANY฀GAPS฀n฀HOW฀COULD฀CONSULTATION฀BEST฀
be focused to fill any gaps in existing 
INFORMATION�฀9OU฀CAN฀FIND฀DETAILS฀OF฀
PREVIOUS฀CONSULTATIONS฀ON฀THE฀

฀ COUNCIL�S฀WEBSITE�
 
฀ %NSURE฀THAT฀YOU฀USE฀INFORMATION฀THAT฀IS฀

relevant and not out of date. (Remember 
THAT฀SOME฀INFORMATION฀DATES฀QUICKLY฀AND฀
OTHER฀INFORMATION฀IS฀VALID฀FOR฀LONGER	�฀

B	฀฀#ONSIDER฀WHETHER฀OTHERS฀IN฀THE฀COUNCIL฀
MAY฀ALSO฀WANT฀TO฀UNDERTAKE฀CONSULTATION฀
AND�฀WHERE฀POSSIBLE�฀LOOK฀FOR฀OPPORTUNITIES฀
FOR฀JOINT฀CONSULTATION฀PERHAPS฀THROUGH฀
YOUR฀$IRECTORATE฀%QUALITIES฀'ROUP฀OR฀
representative. 

C	฀฀$ECIDE฀ON฀THE฀FOCUS฀OF฀THE฀CONSULTATION฀
(refer back to scope/key issues/factors 
OF฀AN฀%)!฀IN฀3TEP฀�	�฀4HE฀EXTENT฀OF฀
THE฀CONSULTATION฀EXERCISE฀SHOULD฀BE฀IN฀

PROPORTION฀TO฀THE฀EFFECT฀THAT฀THE฀POLICY�฀
STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀IS฀LIKELY฀TO฀HAVE�

D	฀฀$ECIDE฀WHICH฀EQUALITY฀GROUPS฀OR฀SOCIAL฀
inclusion key groups may be affected by 
THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀AND฀SHOULD฀
THEREFORE฀BE฀CONSULTED�฀4HIS฀IS฀LIKELY฀TO฀BE฀
all equality groups.

E	฀฀)T฀IS฀IMPORTANT฀TO฀REMEMBER฀THAT฀EQUALITY฀
GROUPS฀ARE฀NOT฀HOMOGENEOUS฀n฀YOU฀MAY฀
NEED฀TO฀CONSULT฀MORE฀THAN฀ONE฀GROUP฀IN฀
EACH฀EQUALITY฀GROUP�฀E�G�฀YOU฀MAY฀NEED฀
TO฀CONSULT฀WITH฀A฀NUMBER฀OF฀"LACK฀AND฀
-INORITY฀%THNIC฀COMMUNITIES฀OR฀DIFFERENT฀
GROUPS฀OF฀DISABLED฀PEOPLE�฀RATHER฀THAN฀JUST฀
one.

F	฀฀ 2ECORD฀WHICH฀GROUPS฀WERE฀CONSULTED฀AND฀
WHY�฀AND฀ALSO฀WHY฀OTHER฀GROUPS฀WERE฀NOT฀
consulted.

G	฀฀4HE฀SCOPE฀AND฀FORMAT฀OF฀THE฀CONSULTATION฀
WILL฀DEPEND฀ON�

s฀THE฀FOCUS฀OF฀THE฀CONSULTATION฀AND฀WHAT฀
YOU฀WANT฀TO฀CONSULT฀ON฀

s฀THE฀LEVEL฀OF฀RESOURCES฀AVAILABLE�

'ATHER฀)NTELLIGENCE

Steps in undertaking an EIA 
of a policy, strategy or service

Step 5 Assess and/or undertake consultation

%)!S฀MUST฀BE฀INFORMED฀BY฀CONSULTATION฀n฀IF฀YOU฀HAVE฀RELEVANT฀RECENT฀CONSULTATION฀DATA฀WHICH฀
CAN฀BE฀ANALYSED฀BY฀THE฀DIFFERENT฀EQUALITIES฀GROUPS�฀YOU฀CAN฀USE฀THAT�฀)F฀YOU฀DO฀NOT�฀THEN฀YOU฀
WILL฀HAVE฀TO฀UNDERTAKE฀CONSULTATION฀AS฀PART฀OF฀THE฀ASSESSMENT฀PROCESS�

4HOSE฀WHO฀ARE฀LIKELY฀TO฀BE฀DIRECTLY฀AFFECTED฀BY฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀SHOULD฀BE฀
consulted, i.e.

s฀USERS฀AND฀POTENTIAL฀SERVICE฀USERS฀FROM฀EQUALITIES฀GROUPS

s฀APPROPRIATE฀STAFF฀�MAY฀INCLUDE฀STAFF฀FORUMS	

s฀RELEVANT฀INTEREST฀GROUPS฀OR฀OTHERS฀AFFECTED฀�EG�฀#OUNCILLORS�฀PARTNER฀AGENCIES	�

27

59



16   Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit 

H	฀฀$ECIDE฀HOW฀YOU฀WILL฀CONSULT�฀4HERE฀ARE฀
DIFFERENT฀WAYS฀OF฀CONSULTING฀OR฀ENGAGING฀
WITH฀PEOPLE�฀-AKE฀SURE฀YOUR฀CONSULTATION฀
IS฀APPROPRIATE฀TO฀THE฀NATURE฀OF฀THE฀POLICY�฀
SERVICE฀OR฀STRATEGY฀AND฀THE฀TARGET฀AUDIENCE�฀
You could use:

s฀FOCUS฀GROUPS

s฀SURVEYS�QUESTIONNAIRES

s฀OPEN฀MEETINGS

s฀INTERVIEWS฀WITH฀COMMUNITY฀GROUPS

I	฀฀ 0LAN฀ENOUGH฀TIME฀FOR฀EFFECTIVE฀AND฀
meaningful consultation. Adequate time 
SHOULD฀BE฀ALLOWED฀FOR฀GROUPS฀TO฀CONSULT฀
AMONGST฀THEMSELVES฀AS฀PART฀OF฀THE฀PROCESS฀
OF฀FORMING฀A฀VIEW�

J	฀฀ #ONSULTATION฀EXERCISES฀SHOULD฀BE฀ACCESSIBLE฀
to all equalities group, e.g. large print used 
FOR฀WRITTEN฀EXERCISES�฀CLEAR฀LANGUAGE฀AND฀
interpreters at public meetings, availability 
OF฀TRANSLATIONS฀FOR฀WRITTEN฀MATERIALS�฀
accessible venues for public meetings, 
PROVISION฀OF฀CRÒCHE฀FACILITIES�฀ETC�

'ENERALLY�฀YOU฀SHOULD฀TRY฀TO฀MAKE฀YOUR฀CONSULTATION฀AS฀REPRESENTATIVE฀AS฀POSSIBLE�฀(OWEVER�฀YOU฀
MIGHT฀NOT฀ALWAYS฀GET฀A฀REPRESENTATIVE฀RETURN�฀SO฀IT฀IS฀IMPORTANT฀TO฀BE฀ABLE฀TO฀UNDERSTAND฀HOW฀
REPRESENTATIVE฀YOUR฀SAMPLE฀IS�฀#OMPARING฀YOUR฀SAMPLE฀WITH฀THE฀LOCAL฀DEMOGRAPHIC฀PROlLES฀WILL฀
HELP฀YOU฀TO฀UNDERSTAND฀THIS�฀

&OR฀SOME฀CONSULTATIONS฀YOU฀NEED฀TO฀TARGET฀SPECIlC฀GROUPS�฀BUT฀YOU฀WILL฀NEED฀TO฀CONSIDER฀THE฀
DIFFERENT฀EQUALITIES฀GROUPS฀WITHIN฀THAT฀GROUP�฀&OR฀EXAMPLE�฀YOU฀MAY฀HAVE฀IDENTIlED฀A฀NEED฀
TO฀CONSULT฀WITH฀PEOPLE฀FROM฀A฀PARTICULAR฀MINORITY฀ETHNIC฀COMMUNITY�฀BUT฀YOU฀WILL฀STILL฀NEED฀TO฀
CONSIDER฀HOW฀YOU฀CAN฀MAKE฀CONSULTATION฀ACCESSIBLE฀TO฀�FOR฀EXAMPLE	฀DISABLED฀PEOPLE฀FROM฀THAT฀
community. 

28

60



Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit   17  

Step 6 Assess impact and outcomes

(AVING฀REVIEWED฀RELEVANT฀DATA฀SOURCES�฀
DECIDE฀WHETHER฀OR฀NOT฀THERE฀IS฀AN฀ADVERSE฀
IMPACT฀ON฀ANY฀OF฀THE฀EQUALITIES฀GROUPS฀
OR฀SUB
GROUPS฀WITHIN฀THEM�฀!LSO฀THINK฀
ABOUT฀WHETHER฀YOU฀HAVE฀MADE฀THE฀MOST฀OF฀
OPPORTUNITIES฀TO฀HAVE฀A฀POSITIVE฀IMPACT�

An impact is defined as an intentional 
or unintentional lasting consequence or 
SIGNIlCANT฀CHANGE฀IN฀PEOPLE�S฀LIVES฀BROUGHT฀
about by a policy action or series of actions. 
)NITIALLY฀YOU฀WILL฀BE฀CONCERNED฀TO฀ENSURE฀THAT฀
THERE฀ARE฀NO฀ADVERSE฀IMPACTS�฀I�E�฀WHERE฀THE฀
EFFECT฀IS฀NEGATIVE฀AND฀POTENTIALLY฀UNLAWFUL�฀
(OWEVER�฀YOU฀SHOULD฀ALSO฀CELEBRATE฀AND฀
PROMOTE฀POSITIVE฀IMPACTS฀THAT฀YOU฀IDENTIFY฀
THROUGH฀THE฀ASSESSMENT�

9OU฀WILL฀ALSO฀NEED฀TO฀CONSIDER฀WHETHER฀
a different impact is an adverse one. For 
example, due to varying demands you may 
DISCOVER฀THAT฀DIFFERENT฀GROUPS฀WANT฀DIFFERENT฀
services. Your policy, strategy or service 
MAY฀WELL฀PROVIDE฀A฀DIFFERENTIAL฀OUTCOME�฀
0ROVIDED฀THAT฀THERE฀IS฀NOT฀AN฀ADVERSE฀IMPACT฀
on any group, different impacts are normally 
ACCEPTABLE�฀7HEN฀CONSIDERING฀ADVERSE฀
IMPACT�฀THE฀REVIEW฀TEAM฀SHOULD฀ANSWER฀THE฀
FOLLOWING฀QUESTIONS�

Assess

Steps in undertaking 
an Equalities Impact 
Assessment of a policy, 
strategy or service

A	฀฀$OES฀THE฀%)!฀REVEAL฀THAT�

s฀ THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀UNLAWFULLY฀
DISCRIMINATES�

s฀ THERE฀IS฀AN฀ADVERSE฀IMPACT฀UPON฀ONE฀OR฀
more equality categories or groups 

฀ WITHIN฀THEM�

s฀ THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀FAILS฀TO฀
PROMOTE฀EQUALITY฀OF฀ACCESS฀OR฀OPPORTUNITY�

s฀ SOME฀EQUALITY฀CATEGORIES฀OR฀GROUPS฀WITHIN฀
THEM฀ARE�฀OR฀MAY฀BE�฀EXCLUDED฀FROM฀
ACCESSING฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE�

s฀ THERE฀ARE฀BARRIERS฀TO฀CERTAIN฀COMMUNITIES฀
ENJOYING฀THE฀BENEFITS฀OF฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀
OR฀SERVICE�

s฀ THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀DISADVANTAGES฀
ONE฀OR฀MORE฀OF฀THE฀EQUALITIES฀GROUPS฀
OR฀SUB
GROUPS฀WITHIN฀THEM฀�E�G�฀WITHIN฀
THE฀,'"4฀COMMUNITY฀IS฀ONE฀GROUP฀MORE฀
DISADVANTAGED฀THAN฀ANOTHER�฀&OR฀EXAMPLE�฀
lesbians or trans-people or disabled LGBT 
people)

s฀ THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀CHALLENGES฀OR฀
REINFORCES฀STEREOTYPES�฀

s฀ THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀GIVES฀
DIFFERENT฀GROUPS฀REAL฀CHOICES�

B	฀฀)F฀THERE฀IS฀AN฀ADVERSE฀IMPACT฀IN฀RELATION฀TO฀
ANY฀OF฀THE฀ABOVE�฀CAN฀THIS฀BE฀JUSTIFIED�

฀ 0LEASE฀DO฀NOT฀WORRY฀IF฀YOU฀FIND฀AN฀ACTUAL฀
OR฀POTENTIAL฀ADVERSE฀IMPACT�฀4HE฀PURPOSE฀
OF฀THE฀%)!฀IS฀TO฀USE฀A฀ROBUST฀PROCESS฀TO฀
HIGHLIGHT฀SUCH฀ADVERSE฀IMPACTS฀SO฀THAT฀THEY฀
can be addressed, removed or reduced.

29

61



18   Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit 

Having completed the assessment of impact, what are the possible 
outcomes and what should you do next? 

4HERE฀ARE฀�฀POSSIBLE฀OUTCOMES�

/UTCOME฀��฀฀4HE฀%)!฀SHOWS฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀IS฀NOT฀LIKELY฀TO฀
result in adverse impact for any group and does promote equal 
opportunities.

Action:฀฀ 9OU฀MUST฀SEEK฀FORMAL฀AGREEMENT฀AND฀THEN฀PUBLISH฀THE฀RESULTS฀
OF฀YOUR฀%)!฀AND฀ENSURE฀YOU฀HAVE฀MONITORING฀AND฀REVIEW฀
ARRANGEMENTS฀IN฀PLACE�฀4HIS฀WILL฀ENABLE฀YOU฀TO฀CHECK฀THAT฀THE฀
outcome you expect is delivered.

/UTCOME฀��฀4HE฀%)!฀SHOWS฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀IS฀NOT฀LIKELY฀TO฀
result in adverse impact for any group but does not promote 
equal opportunities.

Action:฀฀ $ECIDING฀THAT฀A฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀HAS฀A฀NEUTRAL฀
EQUALITIES฀IMPACT฀MAY฀BE฀ACCEPTABLE�฀BUT฀YOU฀SHOULD฀CHECK฀
AGAIN฀WHETHER฀YOU฀COULD฀PROMOTE฀EQUALITIES฀AND฀DIVERSITY฀
WITHIN฀IT�฀9OU฀SHOULD฀DISCUSS฀THE฀OUTCOME฀WITH฀YOUR฀DIRECTORATE฀
EQUALITIES฀LEAD฀OR฀THE฀%QUALITIES฀3TEERING฀'ROUP฀MEMBERS�฀
(AVING฀DONE฀THAT�฀YOU฀MUST฀SEEK฀FORMAL฀AGREEMENT�฀THEN฀
PUBLISH฀THE฀RESULTS฀OF฀YOUR฀%)!฀AND฀ENSURE฀YOU฀HAVE฀MONITORING฀
AND฀REVIEW฀ARRANGEMENTS฀IN฀PLACE�฀4HIS฀WILL฀ENABLE฀YOU฀TO฀
CHECK฀THAT฀THE฀OUTCOME฀YOU฀EXPECT฀IS฀DELIVERED�฀

Outcome 3:฀฀4HE฀%)!฀SHOWS฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀IS฀LIKELY฀TO฀HAVE฀AN฀
adverse impact on particular equalities group or groups.

Action:฀฀ 9OU฀SHOULD฀CONSIDER฀CAREFULLY�

A	฀฀ WHETHER฀THE฀POLICY฀IS฀LEGAL฀n฀YOU฀MAY฀NEED฀SPECIALIST฀
legal advice (see Support to Impact Assessors)

B	฀฀HOW฀TO฀REDUCE฀ANY฀ADVERSE฀IMPACT฀n฀SEE฀STEP฀�฀BELOW�

9OU฀SHOULD฀THEN฀SEEK฀FORMAL฀AGREEMENT�฀PUBLISH฀THE฀RESULTS฀OF฀YOUR฀%)!฀AND฀
ENSURE฀YOU฀HAVE฀MONITORING฀AND฀REVIEW฀ARRANGEMENTS฀IN฀PLACE�฀4HIS฀WILL฀
ENABLE฀YOU฀TO฀CHECK฀THAT฀THE฀OUTCOME฀YOU฀EXPECT฀IS฀DELIVERED�฀.OTE�฀STEPS฀
�
�฀ARE฀REQUIRED฀BEFORE฀4-4�#ABINET฀STAGE�฀4HE฀REMAINING฀STEPS฀MAY฀BE฀
COMPLETED฀AFTER฀THIS�

30

62



Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit   19  

3TEP฀�฀Reduce any adverse impact / 
promote positive impact

5NDER฀THE฀FOLLOWING฀CIRCUMSTANCES�฀MANAGERS฀
MUST฀CONSIDER฀OPTIONS฀FOR฀CHANGING฀THE฀
policy, strategy or service in order to reduce 
THE฀ADVERSE฀EFFECT�฀

s฀ IF฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀IS฀LIKELY฀
TO฀LEAD฀TO฀UNLAWFUL฀DISCRIMINATION฀
฀CAN฀
ANOTHER฀WAY฀BE฀FOUND฀TO฀MEET฀THE฀POLICY฀
OR฀SERVICE฀OBJECTIVES�

s฀ IF฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀AFFECTS฀
PEOPLE฀ADVERSELY฀
฀CAN฀THIS฀BE฀JUSTIFIED฀BY฀
THE฀OVERALL฀AIMS�฀#AN฀AN฀ADVERSE฀IMPACT฀
BE฀OVERCOME฀IF฀WE฀ADAPT฀THE฀POLICY�฀
STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE�

s฀ IF฀THE฀ASSESSMENT฀REVEALS฀THAT฀SOME฀
GROUPS฀WITHIN฀THE฀EQUALITIES฀GROUPS฀FACE฀
PARTICULAR฀BARRIERS฀OR฀HAVE฀DIFFERENT฀NEEDS฀
CAN฀THESE฀BE฀ADDRESSED�฀EITHER฀WITHIN฀THE฀
policy, strategy or service or by separate 
MEANS�

s฀ WILL฀NEW฀CHANGES฀TO฀THE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀
OR฀SERVICE฀BE฀SIGNIFICANT�฀)F฀SO�฀ADDITIONAL฀
CONSULTATION฀MAY฀HAVE฀TO฀BE฀UNDERTAKEN�

7HERE฀THE฀ADVERSE฀IMPACT฀IS฀UNLAWFUL�฀THE฀
policy, strategy or service or an element of it 
MUST฀BE฀CHANGED฀OR฀ABANDONED�฀-ANAGERS฀
MUST฀ENSURE฀THAT฀AN฀OPTION฀FOR฀MINIMISING฀
an adverse impact on a particular group 
does not in turn create an adverse impact 
FOR฀ANOTHER฀GROUP�฀)N฀THESE฀CIRCUMSTANCES฀
THE฀OPTION฀CHOSEN฀SHOULD฀BE฀THAT฀WHICH฀
promotes social inclusion and equality 
of opportunity. If an adverse impact is 
UNAVOIDABLE�฀THEN฀IT฀MUST฀BE฀JUSTIlED฀�E�G�฀
BY฀OTHER฀LEGISLATION฀OVERRIDING฀EQUALITY฀
legislation). 

Some policies, strategies or services are 
TARGETED฀AT฀PARTICULAR฀GROUPS฀AND฀THESE฀
BY฀DElNITION฀WILL฀HAVE฀DIFFERENTIAL฀IMPACT�฀

!CTION฀0LAN฀�฀0UBLISH
Steps in undertaking an EIA of 
a policy/strategy or service

$IFFERENTIAL฀IMPACT฀CAN฀BE฀JUSTIlED฀AS฀PART฀
OF฀A฀WIDER฀STRATEGY฀OF฀POSITIVE฀OR฀AFlRMATIVE฀
action in relation to particular groups, 
WHERE฀POLICY�฀STRATEGY฀OR฀SERVICE฀PROVISION฀
is intended to encourage equality of 
OPPORTUNITY฀FOR฀A฀PARTICULAR฀GROUP�฀7HERE฀THIS฀
IS฀THE฀CASE�฀IT฀IS฀NECESSARY฀TO฀JUSTIFY฀ACTIONS฀
and provide a clear and legal rationale for 
THEM�฀

Step 8 Action Planning & Sign Off

Your completed EIA needs to set out very 
CLEARLY฀ANY฀ACTIONS฀YOU฀HAVE฀IDENTIlED฀AS฀A฀
RESULT฀OF฀UNDERTAKING฀THE฀%)!�฀)T�S฀IMPORTANT฀
THAT฀YOUR฀!CTION฀0LAN฀CORRESPONDS฀TO฀THE฀
lNDINGS฀OF฀YOUR฀SCOPING฀EXERCISE�฀)T฀SHOULD฀
ALSO฀TAKE฀ACCOUNT฀OF฀THE฀EXPERIENCES฀AND฀
effects of multiple discrimination and actions 
THAT฀CUT฀ACROSS฀EQUALITY฀STRANDS�฀!DDITIONALLY�฀
IN฀TERMS฀OF฀CROSS
REFERENCING฀WITH฀SERVICES฀
AND฀STRATEGIC฀PLANS�฀WE฀WOULD฀SUGGEST฀THAT฀
MANAGERS฀CROSS
REFERENCE฀THEIR฀ACTIONS฀TO฀THE฀
#ORPORATE฀0LAN฀AND฀$IRECTORATE฀0LAN�฀WHERE฀
appropriate.

4HE฀ACTION฀PLAN฀ARISING฀FROM฀YOUR฀%)!฀
SHOULD฀INCLUDE�

s฀฀ ISSUES฀IDENTIFIED฀AND฀EQUALITIES฀
 group(s) affected

s฀฀ ACTION฀TO฀BE฀TAKEN

s฀฀ WHEN

s฀฀ BY฀WHOM

s฀฀ EXPECTED฀OUTCOME

s฀฀ FEED฀DIRECTLY฀INTO฀SERVICE฀AND�OR฀
 directorate plan 

/NCE฀THE฀%)!฀IS฀COMPLETED฀IT฀MUST฀BE฀SIGNED

OFF฀BY฀THE฀APPROPRIATE฀!SSISTANT฀$IRECTOR฀AND฀
TAKEN฀TO฀$-4�฀4HIS฀WILL฀ENABLE฀CROSS
CUTTING฀
ISSUES฀TO฀BE฀TACKLED�฀4HE฀%QUALITIES฀�฀)NCLUSION฀
4EAM฀WILL฀THEN฀PROVIDE฀A฀QUALITY฀CHECK�

31

63



20   Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit 

Step 9 Publication of results

2ESULTS฀OF฀%)!S฀ARE฀REQUIRED฀BY฀LAW฀TO฀BE฀PUBLISHED฀AND฀PUBLICLY฀AVAILABLE�฀4HE฀
REPORT฀OF฀THE฀%)!฀SHOULD฀DETAIL฀HOW฀AND฀WHERE฀THE฀RESULTS฀WILL฀BE฀PUBLISHED�฀
&OR฀EXECUTIVE฀DECISIONS�฀SUCH฀AS฀POLICIES฀AND฀SERVICE฀REVIEW฀REPORTS�฀THIS฀WILL฀BE฀
VIA฀THE฀FORMAL฀REPORT฀FOR฀DECISION฀�E�G�฀TO฀4-4฀OR฀#ABINET	�

!,,฀COMPLETED฀%)!S฀SHOULD฀BE฀SUMMARISED฀ON฀THE฀COUNCIL�S฀WEBSITE�฀USING฀THE฀
TEMPLATE฀IN฀!PPENDIX฀��฀9OU฀ARE฀REQUIRED฀TO฀COMPLETE฀THIS฀TEMPLATE฀AND฀THEN฀
SEND฀IT฀TO฀YOUR฀DIRECTORATE฀EQUALITIES฀LEAD�฀7IDER฀PUBLICATION�฀ON฀YOUR฀SERVICE฀
WEB฀PAGES฀AND฀AS฀PART฀OF฀YOUR฀USUAL฀DIRECTORATE฀COMMUNICATIONS฀IS฀ALSO฀
recommended.

Step 10 Monitor and review

4HE฀%)!฀IS฀NOT฀AN฀END฀IN฀ITSELF�฀BUT฀THE฀START฀OF฀A฀CONTINUOUS฀MONITORING฀AND฀
REVIEW฀PROCESS�฀-ONITORING฀NEEDS฀TO฀TAKE฀PLACE฀AT฀A฀NUMBER฀OF฀LEVELS�

Individual services completing EIAs
Actions arising from your completed EIA must be integrated into your next 
ANNUAL฀SERVICE฀OR฀TEAM฀PLAN฀n฀YOU฀WILL฀THEN฀BE฀ABLE฀TO฀MONITOR฀DELIVERY฀AS฀
AN฀INTEGRAL฀PART฀OF฀YOUR฀SERVICE฀PLANNING฀CYCLE�฀)T฀IS฀GOOD฀PRACTICE฀THAT฀%)!S฀
ARE฀REVIEWED฀EVERY฀YEAR฀TO฀ENSURE฀THAT฀THEY฀STILL฀MEET฀THE฀NEEDS฀OF฀CHANGING฀
COMMUNITIES฀AND฀SERVICES�฀2ESULTS฀OF฀REVIEWS฀SHOULD฀ALSO฀BE฀PUBLISHED฀TO฀
DEMONSTRATE฀THAT฀THE฀ACTION฀PLANS฀ARE฀BEING฀COMPLETED฀WITHIN฀THE฀TEAM�S฀
ACTIVITIES�฀4HE฀%)!฀TIMETABLE฀PROVIDES฀THE฀ROLLING฀PROGRAMME฀OF฀%)!S฀TO฀MEET฀
OUR฀STATUTORY฀REQUIREMENT฀TO฀COMPLETELY฀REVIEW฀ALL฀POLICIES฀AND฀SERVICES฀EVERY฀
THREE฀YEARS�

Directorate Management Teams
$IRECTORATES฀MUST฀SET฀UP฀AND฀MAINTAIN฀SYSTEMS฀TO฀MONITOR฀DELIVERY฀AND฀ENSURE฀
THAT฀ANY฀CHANGES�฀AMENDMENTS฀AND฀RECOMMENDATIONS฀ARISING฀FROM฀%)!S฀ARE฀
ACHIEVED�

The Management Team
4HE฀-ANAGEMENT฀4EAM฀WILL฀RECEIVE฀A฀QUARTERLY฀UPDATE฀ON฀THE฀%)!฀PROGRAMME�

-ONITOR฀�฀2EVIEW
Steps in undertaking an 
EIA of a policy, strategy 
or service

32

64



Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit   21  

Equalities Steering Group (ESG)
%ACH฀DIRECTORATE฀HAS฀A฀SENIOR฀OFlCER฀AS฀A฀MEMBER฀OF฀THE฀GROUP฀RESPONSIBLE฀FOR฀
MANAGING฀PROGRESS฀ON฀EQUALITIES฀ISSUES฀IN฀THEIR฀DIRECTORATE�฀4HEY฀HAVE฀A฀JOINT฀
RESPONSIBILITY฀FOR฀STEERING฀EQUALITIES฀ISSUES฀ACROSS฀THE฀COUNCIL฀AND฀WORK฀TOGETHER฀
to support equalities implementation.

4HE฀STEERING฀GROUP฀MEETS฀EVERY฀MONTH฀AND฀IS฀CHAIRED฀BY฀!LEX฀"AILEY�฀$IRECTOR฀OF฀
3TRATEGY฀�฀'OVERNANCE�

Head of Equalities & Inclusion, Mary Evans x 1577 and the Equalities & 
Inclusion Team
4HE฀%QUALITIES฀AND฀)NCLUSION฀4EAM฀ARE฀PRIMARILY฀RESPONSIBLE฀FOR฀THE฀%QUALITIES฀AND฀
)NCLUSION฀0OLICY�฀THE฀%QUALITY฀3CHEMES฀AND฀THE฀%QUALITY฀3CHEME฀!CTION฀0LAN�฀4HE฀
TEAM฀ARE฀ALSO฀RESPONSIBLE฀FOR฀THE฀%QUALITY฀3TANDARD฀FOR฀,OCAL฀'OVERNMENT�฀FOR฀
AN฀OVERVIEW฀OF฀THE฀%)!฀PROCESS฀AND฀FOR฀REPORTING฀PROGRESS฀TO฀THE฀%3'฀AND฀THE฀
-ANAGEMENT฀4EAM฀�4-4	฀ON฀A฀QUARTERLY฀BASIS�฀4HE฀TEAM฀WILL฀QUALITY฀CHECK฀%)!S฀
and are available for advice, training and support on EIA processes.

$IRECTORATE฀CONTACTS฀WITHIN฀THE฀%QUALITIES฀AND฀)NCLUSION฀4EAM฀ARE�


!DULT฀3OCIAL฀#ARE฀AND฀(OUSING฀ 
฀ #LAIR฀(OPKINS฀ �����฀������
#HILDREN฀AND฀9OUNG฀0EOPLES฀4RUST฀ 
฀฀ *UDY฀2EDFORD฀฀ �����฀������
#ULTURAL฀3ERVICES฀ 
฀ 3ARAH฀4IGHE
&ORD฀฀ �����฀������
%NVIRONMENT฀3ERVICES฀ 
฀ $IANE฀#OE฀฀ �����฀������
&INANCE฀AND฀2ESOURCES฀ 
฀ #LAIR฀(OPKINS฀ �����฀������
3TRATEGY฀�฀'OVERNANCE฀ 
฀ -ARY฀%VANS฀ �����฀������

!NALYSIS฀AND฀2ESEARCH�฀0AULA฀"LACK฀X฀����฀฀฀#HRIS฀7ILSON฀X����
!DVICE฀ON฀CONSULTATION฀TECHNIQUES฀AND฀USING฀AND฀INTERPRETING฀QUALITATIVE฀AND฀
quantitative data.

0RINCIPAL฀3OLICITOR�฀%LIZABETH฀#ULBERT฀X����
!DVICE฀ON฀THE฀EQUALITY฀LEGISLATION฀AND฀%UROPEAN฀DIRECTIVES฀AFFECTING฀%QUALITIES฀
Impact Assessments.

(EAD฀OF฀0ROCUREMENT�฀#LARE฀*ONES฀X฀����
Advice on procurement issues, council policy in relation to legislation and 
contractors.

(EAD฀OF฀0ERFORMANCE฀AND฀)MPROVEMENT�฀"ARBARA฀'REEN฀X฀����
Advice on equalities performance indicators. 
!DVICE฀ON฀THE฀INTEGRATING฀OF฀%)!S฀AND฀THEIR฀OUTCOMES฀INTO฀SERVICE฀AND฀DIRECTORATE฀
plans.

-ANAGER฀OF฀THE฀6OLUNTARY฀3ECTOR฀5NIT�฀*OHN฀2OUTLEDGE฀X฀����
!DVICE฀ON฀WORKING฀WITH฀THE฀#OMMUNITY฀AND฀6OLUNTARY฀3ECTOR�

3UPPORT฀TO฀
)MPACT฀!SSESSORS

33

65



22   Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
Eq

u
al

it
ie

s 
Im

p
a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
en

t 
Te

m
p
la

te

A
im

 o
f 

P
o

li
cy

 /
 S

co
p

e
 o

f 
S
e
rv

ic
e

: 

D
if

fe
re

n
t 

G
ro

u
p

s 
in

cl
u

d
e
d

 i
n
 

sc
o

p
e

P
o

te
n
ti

a
l 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
n
 t

h
is

 
g

ro
u

p

E
xi

st
in

g
 d

a
ta

/i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

in
c.

 r
e
le

va
n
t 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
D

a
ta

/I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

P
o

te
n
ti

a
l 
a
ct

io
n

s 
to

 m
in

im
is

e
 n

e
g

a
ti

ve
 

im
p

a
ct

 a
n

d
 m

a
xi

m
is

e
 p

o
si

ti
ve

 i
m

p
a
ct

s

34

66



Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit   23  

W
h
a
t 

co
n
su

lt
a
ti

o
n
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 u

se
d

 o
r 

u
n
d

e
rt

a
ke

n
?

D
a
te

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 M

e
th

o
d

s 
U

se
d

Fi
n
d

in
g

s

35

67



24   Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit 

A
g

re
e
d

 A
ct

io
n
s

Ti
m

e
sc

a
le

Le
a
d

 O
ffi

ce
r

R
e
vi

e
w

 d
a
te

,E
AD

฀%
QU

AL
ITY

฀)M
PA

CT
฀!

SS
ES

SM
EN

T฀
/

Fl
CE

R�
฀

฀
฀

฀
฀

฀
฀

$
AT

E�

$
EP

AR
TM

EN
TA

L฀-
AN

AG
EM

EN
T฀

4E
AM

฀
฀

฀
฀

฀
฀

฀
฀

$
AT

E�
฀

!
SS

IS
TA

NT
฀$

IRE
CT

OR
�฀

฀
฀

฀
฀

฀
฀

฀
฀

฀
$

AT
E�

#
OR

PO
RA

TE
฀%

QU
AL

ITI
ES

฀A
ND

฀)N
CL

US
IO

N฀
4E

AM
฀

฀
฀

฀
฀

฀
฀

$
AT

E�
฀

(N
B

: 
A

ct
io

n
s 

m
u

st
 n

o
w

 b
e
 t

ra
n

sf
e
rr

e
d

 t
o

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 o

r 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 p

la
n

s)

36

68



Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit   25  

Appendix 2
Publication Template

Name of review:

Period of review:

Date review signed off by 
DMT:

Scope of the review:

Review team:

Relevant data and research:

Consultation: indicate who 
was consulted and how they 
were consulted

 Assessment of impact, 
outcomes and key follow-up 
actions:

Name and contact details of 
lead officer responsible for 
follow-up action:

For full report contact:

37

69



26   Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit 

38

70



Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit   27  

39

71



Appendix 4 

UK CITY OF CULTURE PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT 
 

 

Brighton & Hove Arts Commission 
inc Specially Co-opted Members 

for 2012 & 2013 

Artistic Leadership 
Collaboration Team 
Led by Brighton Festival 

Sub-Group of 
Arts Commission 

Members 

Financial System 
with Council 

separately identified 
and auditable 

Executive Team 
City Council Culture Team plus 
secondments / internships and 

fundraising function 

Delivery Partners (sample) 
 
 Brighton Festival & Dome 
 Theatre Royal Brighton 
 Library Network 
 University of Brighton 
 White Night 
 Aquafestival 
 Royal Pavilion & Art Gallery 
 Pride 
 etc 
 etc 

Directly Managed 
 
 2 new events 
 Community programme 
 Marketing and publicity 
 Fundraising 
 Administration 
 Evaluation 
 

40

72



 

making a difference
the Urban Cultural Programme 

for the City of Brighton and Hove 

Summary of the 

Evaluation Report 

41

73



 

Index

Section 1 Background Page 1 

Section 2 
The Strategic Impact of 

making a difference
Pages 2 - 5 

Section 3 
making a difference

– the programme 
Pages 6 - 13 

Section 4 Value for Money Pages 14 - 15 

Section 5 
making a difference

- the future 
Pages 16 - 18 

Section 6 Conclusion Page 19 

Section 7 Further information Page 20 

Section 8 making a difference images Page 21 

42

74



 

1

1. Background 

The Urban Cultural Programme was a national response to the two year 

2008 European Capital of Culture bidding process and the establishment of 

the Cultural Cities Network.  Bids were invited from partnerships covering 

urban areas to promote co-ordinated programmes of “urban arts and 

cultural activities”.  Brighton and Hove’s bid – making a difference – secured 

£750,000 in Urban Cultural Programme funding. 

The programme of work was described through 4 principal strands: 

 Creating new work

 Transforming the city

 Living in Brighton & Hove

 Working in Brighton & Hove 

The following set of overall outcomes was determined for this evaluation: 

 Quality and Innovation 

 Partnerships and collaborations 

 Access and inclusion 

 Learning and training 

 Capacity building 

 Legacy

Brighton and Hove has a high profile cultural sector that is only matched in 

England and the UK by a small number of highly urbanised city centre 

environments.  To be effective making a difference needed to be inclusive on 

a very broad front.  The cultural offer of the city is very much bound up in its 

civic identity and the values of creativity, imagination and innovation.

making a difference had been preceded by the Capital of Culture and City 

Status bids, both of which paved the way for the Urban Cultural Programme. 

43

75



 

2

2.  The Strategic Impact of making a difference

making a difference has provided a platform to demonstrate the value of 

culture in a wider civic context, and has produced a number of strategic 

achievements, among these being: 

 Building on the City of Culture and City Status bids 

 Attracting strong political and cross-departmental support 

 Enabling the creative community of Brighton and Hove to further 

develop their capacity and potential

 Creating partnerships of all kinds and of different scales 

 Engaging communities across Brighton and Hove in high quality 

work that addressed core issues of community-building, access and 

cohesion

The Brighton and Hove Arts Commission: 

The Brighton and Hove Arts Commission was launched in 2005, with a 

membership drawn from the City Council’s elected members and the 

Brighton and Hove arts and cultural community.  Its objectives are to 

provide leadership in: 

 Advocacy for the city’s cultural development and regionally, 

nationally and internationally 

 Advice on cultural policy development with the city and beyond 

 Delivery of projects and programmes 

The elected members’ commitment to the Commission has been of 

substantial benefit to making a difference, and has ensured that the

programme was democratic, accessible, visible, informative and embedded 

in the cultural life of the City. 

The Arts Commission is an outward facing, independent partnership body 

that relies on a volunteer membership and a small team of Council officers 

to provide the ‘back office’ function and ensure effective project 

management and executive delivery. 

There is a broad level of consensus that the Arts Commission has, in the first 

18 months of its life delivered a substantial level of benefit to the creative 

sector in Brighton and Hove and enabled wider levels of dialogue and 

debate.

44

76



 

3

2.1  The Cross Cutting Agenda 

One of the stated aims of the UCP for Brighton and Hove Council was to 

ensure cross departmental working and cross party support for the cultural 

agenda. making a difference provided the opportunity to put these aims into 

practice through: 

 making a difference bid development 

 Secondments to the Arts and Creative Industries Service including 3 

additional members of staff from Adult & Social Care, 

Neighbourhood Renewal and the Director’s Office 

 Cross departmental and member support for Celebrating Age - a 

major series of events and activities built around a national 

conference programme for older people.  

 Significant political involvement including Deputy Leader attendance 

at the launch of the national Friendship project in Liverpool. 

 Neighbourhood Action Plans and Neighbourhood Renewal 

engagement in the public art programme 

Building a cross-cutting theme into making a difference resulted in: 

 Higher levels of partnership working between City Council 

Departments

 Embedded cultural strands within the policy, strategy and delivery 

of other City Council departments

 Imaginative use of existing resources (e.g. buildings maintenance 

budgets) to deliver additional cultural value to projects 

 Improved professional working relationships between Council 

officers 

 Secondments into the Arts and Creative Industries Service 

 Improved officer-member communications 

2.2  Strategic Outcomes 

The strategic outcomes of the overall making a difference programme are 

those that have contributed to the cultural ambitions and policies of the city.

It was recognised that the programme could have a substantial impact upon 

the overall perceptions of the City Council as a core service provider, 

delivering a high level of visibility in areas where quality of life was a key 

issue: the public realm, vandalism, regeneration, inclusion and young 

people.

45

77



4

Quality and Innovation was enabled through 

 A strong new commissions strand and a general principal of using 

an open commissioning process for a variety of strands 

 Incorporation of work from international artists and organisations 

 Major environmental strand of new commissions 

Partnerships and collaborations were made possible by 

 Extensive cross departmental collaborations between City Council 

Departments

 Private sector collaborations, particularly in public art and music 

sectors

 Health sector partnerships developed on a sustainable basis 

through Celebrating Age and Say Aah 

 Public sector support and partnerships secured in economic 

development at a regional level 

 Using a national (non arts) conference as a starting point for a 

cultural festival 

 Seven sponsor partnerships developed at £25K apiece including 

new sponsors for the arts 

 High levels of partnership working between creative businesses 

Access and inclusion was enabled through 

 A huge proportion of the programme focussing on outdoor events – 

e.g. all 5 of the new commissions programme 

 High levels of neighbourhood working, particularly in areas of social 

housing and deprivation 

 A key strand of the programme dedicated to working with and for 

older people 

 A key strand of the programme dedicated to working with primary 

schools

 Inclusive practice embedded within all aspects of the programme 

Learning and training was supported by

 Collaborations between schools, HE and FE 

 Informal learning programmes delivered to a range of communities 

 Specific professional development and training opportunities for 

artists

 Participation in the national project, the Friend Ship festival

46

78



5

Capacity building was furthered by 

 Early career development prioritised and supported 

 Funding of local creative businesses for growth and development 

 New opportunities for early career artists 

 Bespoke training courses for early career artists 

Legacy of the programme identified through 

 Brighton and Hove Arts Commission given significant support in its 

first 2 years of operation  

 A range of individual programmes that are expected to continue, 

such as Eco-Brighton, Illuminations and Grassroots

 Ongoing investment in partnerships including regional, national and 

international collaborations  

 Increased capacity of key cultural organisations in the City 

 The Arts Commission’s strategic leadership role in the City as a 

direct result of their experience in the UCP by, for example, 

developing an Outdoor Arts Event Policy 

47

79



 

6

3.  making a difference – the programme 

The programme has been contemporary, culturally diverse, and innovative, 

and was sub-divided into 4 areas, these being: 

 Creating New Work – the development of 10 new commissions 

 Transforming the City – projects with an impact on the physical 

environment of the City 

 Living in Brighton and Hove - a strand of work built upon 

cultural inclusion and quality of life 

 Working in Brighton and Hove – focussed on professional

development, early career support and training opportunities 

These four areas of activity were interconnected through the artists, 

agencies and organisations delivering them.  The overall making a difference

programme described below consists of 28 projects.  Many of these of these 

have a number of discrete sub-projects nested within them, which raises the 

overall number of projects to almost 50.  They vary in scale and size, with 

the largest, Celebrating Age, representing an extensive programme in its 

own right, and together they cover almost all art-forms and a wide range of 

styles.

48

80



 

7

C
r
e
a
ti

n
g

 n
e
w

 w
o

r
k
 –

 5
 N

e
w

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

U
r
b

a
n

 P
la

y
g

r
o

u
n

d
 

P
r
o
d

ig
a
l 

T
h

e
a
tr

e
 C

o
m

p
a
n

y

P
ro

d
ig

a
l 
T
h
e
a
tr

e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y
 c

re
a
te

d
 t

h
e
 U

K
’s

 

fi
rs

t 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
il
t 

m
o
b
il
e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

o
r 

P
a
rk

o
u
r 

(o
r 

 f
re

e
-r

u
n
n
in

g
) 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 

c
h
o
re

o
g
ra

p
h
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
u
s
in

g
 d

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

fr
e
e
-r

u
n
n
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

to
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
re

e
 o

u
td

o
o
r 

v
e
n
u
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
.

B
ic

y
c
le

 B
a
ll

e
t 

K
a
r
e
n

 P
o
le

y
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
 a

r
ti

s
ts

A
 c

h
o
re

o
g
ra

p
h
e
d
 d

a
n
c
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

fo
r 

6
0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
rs

 o
n
 b

ic
y
c
le

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
’s

 c
a
r 

fr
e
e
 d

a
y
. 

 T
h
e
 

e
v
e
n
t 

u
s
e
d
 m

u
s
ic

, 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 s

p
e
e
c
h
, 

d
a
n
c
e
, 

c
h
o
re

o
g
ra

p
h
e
d
 c

y
c
li
n
g
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

e
a
 f
ro

n
t.

 

C
o
m

p
to

n
 S

k
y
li

n
e
 P

r
o
je

c
t 

S
te

v
e
 G

e
li

o
t 

a
n

d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
 a

r
ti

s
ts

 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

p
to

n
 S

k
y
li
n
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

w
o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

ll
 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 C

o
m

p
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 t

o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 

ro
o
ft

o
p
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 v
is

ib
le

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
. 

 8
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
rt

is
ts

 w
o
rk

e
d
 

c
o
ll
a
b
o
ra

ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
 d

e
li
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 a
n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
u
rs

e
ry

 a
n
d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
a
 b

o
w

ls
 c

lu
b
. 

 A
n
im

a
ti
o
n
, 

p
a
in

ti
n
g
, 

d
a
n
c
e
, 

v
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 d

ig
it
a
l 
p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
y
 

w
e
re

 a
ll
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 h
ig

h
 

p
ro

fi
le

 s
tr

e
e
t 

p
a
rt

y
. 

S
tr

e
e
t 

E
ld

e
r
s
 

B
r
ig

h
to

n
 a

n
d

 H
o

v
e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
e
r
’s

 

F
o

r
u

m
S
tr

e
e
t 

E
ld

e
rs

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 t

o
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 a

n
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 c

u
lm

in
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
e
v
e
n
ts

 

in
 C

e
le

b
ra

ti
n
g
 A

g
e
. 

 S
tr

e
e
t 

E
ld

e
rs

 h
a
d
 f
o
u
r 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 s

tr
a
n
d
s
: 

M
u
s
ic

, 
D

a
n
c
e
, 

F
il
m

 a
n
d
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

T
h
e
a
tr

e
. 

 S
tr

e
e
t 

E
ld

e
rs

 w
a
s
 a

n
 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
th

e
 w

a
y
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

’s
 

c
re

a
ti
v
it
y
 c

a
n
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
tr

in
s
ic

 v
a
lu

e
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

b
e
in

g
 s

e
e
n
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 a
s
 a

 t
h
e
ra

p
e
u
ti
c
 t

o
o
l.
 

E
n

li
g

h
te

n
 

S
p

e
c
tr

a
l 

A
r
ts

 

A
n
 i
ll
u
m

in
a
te

d
 l
ig

h
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

a
s
 

c
re

a
te

d
 b

y
 S

p
e
c
tr

a
l 
A
rt

s
 f

o
r 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 
H

o
v
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 C

h
ri

s
tm

a
s
 2

0
0
5
. 

 T
h
ro

u
g
h
 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 a

rt
is

ts
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

im
a
g
e
s
 

w
e
re

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
, 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 S

p
e
c
tr

a
l’
s
 c

o
re

 

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
’s

 o
f 
re

-u
s
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g
. 

 

4
9

81



8

C
r
e
a
ti

n
g

 N
e
w

 W
o

r
k
 –

 5
 O

th
e
r
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

D
ig

it
a
l 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

F
a
b

r
ic

a

T
w

o
 e

x
h
ib

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
n
e
w

 w
o
rk

 w
e
re

 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 b

y
 F

a
b
ri
c
a
 f
ro

m
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 

E
u
ro

p
e
a
n
 a

rt
is

ts
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 i
n
te

ra
c
ti
v
e
 

d
ig

it
a
l 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
. 

 I
m

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 G

e
o
g
ra

p
h
ie

s
 

1
.1

 M
e
m

o
ry

 w
a
s
 a

n
 i
n
te

ra
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
s
ta

ll
a
ti
o
n
 

th
a
t 

e
x
p
lo

re
d
 m

e
m

o
ry

 a
s
 a

 m
e
ta

p
h
o
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

v
ir
tu

a
l 
u
s
in

g
 d

ig
it
a
l 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
. 

 R
u
n
n
in

g
 

S
ti
tc

h
 u

s
e
d
 G

P
S
 p

h
o
n
e
 t

ra
c
k
in

g
 t

o
 t

ra
n
s
la

te
 

p
e
o
p
le

’s
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 i
n
to

 a
n
 

e
v
o
lv

in
g
 t

a
p
e
s
tr

y
 a

t 
F
a
b
ri
c
a
 t

h
a
t 

is
 s

ti
tc

h
e
d
 

b
y
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

. 

U
r
b

a
n

 a
n

d
 R

u
r
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

F
a
b

r
ic

a
 a

n
d

 S
to

u
r
 V

a
ll

e
y
 A

r
ts

 

A
 r

e
s
id

e
n
c
y
, 

e
x
h
ib

it
io

n
 a

n
d
 e

v
e
n
ts

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 F

a
b
ri
c
a
 

w
it
h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

rt
is

t,
 J

a
c
q
u
e
s
 N

im
k
i 

to
 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

a
 n

e
w

 c
o
-

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
it
h
 S

to
u
r 

V
a
ll
e
y
 

A
rt

s
, 

n
e
a
r 

C
a
n
te

rb
u
ry

. 
 

D
ir

ty
 W

o
n

d
e
r
la

n
d

 –
 B

r
ig

h
to

n
 F

e
s
ti

v
a
l 

2
0

0
5

F
r
a
n

ti
c
 A

s
s
e
m

b
ly

 

D
ir
ty

 W
o
n
d
e
rl
a
n
d
 w

a
s
 a

 s
it
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 p

ie
c
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 F

ra
n
ti
c
 

A
s
s
e
m

b
ly

 a
t 

th
e
 d

e
re

li
c
t 

G
ra

n
d
 O

c
e
a
n
 H

o
te

l 
in

 

S
a
lt
 D

e
a
n
, 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 i
ts

 r
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
G

ro
u
p
s
 

o
f 
a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
3
0
 w

e
re

 t
a
k
e
n
 o

n
 a

n
 e

s
c
o
rt

e
d
 

p
ro

m
e
n
a
d
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 b

a
ll
ro

o
m

s
 a

n
d
 

b
e
d
ro

o
m

s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

rt
 D

e
c
o
 h

o
te

l.
  
T
h
is

 c
ri
ti
c
a
ll
y
 

a
c
c
la

im
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 r

a
is

in
g
 t

h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
rt

is
ti
c
 r

e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 F

e
s
ti
v
a
l.
 

C
r
a
c
k
e
r
s
 b

y
 W

o
r
ld

 F
a
m

o
u

s

S
tr

e
e
ts

 o
f 

B
r
ig

h
to

n
 2

0
0

5
 

T
h
e
 W

o
rl
d
 F

a
m

o
u
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 w

a
s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
 2

0
0
5
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 t

h
e
 f
ir
s
t 

p
a
rt

 

o
f 
a
 t

w
o
 y

e
a
r 

c
o
ll
a
b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 G

ro
u
p
e
 F

, 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 A

rl
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

t 

th
e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
ri
s
k
 a

n
d
 d

a
n
g
e
r 

in
 o

u
r 

s
o
c
ie

ty
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

tw
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
rt

is
ts

 a
n
d
 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 p

u
b
li
c
 s

p
e
c
ta

c
le

 w
it
h
 a

 r
a
re

 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

p
y
ro

te
c
h
n
ic

ia
n
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
ir
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

a
 l
iv

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

T
h

e
 L

ig
h

t 
P

la
y
e
r
s
 b

y
 G

r
o

u
p

e
 F

 

S
tr

e
e
ts

 o
f 

B
r
ig

h
to

n
 2

0
0

6
 

G
ro

u
p
e
 F

 w
it
h
 c

o
ll
a
b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 W

o
rl
d
 

F
a
m

o
u
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

 v
e
ry

 l
a
rg

e
 s

c
a
le

 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

in
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

fi
n
a
le

 o
f 
th

e
 S

tr
e
e
ts

 o
f 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 e

v
e
n
t 

in
 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 F

e
s
ti
v
a
l 
in

 2
0
0
6
. 

 T
h
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

w
it
h
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 m

o
re

 

th
e
a
tr

e
 t

h
a
n
 G

ro
u
p
e
 F

’s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

h
o
w

s
 

a
tt

ra
c
te

d
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
 o

f 
7
0
,0

0
0
 –

 

th
e
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 

s
in

g
le

 a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
 f
o
r 

o
u
td

o
o
r 

th
e
a
tr

e
 e

v
e
r 

in
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
. 

 

5
0

82



9

T
r
a
n

s
fo

r
m

in
g

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 

I
ll

u
m

in
a
ti

o
n

s
  

B
r
ig

h
to

n
 a

n
d

 H
o

v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
n

d
 

P
a
r
tn

e
r
s

Il
lu

m
in

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

li
g
h
ti
n
g
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
s
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 M

a
ri
n
a
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n
 F

o
o
tb

ri
d
g
e
 p

lu
s
 a

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 

in
s
ta

ll
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
th

e
 R

o
y
a
l 
P
a
v
il
io

n
 (

T
h
e
 P

in
k
 

P
a
v
il
io

n
) 

in
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
0
4
. 

 T
h
e
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 l
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

w
n
e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 c

h
a
ll
e
n
g
in

g
 

lo
c
a
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
te

d
 a

s
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 c

a
ta

ly
s
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

 

fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

o
ll
a
b
o
ra

ti
o
n
s
. 

 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

r
h

o
o

d
 P

u
b

li
c
 A

r
ts

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
s

B
r
ig

h
to

n
 a

n
d

 H
o

v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
n

d
 

P
a
r
tn

e
r
s

A
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 p

u
b
li
c
 a

rt
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n
: 

T
a
rn

e
r 

a
n
d
 B

ri
s
to

l 
E
s
ta

te
s

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 f
o
r 

d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

in
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

c
re

a
ti
v
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
s
. 

 O
n
 t

h
e
 T

a
rn

e
r 

e
s
ta

te
, 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

 

5
 m

e
tr

e
 l
o
n
g
 b

e
n
c
h
 w

it
h
 v

ie
w

s
 o

v
e
r 

G
ra

n
d
 P

a
ra

d
e
. 

 O
n
 t

h
e
 B

ri
s
to

l 
E
s
ta

te
, 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 4

 a
rt

is
ts

 t
o
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
n
a
m

e
-p

la
te

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

3
3
 t

o
w

e
r 

b
lo

c
k
s
. 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

is
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 i
n
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
. 

  

P
u

b
li

c
 A

r
t 

P
r
o

g
r
a
m

m
e
 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

A
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

p
u
b
li
c
 a

rt
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 t

h
a
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 p
u
b
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 p

u
b
li
c
 a

rt
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
, 

d
u
e
 

in
 S

p
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
7
; 

a
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
s
e
m

in
a
rs

 a
n
d
 

d
e
b
a
te

s
; 

c
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

 p
u
b
li
c
 a

rt
 p

o
s
t 

a
t 

th
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
A
le

x
a
n
d
e
r 

C
h
il
d
re

n
’s

 H
o
s
p
it
a
l;

 G
h
o
s
t 

T
ra

in
 –

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 

S
ta

ti
o
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 c

o
n
s
is

t 
o
f 
a
 p

a
rt

ia
ll
y
 

il
lu

m
in

a
te

d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

ld
 r

a
il
w

a
y
 l
in

e
 

v
ia

d
u
c
t 

th
a
t 

s
tr

a
d
d
le

s
 t

h
e
 N

e
w

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 R

o
a
d
. 

 

E
c
o

-B
r
ig

h
to

n

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
E
c
o
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 w

a
s
 a

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
6
 e

v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 1

 s
e
m

in
a
r 

fo
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 a

rt
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,

 a
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
s
 d

ra
w

n
 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

a
rt

is
ts

, 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

li
s
ts

, 
p
la

n
n
e
rs

, 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
li
s
ts

 a
n
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
e
rs

 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
is

s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 a
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
 

c
o
n
te

x
t.

  
T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

: 
T
h
e
 P

a
lm

 H
o
u
s
e
, 

a
 s

it
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 S

ta
n
m

e
r 

P
a
rk

 b
y
 S

m
a
ll
 W

o
n
d
e
r,

 t
h
a
t 

a
tt

ra
c
te

d
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 a

u
d
ie

n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 u

s
e
d
 p

y
ro

te
c
h
n
ic

s
 a

n
d
 m

u
s
ic

; 
 L

iq
u
id

 F
u
tu

re
s
, 

a
 p

u
b
li
c
 a

rt
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 b

ri
n
g
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 t

o
 w

a
te

r 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f

a
c
e
d
 b

y
 c

o
n
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 

s
o
c
ie

ty
 b

y
 i
ll
u
s
tr

a
ti
n
g
 w

a
te

r 
c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

 b
lo

c
k
 o

f 
fl
a
ts

; 
C
it
y
 i
n
 B

lo
o
m

, 
a
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 a
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
li
ty

 l
iv

in
g
 s

c
u
lp

tu
re

 u
s
in

g
 i
m

a
g
in

a
ti
v
e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 v

e
g
e
ta

ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

w
il
l 
b
e
 i
n
s
ta

ll
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

e
rn

 l
a
w

n
 o

f 
S
t 

P
e
te

r’
s
 c

h
u
rc

h
, 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
; 

P
a
rk

 A
rt

, 
a
 p

u
b
li
c
 a

rt
 p

ro
je

c
t 

th
a
t 

re
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 

F
in

g
e
rm

a
z
e
 –

a
 l
im

e
s
to

n
e
 C

re
ta

n
 l
a
b
y
ri
n
th

 b
u
il
t 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 g

ia
n
t 

th
u
m

b
-p

ri
n
t 

in
 H

o
v
e
 P

a
rk

; 
E
c
o
-E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

-b
a
s
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 
d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 b

a
s
e
d
 S

a
m

e
 S

k
y
, 

w
h
o
 s

e
t 

u
p
 a

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
a
rt

s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
c
e
s
 f

o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ts

 o
f 

‘r
e
u
s
a
b
le

, 
re

c
y
c
la

b
le

, 
re

n
e
w

a
b
le

’,
; 

P
a
rk

 L
if
e
,

a
 y

e
a
r 

lo
n
g
 p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
y
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n
 c

o
ll
a
b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 P

h
o
to

w
o
rk

s
 t

h
a
t 

u
s
e
s
 i
m

a
g
e
s
 t

o
 e

x
p
lo

re
 t

h
e
 e

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 
p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
.

5
1

83



1
0

L
iv

in
g

 i
n

 B
r
ig

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e
 

S
a
y
 A

a
h

B
r
ig

h
to

n
 a

n
d

 H
o

v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
n

d
 

P
a
r
tn

e
r
s

S
a
y
 A

a
h
 w

a
s
 a

n
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 a

rt
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
it
ia

te
 n

e
w

 a
rt

s
 a

n
d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
a
n
d
 w

a
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 a

 

£
1
0
,0

0
0
 c

h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 f
u
n
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
 t

h
a
t 

e
n
a
b
le

d
 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 a

 £
2
0
,0

0
0
 f

u
n
d
 i
n
 

2
0
0
6
. 

 T
h
e
 S

a
y
 A

a
H

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 b

u
il
t 

u
p
o
n
 i
ts

 e
a
rl
y
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
rt

s
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 w

o
rk

 

th
a
t 

in
v
o
lv

e
s
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
th

e
 P

C
T
, 

a
 

lo
c
a
l 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 A

C
E
 S

E
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 
a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 

 P
ro

je
c
ts

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 E

v
e
ry

d
a
y
 S

p
o
rt

 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
, 

' 
O

p
e
n
 f

o
r 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
',
 a

n
 o

p
e
n
-

p
la

n
 s

tr
e
e
t 

th
e
a
tr

e
 e

v
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

n
o
t 

o
n
ly

 

p
ro

m
o
te

d
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
n
 a

c
ti
v
e
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
, 

b
u
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

n
 a

m
u
s
in

g
 i
n
s
ig

h
t 

in
to

 t
h
e
 w

o
rl
d
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 l
e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 p
u
b
li
c
 a

rt
 p

o
s
t 

a
t 

th
e
 n

e
w

 C
h
il
d
re

n
’s

 H
o
s
p
it
a
l.
  

S
h

a
ll

 w
e
 D

a
n

c
e
?
 

R
a
g

r
o

o
f 

T
h

e
a
tr

e
 C

o
m

p
a
n

y
 

T
h
e
 f
la

g
 s

h
ip

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 

C
e
le

b
ra

ti
n
g
 A

g
e
 f
e
s
ti
v
a
l 
w

it
h
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 

s
c
a
le

 o
u
td

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 

S
q
u
a
re

 o
n
 a

 s
p
e
c
ia

ll
y
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 

b
a
n
d
s
ta

n
d
. 

 T
h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

to
u
re

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

S
o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 S

o
u
th

 B
a
n
k
 i
n
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
.

C
e
le

b
r
a
ti

n
g

 A
g

e
 

B
r
ig

h
to

n
 a

n
d

 H
o

v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
n

d
 

P
a
r
tn

e
r
s

C
e
le

b
ra

ti
n
g
 A

g
e
 w

a
s
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
e
le

b
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 

th
e
 c

re
a
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

, 
d
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 a

 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 a

n
d
 

v
is

u
a
l 
a
rt

s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
n
fr

o
n
te

d
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

a
g
e
s
 o

f 

a
g
e
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
d
 t

h
e
 u

n
iq

u
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 m
a
k
e
 t

o
 f
a
m

il
y
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 

s
o
c
ie

ty
. 

 I
n
 p

a
ra

ll
e
l 
to

 t
h
e
 C

e
le

b
ra

ti
n
g
 A

g
e
 

fe
s
ti
v
a
l,
 B

e
tt

e
r 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 

h
e
ld

 t
h
e
ir
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

b
ro

u
g
h
t 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 k

e
y
 p

o
li
c
y
 a

n
d
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
li
c
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

B
ri
ta

in
. 

 C
e
le

b
ra

ti
n
g
 A

g
e
 

w
a
s
 a

 v
e
ry

 l
a
rg

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 m

a
jo

r 

e
v
e
n
ts

 e
m

b
e
d
d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 i
t 

th
a
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 1
0
 

d
a
y
 f

e
s
ti
v
a
l 
in

 v
e
n
u
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 w

it
h
 5

4
 

e
v
e
n
ts

, 
3
2
 o

f 
th

e
m

 f
re

e
 a

n
d
 1

7
 d

e
v
is

e
d
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ll
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
e
s
ti
v
a
l.
 

5
2

84



1
1

L
iv

in
g

 i
n

 B
r
ig

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e
 

P
u

b
li

c
 A

r
t 

in
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 

J
e
a
n

e
tt

e
 C

u
ll

e
n

 a
n

d
 S

ti
g

 E
v
a
n

s
 

A
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
3
 n

e
w

 p
u
b
li
c
 a

rt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
n
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
n
e
e
d
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
a
t 

 w
e
re

 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 p

u
b
li
c
 a

rt
 a

n
d
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
, 

o
ff

e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

e
a
rl

y
 y

e
a
rs

 a
rt

is
ts

 a
n
d
 

e
x
p
o
s
e
 c

h
il
d
re

n
 t

o
 a

rt
 f
o
rm

s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
y
 

w
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

c
o
m

e
 i
n
to

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 n

o
rm

a
ll
y
. 

 

Je
a
n
e
tt

e
 C

u
ll
e
n
 a

n
d
 S

ti
g
 E

v
a
n
s
 w

e
re

 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
li
v
e
r 

th
e
s
e
 h

ig
h
ly

 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 
s
u
n
d
ia

l 
a
t 

S
t 

M
a
rk

s
, 

W
h
it
e
h
a
w

k
, 

a
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
 

ru
b
b
e
r 

m
o
b
il
e
 a

t 
V
a
rn

d
e
a
n
 L

in
k
 C

o
ll
e
g
e
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 l
a
rg

e
 s

c
a
le

 s
to

ry
te

ll
in

g
 c

h
a
ir
 

a
t 

W
h
it
e
h
a
w

k
 P

ri
m

a
ry

. 
 T

w
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
u
b
li
c
 a

rt
 

in
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 f
o
r 

£
5
,0

0
0
 e

a
c
h
 a

re
 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
. 

 

F
r
ie

n
d

s
h

ip
 P

r
o

je
c
t 

a
n

d
 F

e
s
ti

v
a
l 

B
r
ig

h
to

n
 a

n
d

 H
o

v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
n

d
 

P
a
r
tn

e
r
s

T
h
e
 L

iv
e
rp

o
o
l 
2
0
0
8
 F

ri
e
n
d
 S

h
ip

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
a
s
 a

 y
e
a
r-

lo
n
g
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 t

e
n
 c

it
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

U
K
 t

h
a
t 

e
x
p
lo

re
d
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

m
e
a
n
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rd

 ‘
fr

ie
n
d
s
h
ip

’.
  
T
e
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
ro

m
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 

c
it
ie

s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 ‘
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
c
a
rg

o
’ 
fo

r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 ‘
tr

e
a
s
u
re

 c
h
e
s
ts

’ 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 

th
e
n
 t

o
u
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 F

ri
e
n
d
 S

h
ip

 v
e
h
ic

le
. 

In
 e

a
c
h
 c

it
y
, 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
o
k
 

p
a
rt

 i
n
 a

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 e

v
e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 F

ri
e
n
d
 

S
h
ip

’s
 v

is
it
 w

a
s
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 b

y
 a

 w
e
e
k
 

lo
n
g
 f

e
s
ti
v
a
l 
o
f 

c
re

a
ti
v
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 a

 F
ri

e
n
d
 

S
h
ip

 f
e
a
s
t 

c
re

a
te

d
 b

y
 c

a
te

ri
n
g
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 

a
t 

C
it
y
 C

o
ll
e
g
e
  

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
c
te

d
 a

s
 a

 v
iv

id
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

il
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

a
 

fe
s
ti
v
a
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

b
ri
n
g
s
 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

a
rt

is
ts

, 
a
rt

s
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

v
e
n
u
e
s
, 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

il
ie

s
 t

o
 

c
e
le

b
ra

te
 t

h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

.

5
0

 o
v
e
r
 5

0
 

B
r
ig

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
n

d
 

 T
h

e
 U

n
iv

e
r
s
it

y
 o

f 
B

r
ig

h
to

n
 

T
h
e
 f
ir

s
t 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
rt

s
 p

ri
z
e
 f
o
r 

a
rt

is
ts

 o
v
e
r 

5
0
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 f
la

g
s
h
ip

 v
is

u
a
l 
a
rt

s
 e

v
e
n
t 

fo
r 

C
e
le

b
ra

ti
n
g
 A

g
e
, 

5
0
 o

v
e
r 

5
0
 w

a
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 

m
a
k
in

g
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
’s

 h
ig

h
e
s
t 

p
ro

fi
le

 p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
 

O
v
e
r 

1
,8

0
0
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 a

rt
is

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 U

K
. 

 T
h
e
 

w
in

n
in

g
 a

rt
is

t 
w

a
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 w

it
h
 a

 c
h
e
q
u
e
 b

y
 

S
ir
 C

h
ri
s
to

p
h
e
r 

F
ra

y
li
n
g
, 

C
h
a
ir
m

a
n
 o

f 
A
rt

s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 E

n
g
la

n
d
. 

 M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

o
f 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
. 

  

5
3

85



1
2

W
o

r
k
in

g
 i
n

 B
r
ig

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e
 

B
r
ig

h
to

n
 L

iv
e
 2

0
0

4
 a

n
d

 2
0

0
5

 

B
r
ig

h
to

n
 L

iv
e
 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 h

a
s
 l
o
n
g
 h

a
d
 a

 r
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

q
u
a
li
ty

 a
n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
it
s
 m

u
s
ic

 s
c
e
n
e
 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 L

iv
e
 i
s
 a

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
, 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 2

0
0
5
 e

v
e
n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 5

0
0
 b

a
n
d
s
 i
n
 7

6
 

e
v
e
n
ts

 o
v
e
r 

7
 d

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 n

ig
h
ts

. 
 I

t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 

th
e
 u

n
s
u
n
g
 a

n
d
 n

e
v
e
r-

b
e
fo

re
 h

e
a
rd

 a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 

s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

e
tt

e
r-

k
n
o
w

n
 n

a
m

e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

re
g
io

n
a
l 
m

u
s
ic

 c
ir
c
u
it
. 

 T
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

e
m

in
a
rs

, 

a
d
v
ic

e
, 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
, 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 L

iv
e
 

h
a
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 v
a
lu

a
b
le

 f
ir

s
t 

ru
n
g
 f
o
r 

b
a
n
d
s
 

s
e
e
k
in

g
 r

e
c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 

m
u
s
ic

. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 b

u
il
t 

a
n
 i
m

p
re

s
s
iv

e
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 w
h
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 L

o
u
t 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
s
, 

M
e
lt
in

g
 V

in
y
l,
 

P
u
rp

le
m

e
d
ia

, 
B
ri

g
h
to

n
 I

n
s
ti
tu

te
 o

f 
M

o
d
e
rn

 

M
u
s
ic

, 
th

e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 M

u
s
ic

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

C
it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
. 

 1
9
 v

e
n
u
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 c

it
y
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

e
s
ti
v
a
l,
 e

n
a
b
li
n
g
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
li
v
e
 m

u
s
ic

 

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

a
n
d
s
 –

 s
o
m

e
 o

f 
w

h
o
m

 
h
a
d
 n

e
v
e
r 

b
e
fo

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 p

u
b
li
c
ly

. 
 A

 t
o
ta

l 

a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
 o

f 
1
7
,0

0
0
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
th

e
 

e
v
e
n
t,

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

le
g
a
c
y
 o

f 
m

a
k
in

g
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
. 

T
h

e
 G

r
e
a
t 

E
s
c
a
p

e
 

B
a
r
fl

y
 

B
a
rf

ly
 –

 T
h
e
 G

re
a
t 

E
s
c
a
p
e
 t

o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 

M
a
y
 2

0
0
6
, 

a
n
d
 w

a
s
 a

 t
ra

d
e
 f
a
ir
 a

n
d
 

s
h
o
w

c
a
s
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

m
u
s
ic

 

p
ro

m
o
te

rs
 a

n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
rs

, 
w

it
h
 a

 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 c

ro
s
s
-c

h
a
n
n
e
l 
li
n
k
s
 

to
 m

u
s
ic

 p
ro

m
o
te

rs
 i
n
 m

a
in

la
n
d
 E

u
ro

p
e
. 

 

B
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 L

iv
e
, 

T
h
e
 

G
re

a
t 

E
s
c
a
p
e
 u

ti
li
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

li
v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 v

e
n
u
e
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
e
v
e
n
ts

 s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 

lo
c
a
l 
ta

le
n
t 

th
a
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 U

rb
a
n
 C

u
lt
u
ra

l 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 

T
h

e
 G

r
a
s
s
r
o

o
ts

 P
r
o

g
r
a
m

m
e
 -

 G
r
a
s
s
 R

o
o

ts
 

I
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t
B

r
ig

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
n

d
 Z

e
lg

r
a
in

 

L
td

T
h
e
 G

ra
s
s
ro

o
ts

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 a

 m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 

fo
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

m
a
ll
 

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 f
ro

m
 a

ll
 a

rt
 f
o
rm

s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

c
q
u
ir
e
 n

e
w

 c
a
p
a
b
il
it
ie

s
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ll
y
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
n
e
w

 a
n
d
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
t 

a
rt

is
ts

 

a
t 

th
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 c

a
re

e
rs

. 
 M

o
re

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ll
y
, 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

a
s
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 f
o
r 

a
n
 a

u
d
ie

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

a
is

e
d
 

p
ro

fi
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 w

o
rk

. 
 T

h
e
 G

ra
s
s
ro

o
ts

 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
g
ra

n
ts

 a
v
e
ra

g
in

g
 

£
5
0
0
; 

n
e
tw

o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 p

la
tf

o
rm

 e
v
e
n
ts

; 
s
ig

n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
, 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

 O
v
e
ra

ll
, 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 6

2
7
 a

rt
is

ts
 w

h
o
 d

e
li
v
e
re

d
 4

2
3
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
tt

ra
c
te

d
 a

u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
 

to
ta

ll
in

g
 1

1
,0

4
9
. 

5
4

86



1
3

W
o

r
k
in

g
 i
n

 B
r
ig

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e
 

T
h

e
 G

r
a
s
s
r
o

o
ts

 P
r
o

g
r
a
m

m
e
  

- 
H

e
a
d

 t
o

 

H
e
a
d

S
u

s
s
e
x
 A

r
ts

 M
a
r
k
e
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 B

r
ig

h
to

n
 

F
r
in

g
e
 A

r
ts

 P
r
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

A
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 f

o
r 

e
a
rl
y
-c

a
re

e
r 

a
rt

is
ts

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 a

rt
s
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 b

u
il
t 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
le

a
d
in

g
 

a
rt

is
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 N

ig
e
l 
C
h
a
rn

o
c
k
, 

R
o
s
e
 

E
n
g
li
s
h
, 

P
h
e
li
m

 M
c
D

e
rm

o
tt

 a
n
d
 S

im
o
n
 

H
o
g
g
e
tt

. 
 T

h
e
 1

0
 H

e
a
d
 t

o
 H

e
a
d
 S

e
s
s
io

n
s
 (

4
 

o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

rt
s
, 

2
 o

n
 v

is
u
a
l 
a
rt

s
 a

n
d
 4

 

o
n
 l
iv

e
 a

rt
) 

w
e
re

 d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 t

o
 s

m
a
ll
 g

ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
a
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
li
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
, 

a
n
d
 

c
o
v
e
re

d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
a
n
d
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

k
il
ls

, 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
, 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h

e
 G

r
a
s
s
r
o

o
ts

 P
r
o

g
r
a
m

m
e
 -

 A
r
ts

 

A
d

m
in

 B
a
s
e
 

B
r
ig

h
to

n
 F

r
in

g
e
 A

r
ts

 P
r
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
h
is

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 t

h
e
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
a
n
 

a
rt

s
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 b

a
s
e
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
 b

y
 

lo
c
a
ll
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

rt
is

ts
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

B
F
A
P
 t

o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 a

 m
e
n
to

ri
n
g
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

it
h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 b

a
s
e
d
 A

rt
s
A
d
m

in
. 

 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
is

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 

s
o
li
d
if
ie

d
 B

F
A
P
’s

 i
n
te

n
t 

to
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 

re
g
io

n
a
l 
a
rt

s
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
, 

s
p
e
c
ia

li
s
in

g
 i
n
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 a
rt

is
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
a
n
d
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 m

e
n
to

ri
n
g
. 

 

B
F
A
P
 h

a
v
e
 o

v
e
r 

6
0
 a

rt
is

ts
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

rt
s
 a

d
m

in
 b

a
s
e
 p

e
r 

m
o
n
th

. 
 

F
r
in

g
e
 V

e
n

u
e
 B

o
a
r
d

s
 

B
r
ig

h
to

n
 F

e
s
ti

v
a
l 

F
r
in

g
e
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 2

0
0
6
 f
e
s
ti
v
a
l 
fr

in
g
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 P

R
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

la
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e
re

d
 v

e
n
u
e
 b

o
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 v

e
n
u
e
s
 (

a
n
 i
d
e
a
 t

h
a
t 

w
a
s
 

o
ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 E

d
in

b
u
rg

h
) 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

 p
u
ll
 o

u
t 

v
e
n
u
e
 m

a
p
 

fo
r 

th
e
 f

e
s
ti
v
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

C
a
s
e
 S

tu
d

ie
s
 

F
o
u
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
e
re

 s
e
le

c
te

d
 f
o
r 

a
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

il
e
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
, 

th
e
s
e
 b

e
in

g
: 

C
e
le

b
ra

ti
n
g
 A

g
e
, 

th
e
 G

ra
s
s
ro

o
ts

 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 P

u
b
li
c
 A

rt
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 L

iv
e
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
e
re

 s
e
le

c
te

d
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 a

 v
a
ri
e
d
 c

ro
s
s
-s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

E
a
c
h
 h

a
d
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
im

p
a
c
t,

 a
n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
m

 a
tt

ra
c
te

d
 l
o
c
a
l,
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l,
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
.

T
h
e
y
 v

a
ri

e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
te

n
t,

 s
ty

le
 a

n
d
 a

rt
-f

o
rm

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

e
n
a
b
le

d
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 n

e
w

 p
ro

d
u
c
t 

a
n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

 T
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
rt

is
ts

 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 e

n
s
u
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

s
k
il
ls

 a
n
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 a

n
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
.

5
5

87



14

4. Value for Money 

making a difference has attracted audience and participants across the 

south-east to the benefit to both communities and artists alike.  The 

highly participative nature of the programme and the substantial 

proportion of outdoor and free or very low charging events combined to 

attract new audiences in many ways. 

The following table describes the audiences, artists and events for 

individual projects in numerical terms for the four strands of activity. 

Project Artists
Others/ 

participants
Audience

No. of 

performances 

No. of 

new
products

Period of 

employment

Creating new work 35 1108 438568 352 19 800

Transforming the City 337 6631 23446 374 44 1376

Living in Brighton and Hove 5164 2016 163549 896 256 497

Working in Brighton and Hove 5536 9755 625563 1622 319 2673

TOTALS 5700 13562 732097 1792 335 5386

Audiences 

The data shows a total audience figure of 732,097.  This is roughly 

equivalent to three times the population of Brighton and Hove, 

demonstrating that making a difference has impacted upon a significant 

proportion of the local population.  

The figure of 732,097 can be further broken down to 448,761 for public 

art viewings and 283,336 for performance, exhibitions and live event 

attendance.  Future attendances have been estimated.  The 1,792 

performances had an average audience of 158, and the highest attended 

event was the Groupe F performance with an audience of 70,000.  Overall, 

it is clear that making a difference has had a major impact upon arts 

attendances – both planned and incidental – in Brighton and Hove. 

Levels of participation are also high.  At 13,562, this represents nearly 5% 

of the total population of Brighton and Hove, often through opportunities 

for first-time involvement in the arts.  The UCP subsidy is in the region of 

£1 per attendance or ‘viewing’ which has clearly enabled widespread 

exposure to creative activity at an economic and affordable level. 

The programme provided employment for 5,386 artist days, suggesting 

that the UCP has contributed something over £538k to artists’ earnings – 

at least 50% of this providing local employment for artists. 

56

88



15

Income

The total value of the making a difference programme was £2,078,175, 

which included funds raised by individual projects and held externally.

The direct income amounted to £1,339,025.

UCP ACE BHCC
Other
Public

Private
sector

Grants Other

750000 354000 65000 186650 599500 96775 26250 

By the end of the programme the original UCP investment of £750,000 

had increased three fold and amounted to only 36% of total income with 

the private sector (including sponsorship) contributing 29%. 

These figures demonstrate the capacity of UCP funding to lever and 

attract additional resources and exploit the opportunities for sponsorship 

offered by a high profile arts programme.  The success of making a 

difference in attracting non-arts funding is exemplified by the Department 

of Work and Pensions support for Celebrating Age. 

57

89



16

5. making a difference: the future 

making a difference has highlighted the unique nature of Brighton as a 

city of creativity.  The Urban Cultural Programme made the city’s 

ambitions, as expressed in its capital of Culture bid, a reality in many 

ways.  It enabled the Brighton & Hove Arts Commission to become a 

credible partnership with real resources to distribute, and the flexibility of 

the funding provided the opportunity for the City Council to be more 

imaginative in the use of those resources. 

Proposals

The Urban Cultural Programme will demonstrate its value over the coming 

years, and for this investment to be effectively exploited a focussed 

approach to the development of legacy benefits will be necessary. 

5.1 Regional and National Role 

Brighton and Hove’s urban cultural leadership role, both regionally and 

nationally, has been illustrated by the making a difference programme, 

and there is more that can be undertaken in this arena through the 

Cultural Cities Network.  The city’s unique position as a centre for artists 

and cultural organisations, and its leading role in arts development in an 

urban environment provides models of good and excellent practice. 

It is recommended that Brighton and Hove continues to engage with 

the Cultural Cities Network, and develops its role as a regional 

centre of excellence that can work in partnership to promote 

national models.

5.2 The Arts Economy 

Investment in the arts economy of Brighton and Hove is necessary if the 

momentum developed over the past ten years is to be maintained.  The 

Urban Cultural Programme has been instrumental in providing 

opportunities for the next generation of cultural entrepreneurs and a new 

programme of investment could build on the achievements of the 

Grassroots programme. 

It is recommended that the Brighton and Hove Arts Commission and 

City Council explore the potential for further investment in this area 

to enable artists and emerging arts businesses to find their place in 

the local creative economy. 

5.3 Environmental Programmes 

Eco-Brighton was an initiative that demonstrated the power of the artist to 

articulate questions of environmental sustainability meaningfully and 

imaginatively giving local relevance to global issues in schools and local 

communities. 

58

90



17

It is proposed that the Eco-Brighton programme is developed as 

model with the capacity to become a regional and national resource 

through the active engagement of the arts communities of Brighton 

and Hove.  A well thought out programme of work that includes a 

major flagship event could demonstrate the city’s capacity to take a 

leadership role in arts and the environment. 

5.4 Celebrating Age 

Celebrating Age was the largest single project of making a difference.  It 

levered the highest levels of external funding, attracted governmental 

support, created one of the programme’s national events (50 over 50), 

and hosted a national conference.  It was able to address some of the key 

issues that need to be faced by an ageing and changing society, and 

provided multiple opportunities for engagement and participation by 

communities and artists alike.  The gains made in profiling the creativity 

of older people have placed the city at the centre of this debate and could 

be taken further. 

It is recommended that the City Council explore the potential to 

extend the life of Celebrating Age and of 50 over 50 with a view to 

establishing an ongoing programme of work that is embedded in the 

cultural life of the City.  Attention should also be given to developing 

other national partners for 50 over 50 

5.5 Cross Departmental Working 

The Urban Cultural Programme has enabled consolidation of cultural 

practice across the local authority structure.  Most importantly, the ability 

to commission and develop projects in partnership with other council 

departments has provided a real demonstration of the capability of the 

arts to serve many different social agendas.  

To maintain momentum and build on the success demonstrated by 

making a difference, it is proposed that the City Council develops 

this potential through: secondments; cross-departmental 

presentations; an internal cultural group; and the development of 

new projects. 

5.6 Website and Communications 

making a difference enabled a new channel of communications to be 

established between audiences, artists, participants and partners through 

the Brighton & Hove Arts Commission website that gave access to 

proposals and tenders, information on events and other activities.  

It is proposed that a review is undertaken to asses the current and 

future value of the website to the arts communities and wider 

communities. 

59

91



18

5.7 Work with Primary School Children 

The Friendship demonstrated the untapped potential for creative work 

with children of primary school age in Brighton and Hove that brought 

together schools, teachers, artists, families and children to celebrate 

creativity and imagination.  The project demonstrated the potential to 

place artists and arts organisations within the learning environment and 

use the city’s cultural organisations as a learning resource.

It is recommended that the City explores the potential for an annual 

Children’s Festival that will build the creative capacity of teachers 

and schools and to raise the profile of creative programmes with 

younger people.

5.8 Brighton and Hove Arts Commission 

The impact of making a difference upon the Arts Commission has been 

significant, and has had a catalytic effect upon the organisation.  

It is therefore recommended that the Arts Commission considers its 

strategic priorities; its role in defining and setting cultural agendas 

and policy for the City and its capacity to independently raise funds 

for new and existing work and role as an innovator in delivering 

creative leadership 

A wide ranging debate on the future of the Arts Commission would identify 

key priorities for the city over the coming years.  As a body that has both 

independence and political support, the Arts Commission can make the 

benefits of the Urban Cultural Programme sustainable in the longer term. 

60

92



19

6.  Conclusion 

Arts and culture have been defining factors in Brighton & Hove’s past 

successes and are key to the city’s future identity.  These are not 

incidental to the City’s prosperity: they are an essential part of it.  Arts 

and culture boost the local economy, enhance the city environment and 

improve the life and well-being of all the City’s residents, both young and 

old.

making a difference has been an unparalleled demonstration of Brighton & 

Hove’s cultural distinctiveness and its capacity to respond imaginatively to 

new challenges.  The moderate investment from the Urban Cultural 

Programme further stimulated Brighton & Hove’s ability to deliver 

innovative and creative work in partnership with artists, arts 

organisations, residents and businesses.  As the UK looks forward to the 

Liverpool European Capital of Culture in 2008 and the London Olympics in 

2012, Brighton & Hove has a central role to play in demonstrating the 

wealth of opportunity that exists when artists are nurtured, creative 

businesses supported and creativity valued within a civic, social and 

economic context. making a difference was a demonstration of this and 

has reinforced Brighton and Hove’s position as one of the UK’s leading 

cultural cities. 

January 2007 

61

93



20

7.  Further information 

For further information, please contact: 

Paula Murray 

Head of Arts & Creative Industries 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

King’s House 

Grand Avenue 

Hove

East Sussex 

BN3 2LS 

telephone:  (01273) 292534 

e-mail: paula.murray@brighton-hove.gov.uk

web:   www.brightonandhoveartscommission.org.uk 

62

94



8. making a difference Images 

Part of Brighton & Hove’s Arts Commission’s making a difference initiative.

Funded by the Urban Cultural Programme.  
www.brightonandhoveartscommission.org.uk

Creating Photographs: Compton/Bicycle Ballet/Groupe F & Frantic Assembly ©Matthew Andrews 

Transforming Photographs: Hove Footbridge/Park Art & Palm House ©Matthew Andrews - Pink Pavilion ©Stewart Wier 

Working Photographs: Little Red Dress ©Hazel Maddock – Frantic Assembly ©Matthew Andrews  – Adult Playground/Brighton Live 05 ©Dave Flindall 

Living Photographs: Shall We Dance/Friendship Feast ©Matthew Andrews  – Groupe F Audience ©Karen Poley    –   Whitehorses ©Dave Flindall 

63

95



APPENDIX 6 

 

Beacon and Local Innovation Awards Schemes 

Well managed festivals and events in Brighton & Hove 

Brighton & Hove City Council - Supporting and encouraging well managed festivals and events. 

Summary 

Cultural events and festivals are fundamental to our city’s economy - Brighton Festival is the 
biggest arts festival in England bringing a substantial amount of money to the city. 

Events organisers were frustrated with the strictly regulated licensing procedures that took 
time to complete. However, if events are not run and managed properly, there is the 
potential for disastrous consequences. Our reputation as a venue and the city’s economic 
wellbeing could be seriously compromised.   

Teams across the council work together to support event organisers and have built strong 
partnerships with police. As a result, the Brighton Festival and Brighton Fringe Festival go 
from strength to strength. We host more than 60 other festivals a year alongside a busy and 
varied events calendar. 

Key learnings 

 Strong partnerships and a common purpose lead to successful management of 
events.

 Identifying common ground and focussing on solutions helps everyone work together 
better and get a better end result. This benefits the city and its residents.  

 We learnt from our mistakes. We should ask what we would do again and what we 
could do to make this event better/run more smoothly.  

 Regulation is necessary but needs to be well controlled and flexible. It doesn’t need 
to be prohibitive.

 Recognition that events and festivals are valued and central to the city’s identity and 
economy

Background to the authority  

Brighton & Hove is the eighth most popular tourist destination in the country and attracts 
eight million visitors a year, bringing over £400 million to the city. The festivals and other 
events the city hosts every year are part of the attraction for visitors. Many of these are held 
in our parks and gardens and along the seafront. 

Brighton & Hove City Council’s priorities for the city were different to those of the police. This 
often resulted in strained working relationships and frustration on both sides.   

64

96



APPENDIX 6 

 

Who was involved 
Organisation/role and what they did 

Leader of the Council and Cabinet Members
Key leadership role, recognising the importance of festivals and events to the city and 
encouraging their development. 

Brighton & Hove City Council, Licensing Team, Events Team, Environmental Health 
Team, Community Safety Team, Emergency Planning Team and Arts Team

 Work closely together to smooth the way and support event organisers.  

 Further develop partnership working – see below for more details.  

 Secondment to Brighton Festival to improve relationships and imbed good working in 
the programme strategy. 

Sussex Police
Further develop partnership working – see below for more details 

Business Crime Reduction Partnership 
Using radio network to keep each other and police informed of any problems 

The issues 

 Brighton & Hove’s tourism industry makes a major contribution to the city’s economy. 
It is vital for the economic wellbeing of the city to maintain and build on our reputation 
as a cosmopolitan city which hosts a variety of diverse festivals and events that are 
attractive to both residents and visitors.  

 The long, bureaucratic and strictly regulated process of applying for alcohol and 
entertainment licenses was frustrating the organisers of outdoor cultural events in the 
city. This led to difficulties between the council and the organisers. Licenses were not 
applied for in time with events having to be postponed or cancelled.  

 Events organisers felt discouraged from returning to Brighton & Hove as a venue.  

 The council’s licensing team had a high volume of extra licensing applications to 
process. Complaints from residents about noise nuisance and mess from outdoor 
events were making it more difficult to grant licenses.  

 The council and police didn’t anticipate the exceptional crowd management issues 
and impact of Fat Boy Slim’s first Beach Party.  

 Managing the mixed bag of event organisers ranging from the very professional and 
experienced to those who have no experience at all.

How we tackled the issues 

 We licensed all our parks and gardens and parts of the seafront to make it simpler for 
events organisers.

 The events team have an events calendar to enable advance planning. For example, 
informing organisers if and when they need to make licence applications.  

 The events team developed an event guide which outlines what event organisers 
need to do to hold an event in Brighton & Hove.  

 The council developed closer working relationships within the council and with the 
police.  Specialist officers from both organisations now work together in an 
experienced team. The team supports organisers and works with them to keep their 
event acceptable to local residents and safe for everyone.  

65

97



APPENDIX 6 

 

 The council and police listen to residents and work with organisers to come up with 
solutions that are acceptable to both sides.  

 The events team have a close relationship with the council’s refuse and street 
cleansing teams. They can prioritise their work to clean up after events without 
residents having to forego their regular services. We also hold a deposit to pay for 
the clear up after events if organisers leave an unacceptable mess.  

 Along with the police and other emergency services, the council set up a partnership 
Safety Advisory Group to pick up on potential problems with events.  

 Members of the local Nightsafe initiative and Business Improvement District security 
guards use their radios to keep each other and police informed of any problems.  

 We seconded one of our arts officers to Brighton Festival to advise on programming 
and producing outdoor events

Outcomes and impact

 Events and festivals return to Brighton & Hove year on year. We now host more than 
60 festivals a year and numerous other events.  

 Fewer licensing applications save officer time and lead to better relationships with 
events organisers.

 Each large scale event now has a dedicated team of partners working together on 
the safety and crowd management issues. The event organiser manages their 
statutory responsibilities in consultation with the team. 

Proactive work with organisers before an event reduces the need for enforcement action, 
saving on officer time. It also makes the event safer and more enjoyable for the public who 
are more likely to come to another event in the city. Residents are happy for the event to 
return.

Chief Inspector Mills of Sussex Police said: 
“The relationship with the council on events if far better in Brighton & Hove than anywhere 
else in the Sussex Police area”. 

The Spiegel tent 

When the Brighton Festival introduced The Spiegel tent – a theatre in a tent – in the Pavilion 
Gardens in the town centre for the three weeks of the Brighton Festival, audiences loved it.   
However, there were a lot of complaints from residents about the noise. There was talk of 
scrapping The Spiegel tent for the next Festival. Then the council and the organisers got 
together to look for a solution. 

As a result: 

 The Spiegel tent has been moved to a different city centre location, where there are 
fewer residents.

 The organisers have worked very closely with our environmental health team to 
monitor and, where necessary, reduce noise levels.

 There was only one complaint about noise for the three weeks of the 2009 Fringe 
Festival.

 We are looking forward to welcoming The Spiegel tent again next year. 

66

98



APPENDIX 6 

 

Fatboy Slim beach party 

In July 2002 Fatboy Slim’s first beach party drew 250,000 people - 190,000 more than 
anticipated. The council's culture committee considered banning large open-air events on 
the beach but decided to develop new guidelines to enable them to be held safely. 
Councillors were sensitive to both the safety of the public and benefits such events bring to 
the city. 

As a result: 

 Fatboy Slim’s spokesman said that they would adhere to any council 
recommendations in regard to future plans for live events on Brighton beach. They 
have successfully held a further three events with another planned for next year.  

 The council, police and other emergency services set up a partnership Safety 
Advisory Group to come up with the guidelines. They now meet regularly to pick up 
on any potential problems with events in the city.  

 In the lead up to all big events we run multi agency planning meetings and a ‘table 
top’ exercise to run through the agencies’ responses to different potential 
emergencies. The outcome of the table top exercise is then related back to the plans 
for the event. They are amended as appropriate.  

 A new set of guidelines were developed which limits the number of people for big 
events, makes events ticket-only and can restrict events to a fenced-in area.  

 Officers have better relationships within the council and with partner organisations. 
This makes the management of events much easier and smoother with everyone 
working towards a common purpose.

 The police and licensing services are now known for their positive and ‘can do’ 
attitude towards cultural events. 

What could we have done better? 

We have developed a better understanding of how big events work and the impact they have 
on local residents. In retrospect, we could have: 

 anticipated the possibility of noise complaints from the Spiegel tent at its first location 
due to the proximity of residential accommodation  

 had a set of guidelines for big events in place sooner  

 and anticipated the draw of Fat Boy Slim. 

Next steps 

Brighton & Hove City Council is considering relaxing its street trading policy in some areas of 
the city to encourage and simplify the organisation of street markets. 

The multi agency Safety Advisory Group will continue to meet. 

Officers will continue to work proactively with events organisers. We will continue to look at 
ways to improve the mix of events and activities for all our communities.  

We are happy to share our practice with other areas. 

67

99



APPENDIX 6 

 

For further information 

name: Tina Perrett, Beacon Coordinator 

address: Room G10 
Kings House 
Grand Avenue 
Hove BN3 2LS 

email:   tina.perrett@brighton-hove.gov.uk

phone:  01273 290358 (Tues, Wed , Thurs) 

website: www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/beacon

 
 
Web Link to Beacons site: 

http://www.beacons.idea.gov.uk/idk/core/page.do?pageId=11283228 
 

68

100



CULTURE, TOURISM & 
ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 39  
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

  

 

Subject: - Local Area Agreement– 09/10 mid-year 
progress  

- Libraries performance focus 

Date of Meeting: 23rd November 09 

Report of: The Director of Strategy and Governance / 
Culture & Enterprise 

Contact Officer: Name:  Lisa Shaw Tel: 29-1131 

 E-mail: Lisa.shaw@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE  

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

 

1.1 This cover report summarises performance against the Local Area 
Agreement at mid-year 09/10 and within the appendix are a number of LAA 
delivery plans, some of which fall under the direct responsibility of Culture & 
Enterprise Directorate and others that do not – they all reflect the remit of 
this committee. 

1.2 Building on the LAA delivery plan, the performance focus in this cover report 
gives more detailed information and context about the Libraries and 
Information Service.  

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

2.1 That the committee have an up to date overview of performance 
against key indicators within the Local Area Agreement and request an 
end of year update after April 2010  

2.2 That members of this committee consider and suggest another area of 
focus for overview  

2.3 That the committee reflects upon the detail in the report and use this 
information to direct and recommend future work to improve 
performance against the agreed priorities in the Local Area Agreement.   

 

101



 

 

3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

3.1 A Local Area Agreement (LAA) is a partnership agreement to take 
action to tackle the area’s most important problems and goals for the 
future. It is a three year agreement between the council and other 
public services. 35 key targets are included which are priorities agreed 
between the council, other public services and the government.  

 
The council, as the area’s democratic voice, takes the leading role. It 
brings together other public services, and representatives of local 
businesses, and community and voluntary organisations, in the Local 
Strategic Partnership. This partnership negotiated the Local Area 
Agreement, a practical plan to move forward the longer term aims set out 
in the community strategy. Local Area Agreements in this form have been 
agreed for all parts of England for 2008-11. This is a requirement of the 
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. 
 
It should also be noted that GOSE are allowing us to put a case forward 
for renegotiating economic and employment related targets due to the 
recession.   

 

3.2 The appended report contains 10 09/10 delivery plans for the priorities 
within the Local Area Agreement in Brighton & Hove.  A wide variety of 
LAA plans are included due to the wide remit of this committee.  
 

3.3 Of the 10 plans within the appendix, 3 are red, 1 amber, 4 green and 2 
grey: 

• Areas where performance is off-track include the number of people on 
out of work benefits and GVA per capita, further detail about these was 
given at the last committee in October. Another area of low performance 
is the numbers of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or 
training (NEET).     

• Areas in need of improvement (amber) are the percentage of the adult 
population who are participating in sport or active recreation.  

• Targets on-track includes engagement in the arts, children in organised 
visits to museums, engagement in libraries and business registration 
rate. 

• Those areas tagged grey do not have results or targets to make a 
valuable judgement of progress, this includes improving the visitor 
economy and Brighton Centre development. In this case, judgements 
against progress should be taken from the information presented in the 
detail of the plan and in the case of these three areas of work; are 
making positive progress against their activities at this point in the year.  

 

   The remainder of this report focuses on three areas of performance for 
Libraries & Information.  

102



 

 

 

3.4 Performance Focus – Libraries & Information  

 Libraries and Information within the Local Area Agreement focus on a 
‘local’ target called Community Engagement in Local Libraries.  Within 
the improvement plan for this indicator there are targets for improving 
visits, ICT access, stock levels, library run activities, children’s learning 
and many more.  Taking a snap shot of progress towards the targets set 
at mid-year in 09/10, the picture is looking largely positive, detailed 
information given in the appended delivery plan (L21).  This service 
experiences seasonal fluctuations in take-up of services due to school 
holidays and university term times so in some cases it is difficult to 
identify if an area is underachieving or not.  When looking back at the 
targets set in 2008/09 almost all were achieved, therefore improvement 
targets were set for this year.  

 

The remainder of this report gives more detail about the libraries service 
and some performance outcomes that give us a sense of value for 
money.  Focus is also given to the one area of the LAA delivery plan 
that is not on track and explanation is given for improvement (ICT take 
up).  

 

3.5 NI 9 Public Use of Local Libraries  

National Indictor 9 is a statutory indicator that tracks the use of public 
libraries at the local level through a survey called Active People Survey. 
It measures the percentage of the adult population who say they have 
used a public library service once in the last 12 months.   Baseline 
results (tracked for first time in 08/09) indicate that Brighton & Hove are 
achieving 52.3%, nationally the average is 48.2% and the South East 
average is 48.6% so this puts us in the higher quartile of performers 
and well above the national average.    

 

Since the release of this baseline data we have received 
supplementary data giving us a sense of progress until the next official 
result is released (51.8% -no real statistical change for us).  When 
looking at this result in comparison to our nearest neighbour group of 
15 other local authorities we rank 4th from the top performer. Using the 
same figure, when comparing our situation in relation to NI 9, we are 
ranked 10th of 92 Unitary Authorities.  

 

3.6 Cost per visit and Satisfaction rates 

 

The latest CIPFA statistics (2007-08) show that Brighton & Hove have 
the lowest cost per visit to libraries (£2.59) compared with our 15 
nearest statistical neighbours (average £3.34), using net costs to 
eliminate the PFI factor.  Even though there is no comparative data 

103



available yet for 08/09, locally, cost per visit has dropped to £2.36. See 
diagram below for trends.   

Cost per Visit (net) 

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09

Year

C
o
s
t 
(£
)

BHCC

 
 

2007-2008 Comparisons: Brighton & Hove 
Libraries  

Nearest 
Neighbours 
average  

Cost per visit £2.59 £3.34 

Net expenditure per head of 
population 

£17.50 £17.40 

Expenditure on staff (as % of 
gross expenditure) 

41% 54% 

Total book acquisitions 38,237 37,923 

Total book issues 1,143,363 (4th highest) 1,069,016 

Estimated number of visits to 
website 

2,047,601 (highest) 314,822 

Number of physical visits 1,714,359 (3rd highest) 1,107,217 

Visits per head of population 6.8 (2nd highest) 5.3 

Active borrowers 46,857 44,474 

 

When looking at expenditure per head of population (rather than visits) 
in comparison to the nearest neighbour set, Brighton & Hove spend is 
average at £17.50 in 07/08.  When looking at these encouraging cost 
figures it is also worth noting the high levels of resident satisfaction we 
have in Brighton & Hove. 

 

Levels of satisfaction with the library service have been improving since 
2000 when levels were at 55.8% and have now increased to 73.3% in 
the 2008 Place Survey. Taking the 2008 satisfaction results it is 
interesting to note the national average result was 69% and the South 
East average was 70.2% so Brighton & Hove are performing well 
above average.  
 

104



However, between the 2007 City views survey and 2008 Place survey 
there has been a drop in satisfaction levels, from 80.3% to 73.3%. 
Taking into account a confidence interval for the reliability of the survey 
data, it looks as though the drop is in the region of 4-5%.  This could be 
attributed to a number of factors: 

• Change in survey methodology: The Place Survey is a different 
type of survey to Cityviews and this has had an impact on 
Libraries satisfaction nationally.  

• The steep rise from 2003-06, continuing into 2007 will be the 
result of the Jubilee Library development. The high impact of this 
will inevitably reduce after a number of years, though overall 
levels of use and satisfaction remain high, especially in 
comparison to comparable authorities.  

 

Percentage very or fairly satisfied with the Library service 

in Brighton & Hove

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

2000 BVPI

Satisfaction

Survey

2003 BVPI

Satisfaction

Survey

2006 BVPI

Satisfaction

Survey

2007

Cityviews

Survey

2008 Place

Survey

Year of Survey

% Series1

 

 

3.7 Percentage take up of available ICT time in libraries  

 

This target tracks public use of computers in libraries compared with 
the hours available. The purpose of this measure is to identify how well 
the public computers are being used. Current progress up until the end 
of September 09 suggests that 45% of available time and computer 
space is taken up, against a target of 50%.  In 06/07 the take up was at 
46%, then down to 40% in 07/08 and 08/09.   

 

Low performance is attributed to inconsistencies in data collection, 
which is currently being addressed. Not all use was being recorded, 
e.g. use by Homework Clubs, and the performance has been affected 
by out of order equipment as most PCs are between 4 and 6 years old. 
It must also be considered that there are peaks and troughs in demand 
for access. 

105



 

It is the intention to replace all of the public computers this year to 
improve performance and satisfaction levels. The service is also 
looking to replace the bookings system so that more accurate data can 
be collected on public usage.  

 

More importantly, the service is looking to replace this measure with 
more appropriate indicators of the impact of free public access to 
computers. The CIPFA ICT survey (2008) has produced good data on 
the range of benefits identified by the library computer users, including: 

• 37% use computers for work or study, including 

• 19% for job hunting 

• 68% of users had no home internet access 

• Over 90% satisfaction with staff support  

 

It is the intention to change the performance measure for this aspect of 
the service from a quantitative measure to a qualitative one, by 
measuring user satisfaction with the facilities. Current performance on 
this measure would be a 77% satisfaction level.  

 

 

4. CONSULTATION 

4.1 None 

 

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 

Financial Implications: 

5.1 Evidence of performance against the National Indicators and delivery of 
Value for Money will be key elements of the Comprehensive Area 
Assessment. Successful achievement of the LAA outcomes 2008-2011 
will attract performance reward grant payable in 2011/12 and 2012/13.  

  

 Finance Officer consulted: Anne Silley Date: 10 November 09 

  

Legal Implications: 

5.2 The report sets out information as to how the council are performing in 
respect of local and national indicators and Local Area Agreement 
targets. Individual reports presented to Cabinet, CMMs and Project 
Boards relating to specific projects and proposals always include legal 
implications and it is not considered necessary to reproduce that advice 
here, given the context of the report. 

 

 Lawyer consulted: Bob Bruce  Date: 10 November 09 

 

106



Equalities Implications: 

5.3 The new performance management framework aims to incorporate 
monitoring of progress against equalities and inclusion outcomes in the 
city. 

Sustainability Implications: 

5.4 The new performance management framework aims to incorporate 
monitoring of progress against sustainability outcomes in the city. 
 

Crime & Disorder Implications:  

5.5  No crime and disorder implications arising from this report. 
 

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

5.6 The management of performance is important and contributes to 
avoiding the risk that the councils improvement priorities will not be 
delivered.  Progress against performance indicators informs our risk 
and opportunity management assessments. 

 

Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

5.7 TMT have a performance focus session each month, this is recognised 
as good practice and allows for both a quarterly overview of the 
organisations performance against the LAA and more spotlighted 
discussions on areas that require additional discussion.  These 
discussions will feed into the service planning timetable and 
establishment of a new Corporate Plan in the future.  This is an 
essential part of the council’s performance management framework, 
providing the link between the new 3 year Corporate Plan and annual 
directorate and Team plans.   

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices: 

1. Local Area Agreement – Mid year 09/10 progress 

 

Documents in Members’ Rooms: 

1. None  

 

Background Documents: 

1. None 

 

107



108



��
�
��
�
��
�
�
	

��
��


��
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
� 
�
�
�
!
"
�
	�
�
#
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�	
�
�

�
�
	�
�


�
��
�
�
�
�
�

109



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�

�
�
�
��


	

�
�
	�




�
�
��
�
	

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
c
tu

a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 

%
 

 7
.8

0
 

 7
.6

0
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

T
h

e
 l
a

te
s
t 

re
s
u

lt
 i
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 b
e

in
g

 a
n

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
N

o
v
/D

e
c
/J

a
n

. 
 T

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 c
o
m

p
a

re
s
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h

 n
e

a
re

s
t 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

r 
re

s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
7

.9
%

 (
B

ri
s
to

l)
 a

n
d

 8
.2

%
 (

B
o

u
rn

e
m

o
u

th
) 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

m
p

a
ra

ti
v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 s

tr
o

n
g

. 
 T

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

p
ri

n
g

 o
f 

2
0

1
0

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
7

.1
0

. 
N

E
E

T
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
is

in
g

 i
n

 r
e

c
e

n
t 

m
o

n
th

s
. 

 I
n

 A
u

g
 

2
0

0
9

, 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 5

0
0

 N
E

E
T

s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 3
9

8
 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
8

, 
a

 r
is

e
 

o
f 

2
5

%
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

 e
x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 r
e

c
e

n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

s
 i
n

 N
E

E
T

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

te
s
t 

o
ff

ic
ia

l 
re

s
u

lt
 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 g

o
o

d
 p

ro
s
p

e
c
ts

 f
o

r 
m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
 w

e
ll,

 
c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
. 

N
I1

1
7

 -
 1

6
 t

o
 1

8
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s

 w
h

o
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 

(N
E

E
T

) 

1
.2

.1
 :

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

G
u

a
ra

n
te

e
 (

S
G

) 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

ll
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 h
a
v
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 i
n

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 f
o

r 
a
t 

le
a
s
t 

tw
o

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

y
e
a
rs

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
y
 l

e
a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
u

ls
o

ry
 e

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

A
ll 

y
e

a
r 

1
1
 p

u
p

ils
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 t

h
e
ir
 i
n
te

n
d
e

d
 d

e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 

th
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 t

o
 L

S
C

 a
n
d
 1

4
-1

9
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
B

o
a
rd

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

0
9
/1

0
 a

n
d
 b

e
y
o
n
d
. 

T
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

L
S

C
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 T

e
a
m

. 
T

h
e
 ‘
N

o
 o

ff
e
r 

m
a
d
e
 –

 n
o
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
’ 
fi
g
u
re

s
 a

re
 Y

e
a
r 

1
1
, 

0
.9

5
%

 a
n
d
 Y

e
a
r 

1
2
, 

0
.6

5
%

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.2

.1
.1

 :
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
re

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 

o
f 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 i
f 

n
o
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 o
ff

e
r 

w
a
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
n

y
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 s
o
 t

h
a
t 

 t
h
e
y
 c

a
n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 

P
h
ili

p
 W

a
rd

 

T
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
S

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 n

o
t 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
  

fo
r 

b
o
th

 y
e
a
rs

 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 

th
a
n
 2

%
. 

A
s
 o

f 
5
th

 O
c
t,
 f

o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

1
1
 c

o
h

o
rt

, 
th

e
 f
ig

u
re

 w
a
s
 

0
.9

5
%

 a
n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 Y

e
a
r 

1
2
 c

o
h
o
rt

, 
1
.4

1
%

. 
B

o
th

 t
h
e
s
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
s
in

c
e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.2

.1
.1

 :
 A

ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

G
 c

o
h
o
rt

 h
a
v
e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 S
G

 s
ta

tu
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
. 

R
im

a
 D

e
s
a
i 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

110



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

1
.2

.2
 :

 P
ro

v
id

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 E
E

T
 a

n
d

 p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

: 
•D

ip
lo

m
a
s
 

•A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

E
2
E

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 

•F
a

s
t 

la
n

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

1
 D

ip
lo

m
a
 b

e
g
a
n
 i
n
 2

0
0

8
/9

 w
it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

5
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

a
d

v
e
rt

is
e
d
 f

o
r 

S
e
p
t 

1
0
 s

ta
rt

. 
T

h
e
 1

0
/1

1
 D

ip
lo

m
a
 o

ff
e
r 

is
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 u

p
lo

a
d

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

re
a
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.2

.2
.1

 :
 D

ip
lo

m
a
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 a
n

d
 

p
u
b
lic

is
e
d
 o

n
 A

re
a
 P

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
 

P
h
ili

p
 W

a
rd

 

1
.2

.7
 :

 K
e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 4

 (
K

S
4
) 

E
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 b
y
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

s
 a

t 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
d

is
e
n

g
a
g

in
g

 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 E

n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

m
e
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 

M
a
n

a
g
e
r 

o
f 

C
it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e
 (

a
 k

e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

o
f 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
) 

o
n
 2

1
.9

.0
9
  

to
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

e
n
g
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
ty

p
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 b

e
y
o

n
d
 t

h
e
 l
if
e
ti
m

e
 

o
f 

th
e
 K

S
4
E

P
 (

J
u
ly

 1
0
) 

a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 s

it
 w

it
h
in

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o

n
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
. 

A
 p

a
p
e
r 

s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 1

4
-4

6
 

D
e
p
u
ti
e
s
 G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 3

0
.9

.0
9
. 

 
 T

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d

e
d
 d

e
p

u
ty

 h
e

a
d
 h

a
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 h

e
r 

m
a
p
p
in

g
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
l 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

a
n
d
 h

a
s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 h

e
r 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a

n
t 

w
h

o
 i
s
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

G
a
te

w
a

y
 4

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

G
a
te

w
a

y
 4

 i
s
 a

s
k
in

g
 L

A
s
 t

o
 s

h
a
re

 t
h
e
ir
 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o

n
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 b

e
in

g
 s

h
a
re

d
 a

t 
S

M
T

 l
e

v
e
l 
(b

o
th

 L
A

 a
n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

) 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 m
o
m

e
n
tu

m
 o

n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o

n
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 i
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.2

.7
.1

 :
 P

ro
d
u
c
e
 a

 c
it
y
w

id
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

fo
r 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 T
ie

r 
in

 p
la

c
e
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
0
. 

F
L
T

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 s

tu
d

y
in

g
 a

t 
b
e
lo

w
 

L
e

v
e
l 
2
 w

it
h
 a

 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 p

a
th

w
a

y
 i
n
to

 
w

o
rk

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
. 

K
ir
s
te

n
 T

ru
s
s
e
ll 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

111



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

1
.2

.7
 :

 K
e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 4

 (
K

S
4
) 

E
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 b
y
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

s
 a

t 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
d

is
e
n

g
a
g

in
g

 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

1
0
8
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 s
ta

rt
e
d
 o

n
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 i
n
 S

e
p
t 

0
9
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
e

w
 

c
o
u
rs

e
s
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 e

v
e
ry

 6
 w

e
e
k
s
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.2

.7
.2

 :
 2

7
6
 Y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

in
d
in

g
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 E
E

T
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 

a
ft

e
r 

le
a
v
in

g
 c

o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

K
ir
s
te

n
 T

ru
s
s
e
ll 

1
.2

.8
 :

 E
s
ta

b
li

s
h

 9
 C

o
n

n
e
x
io

n
s
 P

lu
s
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 f

ro
m

 w
h

e
re

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 a

re
a
 t

e
a
m

s
 c

a
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
, 

g
u

id
a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e
o

p
le

. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 f

o
o
tf

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

te
a
d

ily
 s

in
c
e
 s

e
tt

in
g
 

u
p
 C

o
n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 P

lu
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
. 

O
u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

is
 t

o
 

h
a

v
e
 5

0
0
 a

s
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

s
e
a
s
o
n
a

l 
v
a
ri

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
m

o
n
th

 f
o
o
tf

a
ll 

is
 5

9
0
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.2

.8
.1

 :
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 

n
e

w
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 o
v
e
r 

ti
m

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

C
o
n
n
e

x
io

n
s
 P

lu
s
 f

o
o
tf

a
ll 

o
f 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 5

0
0
 p

e
r 

m
o
n
th

 

P
h
ili

p
 W

a
rd

 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

112



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�

�
�
�
��


	

�
�
	�




�
�
��
�
	

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
c
tu

a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 

N
o

. 
 2

2
,2

1
3

.0
0

 
 2

0
,1

1
5

.0
0

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 (

1
6

-5
9

 f
o

r 
fe

m
a

le
s
 a

n
d

 
1

6
-6

4
 f

o
r 

m
a

le
s
) 

w
h

o
 a

re
 c

la
im

in
g

 o
u

t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 (
u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

n
 J

o
b

s
e

e
k
e

rs
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

, 
L

o
n

e
 P

a
re

n
ts

 o
n

 I
n

c
o
m

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
, 

 
In

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

  
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
, 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

rs
 o

n
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

).
 

 D
a

ta
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

Q
2

 o
f 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 w
ill

 b
e

 
re

le
a

s
e

d
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

. 
 T

h
e

 l
a

te
s
t 

re
s
u

lt
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 i
s
 a

 4
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 u

p
 u

n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
 -

 2
2

,2
1

3
 (

0
8

/0
9

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 2

0
,6

3
0

) 

N
I1

5
2

 T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 p
e
o

p
le

 c
la

im
in

g
 o

u
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 

1
.3

.1
 :

 M
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 S

k
il

ls
 S

te
e
ri

n
g

 G
ro

u
p

 i
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 C

E
S

P
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

113



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

1
.3

.1
 :

 M
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 S

k
il

ls
 S

te
e
ri

n
g

 G
ro

u
p

 i
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 C

E
S

P
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

A
 n

e
w

 C
E

S
P

 t
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 A

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
. 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 C

it
y
 E

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

&
 S

k
ill

s
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 

s
ig

n
e
d
 a

 m
e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 o
f 

A
c
c
o
rd

 o
n
 t

h
e
 1

s
t 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

to
 

re
it
e
ra

te
 t

h
e
ir
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
. 

 E
a
c
h
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 p

ro
m

is
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

&
 S

k
ill

s
 p

la
n
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

w
ill

 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

y
c
le

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

in
te

g
ra

l 
to

 t
h
e
ir
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
. 

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 s

ig
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
c
c
o
rd

 e
a
c
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

m
a
d
e
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 d
e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 a

re
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 e

n
g
a
g

e
 i
n
 a

 n
e

w
 w

a
y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
. 

 T
h
e
m

e
 l
e
a
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

E
S

P
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 h

a
v
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 g

o
o
d
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 l
e
a
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 t

h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 

w
ill

 u
p

d
a
te

 t
h
e
 C

E
S

S
G

 o
n
 a

n
y
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 /

is
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 t

h
e
m

e
 

in
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

C
E

S
S

G
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

n
 1

9
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r.

 A
 m

id
 y

e
a
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 b

y
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

C
E

S
S

G
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.3

.1
.1

 :
 T

ra
c
k
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 8

 t
h
e
m

e
s
 

in
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 E

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
S

k
ill

s
 a

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
 a

 m
id

-y
e
a
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

C
E

S
S

G
 

in
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

C
h
e
ry

l 
F

in
e
lla

 

1
.3

.2
 :

 B
re

a
k
th

ro
u

g
h

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

w
h

ic
h

 a
s
s
is

ts
 w

o
rk

le
s
s
 c

it
y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 b

a
c
k
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 l

a
b

o
u

r 
m

a
rk

e
t 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

114



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

1
.3

.2
 :

 B
re

a
k
th

ro
u

g
h

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

w
h

ic
h

 a
s
s
is

ts
 w

o
rk

le
s
s
 c

it
y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 b

a
c
k
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 l

a
b

o
u

r 
m

a
rk

e
t 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 i
ts

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 f
o
r 

a
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 y

e
a
r.

  
 T

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 o

n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

 w
it
h
 a

ll 
th

e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
p
la

n
, 

is
 o

v
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

ll 
o
f 

it
s
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
. 

 
 M

o
re

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 A

p
r 

-  
S

e
p
 0

9
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 

1
5
9
 u

n
e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 (
a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
8
0
 f

o
r 

th
is

 
p
e
ri
o
d
) 

o
f 

w
h
o
m

; 
 • 

2
0
 h

a
v
e
 m

o
v
e
d
 i
n
to

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

(a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
0
) 

• 
9
 i
n
to

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 (

a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
0
) 

• 
2
9
 i
n
to

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 (

a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

2
5
).

  
 

 In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 9

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

o
rk

 e
x
p
e
ri
e

n
c
e
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
h

e
re

a
s
 2

 a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 a
 w

o
rk

 e
x
p
e
ri
e

n
c
e
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

s
o
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

w
o
rk

 e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
 w

a
s
 1

0
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.3

.2
.1

 :
 'B

re
a
k
th

ro
u
g
h
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
' t

o
 s

e
e
 3

0
0
 

w
o
rk

le
s
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 e
n
g

a
g
e
d
, 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
: 

- 
6
0
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 w
o
rk

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
 

- 
5
0
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t,

  
- 

5
0
 t

o
 p

a
rt

a
k
e
 i
n
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 

- 
1
2
5
 g

a
in

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

A
n
g
e
la

 G
a
it
a
n

i 

1
.3

.3
 :

 P
a
rt

-f
u

n
d

, 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
d

e
li

v
e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 F

u
tu

re
s
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 T

o
u
ri
s
m

 F
u
tu

re
s
 P

re
-E

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

T
ra

in
in

g
 (

P
E

T
) 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
e

liv
e
ry

 o
f 
W

e
lf
a
re

 t
o
 W

o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

A
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

s
in

c
e
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 t

h
e
 a

ft
e
r 

c
a
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

o
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
r’
s
 W

e
lf
a
re

 t
o
 

W
o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

J
u
l/
2
0
1
0
 

1
.3

.3
.1

 :
 'F

u
tu

re
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
' 

A
n
g
e
la

 G
a
it
a
n

i 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

115



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

1
.3

.4
 :

 F
u

ll
y
-f

u
n

d
 t

h
e
 W

ir
e
d

 S
u

s
s
e
x
 I

n
te

rn
s
h

ip
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
, 

o
ff

e
ri

n
g

 g
ra

d
u

a
te

s
 s

ix
 w

e
e
k
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

ig
it

a
l 
m

e
d

ia
 s

e
c
to

r 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

W
ir
e
d
 S

u
s
s
e
x
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e

s
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 

D
ig

it
a
l 
M

e
d

ia
 I

n
te

rn
s
h
ip

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

im
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

1
0
0
 s

h
o
rt

-t
e
rm

 i
n
te

rn
s
h
ip

s
 a

t 
a
 w

id
e
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

g
a
m

e
s
, 

w
e
b
, 

s
o
ft

w
a
re

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 a
n
im

a
ti
o
n
, 
T

V
, 

e
-l
e
a
rn

in
g
, 
m

u
s
ic

, 
fi
lm

 
a
n
d
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
. 

 
  T

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
g
u
n
 v

e
ry

 w
e
ll 

th
is

 y
e

a
r,

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 s
e
t 

fo
r 

Q
1
 a

n
d
 Q

2
. 
T

h
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

u
s
s
e
x
 I

n
te

rn
s
h
ip

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 a
n
d
 p

o
p
u

la
te

d
 w

it
h
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 

d
if
fe

ri
n
g
 t

y
p
e
s
 o

f 
jo

b
 r

o
le

s
 i
n
 m

e
d
ia

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 i
n

te
rn

s
h
ip

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rn
s
h
ip

s
 o

n
 

o
ff

e
r 

in
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
tr

a
n
c
h
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 
5
6
0
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 s

k
ill

s
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
, 

w
h

e
re

a
s
 6

3
7
2
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
. 

T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

4
0
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

e
re

 s
o
u
rc

e
d
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 a

 1
-2

-1
 b

a
s
is

. 
 T

h
e
 4

0
 i
n
te

rn
s
h
ip

s
 w

e
re

 m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 w

id
e
ly

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 5
6

0
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
m

, 
a
n
d
 a

ll 
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

2
5
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 s
h
o
rt

lis
te

d
 t

o
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
 s

ta
g
e
. 

4
0
 

in
te

rn
s
 w

e
re

 s
u
b
s
e

q
u
e

n
tl
y
 s

e
le

c
te

d
. 

O
f 

th
e
s
e
, 

3
6
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 t

h
e
ir
 i
n
te

rn
s
h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 4

 h
a

d
 t

o
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
 a

t 
s
h
o
rt

 
n
o
ti
c
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 4

 i
n
te

rn
s
h

ip
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

o
w

 
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 t

ra
n
c
h
e
. 

 
 A

ll 
in

te
rn

s
 t

o
o
k
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 t

h
e
 W

ir
e
d
 S

u
s
s
e
x
 2

 d
a

y
 t

ra
in

in
g
 c

o
u
rs

e
 

w
h

ic
h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

s
k
ill

s
, 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
m

e
d
ia

, 
n
e
tw

o
rk

in
g
 f

o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 w

ri
ti
n
g
 s

k
ill

s
 f

o
r 

m
e
d
ia

. 
 

O
c
t/

2
0
1
0
 

1
.3

.4
.1

 :
 W

ir
e
d
 S

u
s
s
e
x
 I
n
te

rn
s
h
ip

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r:

 
- 

1
0
0
 g

ra
d
u

a
te

 i
n
te

rn
s
h
ip

s
 

- 
1
0
5
0
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

 g
iv

e
n

 a
d
v
ic

e
 /

 a
s
s
is

te
d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 s

k
ill

s
 b

a
s
e
 

- 
7
0
0
 g

iv
e
n
 c

a
re

e
rs

 a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

ro
le

s
 

A
n
g
e
la

 G
a
it
a
n

i 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

116



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

1
.3

.4
 :

 F
u

ll
y
-f

u
n

d
 t

h
e
 W

ir
e
d

 S
u

s
s
e
x
 I

n
te

rn
s
h

ip
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
, 

o
ff

e
ri

n
g

 g
ra

d
u

a
te

s
 s

ix
 w

e
e
k
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

ig
it

a
l 
m

e
d

ia
 s

e
c
to

r 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 f

in
is

h
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1

0
. 

1
.3

.5
 :

 M
a
p

 t
h

e
 p

ro
fi

le
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
’s

 a
v
a
il

a
b

le
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
s
p

a
c
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 t

o
 b

o
th

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 i
n
te

rn
a
lly

 a
s
 

a
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

to
o
l.
 

B
R

II
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 B

R
II

 
B

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 -

 W
o
rk

 i
s
 w

e
ll 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 i
n
 

d
e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.3

.5
.1

 :
 D

e
liv

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

R
e
te

n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
w

a
rd

 I
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
(B

R
II

) 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
n
d
 u

p
d

a
te

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
. 

A
n
d
y
 G

lo
v
e
r 

1
.3

.6
 :

 P
a
rt

-f
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
“
B

a
c
k
 t

o
 W

o
rk

”
 P

ro
je

c
t,

 w
h

ic
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

 p
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
c
la

im
a
n

ts
 i

n
 m

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 

tr
a
n

s
it

io
n

 t
o

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

117



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

1
.3

.6
 :

 P
a
rt

-f
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
“
B

a
c
k
 t

o
 W

o
rk

”
 P

ro
je

c
t,

 w
h

ic
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

 p
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
c
la

im
a
n

ts
 i

n
 m

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 

tr
a
n

s
it

io
n

 t
o

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
e
lp

s
 p

e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 w
it
h

 t
h
e
ir
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
to

 w
o
rk

. 
A

 D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a

ry
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 P

a
y
m

e
n
t 
(D

H
P

) 
c
o
v
e
rs

 p
a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
n
t 

lia
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 

a
s
s
is

t 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 i
n
to

 w
o
rk

. 
T

h
is

 p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

is
 

in
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

th
a
t 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 
m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
. 

T
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

u
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 P

a
y
m

e
n
t 

is
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
b
a
s
is

. 
 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 h

a
d
 2

9
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

D
H

P
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 
a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

4
0
. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 u

n
ti
l 
it
 r

e
a
c
h
e
s
 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

4
0
. 

 T
h
e
 r

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 t
h
e
 b

ig
g
e
s
t 

p
ro

b
le

m
 i
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 i
ts

 
ta

rg
e
ts

. 
F

a
r 

m
o
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 l
o
s
in

g
 j
o
b
s
, 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 

g
o
in

g
 i
n
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

 P
ro

je
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
ry

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 m
a
d
e
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 g
o
o
d
 c

h
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 a

 s
h
o
rt

-t
e
rm

 o
ff

e
r 

o
f 

w
o
rk

 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
k
e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
e
y
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 i
ts

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
a
le

n
d

a
r 

y
e

a
r.

 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

ft
e
r 

C
E

S
S

G
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

fi
n
is

h
e
s
. 

F
u
tu

re
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
e

n
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e

d
. 

T
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
e
a
m

 w
ill

 c
o
n

ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 
w

it
h
 J

C
P

, 
R

B
L
I 

&
 A

4
E

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 p
e
o
p

le
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 
a
 D

H
P

. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.3

.6
.1

 :
 'B

a
c
k
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

je
c
t' 

A
n
g
e
la

 G
a
it
a
n

i 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

118



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�

�
�
�
��


	

�
�
	�




�
�
��
�
	

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
c
tu

a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 

N
o

. 
 7

2
.8

0
 

 6
5

.0
0

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
n

e
w

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 r

e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

V
A

T
 a

n
d

 P
A

Y
E

 p
e

r 
1

0
,0

0
0

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 1

6
 a

n
d

 a
b

o
v
e

. 
 R

e
s
u

lt
 i
s
 2

0
0

7
 d

a
ta

. 
 2

0
0

8
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

le
a

s
e

d
 i
n

 N
o

v
/D

e
c
 2

0
0

9
. 

 
0

8
/0

9
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
a

s
 7

1
.8

. 

N
I1

7
1

 -
 N

e
w

 b
u

s
in

e
s

s
 r

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 r
a

te
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0
0

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 (
V

A
T

 
a

n
d

 P
A

Y
E

) 

1
.5

.1
 :

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
’s

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 o

ff
e
r 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

m
o

re
 i

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 e
x
te

rn
a
l 

c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 B

R
II

 B
o
a
rd

 
a
n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 w

e
ll 

u
n

d
e
rw

a
y
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.5

.1
.1

 :
 D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
w

a
rd

 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

A
n
d
y
 G

lo
v
e
r 

1
.5

.2
 :

 A
s
s
is

t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
 f

in
d

in
g

 s
u

it
a
b

le
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

p
re

m
is

e
s

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 B

R
II

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 t

o
 

re
fr

e
s
h
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 D

a
ta

b
a
s
e
. 

T
h
e
 s

u
p
p
lie

r 
h

a
s
 m

e
t 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

c
it
y
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

.T
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
n

d
e
rw

a
y
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

th
e
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.5

.2
.1

 :
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 t

o
 e

n
h

a
n
c
e
 i
ts

 a
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 

m
o
re

 u
s
e
r-

fr
ie

n
d
ly

 a
n
d
 h

e
lp

fu
l 
fo

r 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
. 

A
n
d
y
 G

lo
v
e
r 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

119



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�

�
�
�
��


	

�
�
	�




�
�
��
�
	

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
c
tu

a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 

%
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

N
o

 d
a

ta
, 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 p

la
n

. 
 L

e
a

d
 a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
fi
m

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

te
a

m
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 b
y
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 L

if
e

 i
n

 M
id

 O
c
to

b
e

r.
 T

a
rg

e
t 

d
a

te
 

fo
r 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
fi
n
in

g
 a

 v
ia

b
le

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 i
n

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

0
.  

L
 0

1
 -

 P
ro

g
re

s
s

 t
o

w
a

rd
s

 t
h

e
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 

1
.6

.1
 :

 T
o

 a
g

re
e
 a

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

it
h

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 L
if

e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

H
e
a
d
s
 o

f 
te

rm
s
 e

x
c
h
a

n
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

x
e
c
u
te

d
 o

n
 2

2
 D

e
c
 0

8
 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.6

.1
.1

 :
 E

x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
H

e
a
d
s
 o

f 
T

e
rm

s
 w

it
h
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 L
if
e
 I

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 
D

a
v
id

 F
le

m
in

g
 

1
.6

.2
 :

 I
n

it
ia

te
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

p
p

o
in

t 
a
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

n
o
ti
c
e
 d

e
s
p
a
tc

h
e
d
 1

3
 J

a
n
 0

9
 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.6

.2
.1

 :
 I

s
s
u
e
 t

h
e
 O

J
E

U
 N

o
ti
c
e
 

D
a
v
id

 F
le

m
in

g
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

120



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

1
.6

.2
 :

 I
n

it
ia

te
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

p
p

o
in

t 
a
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

'M
a
k
e
' a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
te

a
m

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d

 a
s
 l
e
a
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

o
v
e
te

d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 s

it
e
 -

 2
7
 J

u
ly

. 
 

A
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 T

e
a
m

 m
a
d
e
 b

y
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 L
if
e
 i
n
 m

id
 O

c
to

b
e
r.

  
C

o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 2

8
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

fo
r 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
, 

S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
E

n
g
in

e
e
rs

, 
Q

u
a
n
ti
ty

 S
u
rv

e
y
in

g
 a

n
d
 M

e
c
h

a
n
ic

a
l,
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
a

n
d
 

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.6

.2
.2

 :
 A

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

o
f 

L
e
a
d
 A

rc
h
it
e
c
t 

a
n
d
 

D
e
s
ig

n
 T

e
a
m

 
D

a
v
id

 F
le

m
in

g
 

1
.6

.3
 :

 T
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 d

e
fi

n
e
 a

 v
ia

b
le

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

ix
 m

o
n
th

s
 a

ft
e
r 

fu
ll 

c
o
m

p
lim

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 t

e
a
m

 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 –

 a
t 

th
e
 

e
a
rl
ie

s
t.

  
C

u
rr

e
n
t 

6
 m

o
n
th

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

 i
s
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1

0
. 

J
u
l/
2
0
1
0
 

1
.6

.3
.1

 :
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 
s
ta

g
e
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
s
tu

d
y
 a

n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

D
a
v
id

 F
le

m
in

g
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

121



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�

�
�
�
��


	

�
�
	�




�
�
��
�
	

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
c
tu

a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 

£
 

 1
9

,4
7

7
.0

0
 

 2
0

,7
6

0
.0

0
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

G
V

A
 i
s
 a

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a

l 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
. 

G
ro

s
s
 V

a
lu

e
 

A
d

d
e

d
 s

u
m

s
 t

h
e

 a
d

d
e

d
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
a

ll 
g

o
o

d
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 i
n

 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

 a
n

d
 d

iv
id

e
s
 t

h
is

 b
y
 t

h
e

 t
o

ta
l 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a

. 
A

 
re

la
ti
v
e

ly
 h

ig
h

 G
V

A
 p

e
r 

h
e

a
d

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 l
o

c
a
l 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 i
s
 

h
e

a
lt
h

y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
v
e

. 
 B

a
s
e

lin
e

 -
 1

8
,8

3
3

 (
2

0
0

5
 d

a
ta

).
 T

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 2

0
0

6
 d

a
ta

 -
 t

h
e

 
la

te
s
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
. 

0
8

/0
9

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 2

0
,1

8
5

. 

L
 0

2
 -

 G
ro

s
s

 V
a

lu
e

 A
d

d
e

d
 P

e
r 

H
e
a

d
 

1
.7

.1
 :

 P
a
rt

-f
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

li
n

ic
s
 o

ff
e
re

d
, 

o
ff

e
re

d
 b

y
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
 t

o
 l
o

c
a
l 

S
M

E
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 m
o

re
 t

h
a
n

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

C
it
y
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

lin
ic

 s
lo

ts
 w

e
re

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 1

6
 p

e
r 

m
o
n
th

 f
ro

m
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 t
o
 J

u
n
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

if
e
b
e
lt
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

4
9
 c

lin
ic

s
 w

e
re

 f
ill

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 t
im

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
, 
m

e
a
n
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

4
9
 

lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d
 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 d
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 

re
c
e
s
s
io

n
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 
 C

lin
ic

 s
lo

ts
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t

o
 e

ig
h
t 

p
e

r 
m

o
n
th

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

n
e

w
 t

w
o
 y

e
a
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
b
u
t 

h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

w
it
h
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 a

t 
n
o
 e

x
tr

a
 c

o
s
t.

 T
h
e
 t

w
o
 y

e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
fi
lle

d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

lin
ic

 s
lo

ts
 i
s
 1

0
0
, 

w
h

ic
h
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 
v
a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

P
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
0
9
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 e

n
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
1
 

1
.7

.1
.1

 :
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
 -

 1
0
0
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

lin
ic

 s
lo

ts
 

fi
lle

d
 (

2
 y

e
a
r 

p
ro

je
c
t)

 
R

o
b
 D

a
w

s
o

n
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

122



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

1
.7

.2
 :

 P
ro

v
id

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e
 C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

e
 i

n
 o

ff
e
ri

n
g

 e
x
p

a
n

d
e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 n

e
w

 a
n

d
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 e

x
c
e
e

d
 i
t's

 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

n
d
 e

v
e
n
ts

 h
e
ld

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

if
e
b
e
lt
 e

v
e
n
ts

 t
o
 i
ts

 c
o
re

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
 

n
e

w
 C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
, 

n
e

w
 l
iv

e
 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 a

n
d
 a

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.7

.2
.1

 :
 C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 -

 3
3
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 e

v
e

n
ts

 a
n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

1
5
0
0
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0

9
 a

n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
0
. 

Y
e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t

o
 w

e
b
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

n
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 a

d
d
e

d
 t

o
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 

s
ig

n
p
o
s
t 

lo
c
a

l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 

R
o
b
 D

a
w

s
o

n
 

1
.7

.3
 :

 E
n

s
u

re
 B

&
H

 b
e
n

e
fi

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 S
E

E
D

A
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 I
n

n
o

v
a
ti

o
n

 &
 G

ro
w

th
 T

e
a
m

s
 (

IG
T

) 
to

 b
e
 e

s
ta

b
li

s
h

e
d

 i
n

 2
0
0
9
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 E

a
s
t 

S
u
s
s
e
x
 I

n
n
o

v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 G

ro
w

th
 

T
e
a
m

 b
id

 w
a
s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 b

y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 S

e
e
d
a
 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
0
9
. 

A
m

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

la
n
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 a

ft
e
r 

a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h
 S

e
e
d
a
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

s
te

p
 i
s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 f

u
lly

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

n
d
o
rs

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 I
n
o
v
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 G

ro
w

th
 

T
e
a
m

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
w

ill
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

te
a
m

 i
s
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

to
 b

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n

a
l 
b

y
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
0
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.7

.3
.1

 :
 S

E
E

D
A

 f
u
n
d
e
d

 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 G

ro
w

th
 

T
e
a
m

s
 -

 B
ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 i
n

v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

it
y
. 

R
o
b
 D

a
w

s
o

n
 

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 I
G

T
 w

ill
 o

p
e
ra

te
 i
n
 E

a
s
t 

S
u
s
s
e
x
 a

n
d
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e
, 

m
e
a
n
in

g
 m

a
n
y
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
re

 s
ta

k
e
-h

o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d
 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 

c
a
s
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
. 
G

iv
e
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 

S
E

E
D

A
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

re
c
e
p
ti
v
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

' a
m

b
it
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 I
G

T
, 

a
n
d
 

it
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 t

e
a
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

in
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
1

0
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.7

.3
.2

 :
 M

e
a
n
in

g
fu

l 
p
re

s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
S

E
E

D
A

 
In

n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
w

th
 T

e
a

m
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 

R
o
b
 D

a
w

s
o

n
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

123



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

1
.7

.4
 :

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 L

if
e
b

e
lt

 p
ro

je
c
t 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

if
e
b
e
lt
 P

h
a
s
e

 1
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

1
,4

0
0
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 

a
lr
e
a
d

y
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

 i
n
 t

h
is

 t
im

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

if
e
b
e
lt
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

5
0
0
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
),

 s
c
o
ri
n

g
 o

v
e
r 

9
0

%
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

P
h
a
s
e
 2

 o
f 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

if
e
b
e
lt
 s

e
t 

to
 s

ta
rt

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

1
0
. 

O
c
t/

2
0
0
9
 

1
.7

.4
.1

 :
 7

6
4
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

lif
e
ti
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

R
o
b
 D

a
w

s
o

n
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

124



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�

�
�
�
��


	

�
�
	�




�
�
��
�
	

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
c
tu

a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 

£
 

 4
3

4
.2

0
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

T
h

e
 m

o
d

e
l 
re

s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
7

 d
o

 n
o

t 
a

c
c
o

rd
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a
lly

 o
b

ta
in

e
d

 d
a

ta
 

a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

e
d

 s
o

u
rc

e
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
th

e
 m

o
d

e
l.
 A

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 m
o

d
e

l 
fo

r 
m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
is

 b
e

in
g

 e
x
p

lo
re

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 w

it
h

 T
o

u
ri

s
m

 S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t.

  
J
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
ta

rg
e

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 V
is

it
o

r 
E

c
o

n
o
m

y
. 

 In
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
, 

th
e

 p
ic

tu
re

 i
s
 l
o
o

k
in

g
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
. 

 T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
u

n
iq

u
e

 
w

e
b

 v
is

it
o

rs
 t

o
 w

w
w

.v
is

it
b

ri
g
h

to
n

.c
o

m
 i
s
 g

ro
w

in
g

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 b

o
o

k
in

g
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 V

is
it
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 i
s
 s

e
t 

to
 e

x
c
e

e
d

 i
ts

 
ta

rg
e

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
V

is
it
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 h

a
s
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 i
ts

 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
a

lr
e

a
d

y
. 

 D
is

a
p

p
o

in
ti
n

g
ly

 t
h

e
 b

id
 f

o
r 

th
e

 L
a

b
o

u
r 

P
a

rt
y
 

C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 w
a

s
 n

o
t 

s
u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a

n
d

 t
h
is

 h
a

s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 t

h
e

 l
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 o

f 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 £

6
3

m
 o

f 
d

ir
e

c
t 

e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 b
o

o
k
in

g
s
 

in
 0

9
/1

0
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 c

it
y
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 n

e
w

 e
v
e

n
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e

 C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
v
e

 P
a

rt
y
 S

p
ri

n
g

 F
o

ru
m

 a
n

d
 l
ik

e
ly

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

io
n

 o
f 

£
4

5
m

. 

L
 0

4
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 v

is
it

o
r 

e
c

o
n

o
m

y
 (

£
 m

il
li
o

n
) 

1
.9

.1
 :

 V
a
lu

e
 o

f 
c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e
s
 w

o
n

 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

F
ro

m
 1

 A
p
r 

0
9
 –

 3
0
 S

e
p
t 

0
9
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 1

7
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 

w
it
h
 d

ir
e
c
t 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

o
f 

£
2
5
.4

8
m

. 
M

a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.9

.1
.1

 :
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 £

6
3
m

 o
f 

d
ir
e
c
t 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

(D
E

B
) 

fr
o
m

 c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 b

o
o
k
in

g
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 1

 A
p
ri

l 
2
0
0

9
 –

 3
1

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
 

J
u
lia

 G
a
lla

g
h
e
r 

1
.9

.2
 :

 N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 o
f 

V
is

it
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 3

0
6
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
0
9
 -

 2
1
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

0
9
 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.9

.2
.1

 :
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 3

2
5
 V

is
it
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 b
y
 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
. 

S
u
z
a

n
n
e
 M

a
n
te

ll 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

125



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

1
.9

.3
 :

 W
e
b

 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
n

d
/o

r 
e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

a
d

v
e
rt

is
in

g
 s

p
e
n

d
 o

r 
P

R
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 w

w
w

.v
is

it
b
ri

g
h
to

n
.c

o
m

 s
it
e
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 4

1
6
,5

3
9
 u

n
iq

u
e
 

w
e

b
 v

is
it
o
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 1

 A
p
ri
l 
–
 3

1
 A

u
g
u
s
t.

 
M

a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.9

.3
.1

 :
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 1

 m
ill

io
n
 u

n
iq

u
e
 w

e
b
 v

is
it
o
rs

 i
n
 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 1

 A
p
ri

l 
2
0
0
9
 –

 3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 t

o
 

w
w

w
.v

is
it
b
ri
g
h
to

n
.c

o
m

 

J
o
h
n
 C

a
rm

ic
h
a
e
l 

V
is

it
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 h

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 1

,2
7
2
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b

o
o
k
in

g
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 1

 A
p
ri

l 
–
 3

1
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.9

.3
.2

 :
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 2

,0
0
0
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

b
o
o
k
in

g
s
 m

a
d
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 V
is

it
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 1

 A
p
ri

l 
2
0
0

9
 –

 3
1

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
 

J
o
h
n
 C

a
rm

ic
h
a
e
l 

M
e
d

ia
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 w

it
h
 a

 E
V

A
 o

f 
£
1
.1

 m
ill

io
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 1

 A
p
ri

l 
–
 1

5
 S

e
p
t.

 
M

a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

1
.9

.3
.3

 :
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 m

e
d
ia

 c
o
v
e
ra

g
e
 w

it
h
 a

n
 

E
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

V
a
lu

e
 A

d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 (

E
V

A
) 

o
f 

£
2
m

ill
io

n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 1

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0

0
9
 –

 3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
 

J
o
h
n
 C

a
rm

ic
h
a
e
l 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

126



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

�
��


�
�
��


�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
	

�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	�


�
�
�

	

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
c
tu

a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 

%
 

 2
2

.1
0

 
 2

5
.4

0
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

T
h

is
 f

ig
u

re
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

d
u

lt
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
n

g
 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 o
r 

a
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

3
0

 m
in

u
te

s
 o

n
 3

 
d

a
y
s
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
s
 a

n
 I

n
te

ri
m

 f
ig

u
re

 t
a

k
e

n
 f

ro
m

 s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 d
a

ta
 f

o
r 

s
u

rv
e

y
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 A

p
ri

l 
0

8
 t

o
 A

p
r 

0
9

. 
 

A
c
tu

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
 t

a
k
e

n
 f

o
rm

 t
h

e
 A

c
ti
v
e

 P
e

o
p

le
 S

u
rv

e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 
D

e
c
 0

9
. 

 
T

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

0
5

. 

L
 1

8
 (

N
I0

0
8

) 
- 

A
d

u
lt

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

v
e

 r
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

 

4
.5

.1
 :

 R
a
is

e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fi

le
 o

f 
S

p
o

rt
 &

 L
e
is

u
re

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 a

n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
fa

c
ili

ty
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

B
S

F
 t

o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 u

s
a
g
e
, 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

lu
b
s
 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

e
re

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 

re
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.1
.1

 :
 M

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 S

p
o
rt

s
 &

 
P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 t

o
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
 

s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
v
e
rv

ie
w

 f
o
r 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

S
e
v
e

n
 A

w
a
rd

 c
a
te

g
o
ri

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 n

o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 

p
a
c
k
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
. 

S
p
o
n
s
o
rs

h
ip

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

s
o
u
rc

e
d
 f

ro
m

 D
C

 L
e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 N

H
S

 B
ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

A
w

a
rd

s
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 b

e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 a

s
 T

h
e
 

C
it
y
 S

p
o
rt

s
 &

 P
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 A

w
a
rd

s
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.1
.2

 :
 D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 C

it
y
 S

p
o
rt

s
 A

w
a
rd

s
 t

o
 

re
w

a
rd

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
 t

a
le

n
te

d
 a

th
le

te
’s

 
c
o
a
c
h
e
s
, 

v
o

lu
n
te

e
rs

 a
n

d
 c

lu
b
s
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

127



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.5

.1
 :

 R
a
is

e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fi

le
 o

f 
S

p
o

rt
 &

 L
e
is

u
re

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 a

n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

O
v
e
r 

5
0
 l
o
c
a

l 
c
lu

b
s
/o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 f

o
ru

m
 a

t 
T

h
e
 

A
lb

io
n
 S

tu
d

y
 S

u
p

p
o
rt

 C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 t

o
p
ic

s
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 c

lu
b
 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

u
p
d
a
te

s
, 

T
A

K
E

P
A

R
T

, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 

v
o

lu
n
te

e
ri

n
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
, 

2
0
1
2
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 a

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
ru

m
. 
 

T
h
e
 ‘
S

p
o
rt

s
 W

a
v
e
’,
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 n

e
w

s
le

tt
e
r 

is
 c

o
o

l 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.1
.3

 :
 D

e
liv

e
r 

tw
o
 S

p
o
rt

s
 F

o
ru

m
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

c
lu

b
s
 t
o
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

T
h
e
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
O

ly
m

p
ic

s
 T

e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
e
te

d
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 a
n
d
 

a
n
n
u

a
l 
e

v
e
n
ts

 h
a

v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 –

 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 B

ik
e
 r

id
e
, 

th
e
 2

 w
e
e
k
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e
 I

n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

F
e
s
ti
v
a
l 
o
f 

S
p
o
rt

, 
T

A
K

E
P

A
R

T
 &

 P
a
d
d
le

 A
ro

u
n
d

 t
h
e
 P

ie
r 

a
n
d
 

W
h
it
e
 A

ir
- 

th
e
 E

x
tr

e
m

e
 S

p
o
rt

s
 F

e
s
ti
v
a
l.
 C

a
r 

F
re

e
 D

a
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

a
n

y
 o

th
e
r 

e
v
e
n
ts

. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.1
.4

 :
 E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a

l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
s
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 e

v
e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 
p
ro

fi
le

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o

u
t 

th
e
 C

it
y
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

4
.5

.2
 :

 T
o

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 m
a
rk

e
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 s
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
 O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

S
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 L

e
is

u
re

 o
p
p
o

rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 i
n
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
fo

rm
a
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 l
e

a
fl
e
ts

, 
p
re

s
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e
s
, 

p
o
s
te

rs
 a

n
d
 

w
e

b
s
it
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 A

c
ti
v
e
 F

o
r 

L
if
e
 o

n
-l
in

e
 f

o
ru

m
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 o

n
 g

o
in

g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 S

p
o
rt

s
 W

a
v
e
, 
a
 S

p
o
rt

 &
 L

e
is

u
re

 n
e

w
s
le

tt
e
r 

is
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e

d
 a

n
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
. 

T
h
e
 A

c
ti
v
e
 F

o
r 

L
if
e
 w

e
b

s
it
e
 h

a
s
 4

2
0
 c

lu
b
s
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d
 a

n
d
 

re
c
e
iv

e
s
 o

v
e
r 

6
0
0

0
 v

is
it
s
 a

 m
o
n
th

. 
T

h
e
 A

c
ti
v
e
 F

o
r 

L
if
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ri
e
s
 a

re
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 a
n

d
 G

P
 s

u
rg

e
ri
e
s
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.2
.1

 :
 P

ro
m

o
te

 s
p
o
rt

s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
fo

rm
a
ts

. 
J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

128



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.5

.2
 :

 T
o

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 m
a
rk

e
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 s
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
 O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

a
s
te

r 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

t 
e
v
e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

C
h
o
ic

e
s
 D

a
y
 f

o
r 

a
d
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 a

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
, 

s
ta

ff
 

c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
. 

T
A

K
E

P
A

R
T

 2
0
0
9
 –

 B
ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e

’s
 

In
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
F

e
s
ti
v
a
l 
o
f 

S
p
o
rt

 w
h

ic
h
 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 

w
e

e
k
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
ts

 e
x
p

o
s
u
re

 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
s
 5

9
,0

0
0
 t

o
o
k
 

p
a
rt

 a
n
d
 i
n

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 o
v
e
r 

2
0
0
 c

lu
b
s
, 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.2
.2

 :
 P

ro
v
id

e
 s

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 e

v
e

n
ts

 a
n
d
 t

a
s
te

r 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 

to
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

T
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
‘C

h
a
n

g
e
 F

o
r 

L
if
e
’ 
a
n
d
 L

e
ts

 G
e
t 

M
o
v
in

g
 C

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

it
ie

s
, 
m

o
re

 p
e
o
p
le

, 
m

o
re

 o
ft

e
n
’ 
is

 b
e
in

g
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 o

n
 

a
ll 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

. 
2
0
1
2
 b

ra
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.2
.3

 :
 P

ro
m

o
te

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l,
 R

e
g
io

n
a
l 
a

n
d
 l
o
c
a

l 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 t

o
 d

ri
v
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
d
e
liv

e
ry

. 
J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

129



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.5

.2
 :

 T
o

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 m
a
rk

e
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 s
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
 O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 2

0
1
2
 C

it
y
w

id
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 G

ro
u
p
 f

o
rm

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 

c
it
y
 w

id
e
 2

0
1
2
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 e

v
e

n
ts

. 
 

M
a
jo

r 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t

h
is

 p
e
ri
o

d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
: 

• 
L
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 
P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
B

e
s
t,

 a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
le

a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n

g
 a

d
u
lt
s
, 

h
o
s
te

d
 b

y
 A

lb
io

n
 i
n
 t

h
e

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 O

p
e
n
 W

e
e
k
e
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 9
 e

v
e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 h
e
ld

 
in

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 

2
0
1
2
 c

e
le

b
ra

ti
o
n
s
. 

 
• 

A
t 
a
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
c
o
n

ti
n
u
e
d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 o
f 

a
 c

o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 o
f 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 t

o
 h

o
s
t 

p
re

-g
a
m

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 v

e
n

u
e
s
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 

O
ly

m
p
ic

 a
n
d
 P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

s
 G

a
m

e
s
  

• 
A

t 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
le

v
e
l,
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
’s

 s
p

o
rt

s
 c

lu
b
s
 a

n
d
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 N

H
S

 a
n
d
 D

o
ro

th
y
 S

tr
in

g
e
r 

S
p
o
rt

s
 

C
o
lle

g
e
 T

A
K

E
P

A
R

T
 h

a
s
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 
T

A
K

E
P

A
R

T
 2

0
0
9
 -

 T
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 a
im

 o
f 

th
e
 F

e
s
ti
v
a
l 
is

 t
o
 g

e
t 

m
o
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 m
o
re

 a
c
ti
v
e
 m

o
re

 o
ft

e
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 

le
v
e
ls

 i
n
 s

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 

lin
k
in

g
 t

o
 2

0
1
2
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

T
A

K
E

P
A

R
T

 a
im

s
 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 2
0
1
2
 l
e
g

a
c
y
 e

v
e

n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 

C
it
y
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
c
o
p
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
G

o
v
e
rn

in
g
 B

o
d

ie
s
 o

f 
s
p
o
rt

 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 N

H
S

 l
e
g
a
c
y
 p

la
n

 i
s
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t.

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.2
.4

 :
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 i
n
s
p
ir
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 l
e
a
d

in
g
 u

p
 t

o
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
2
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 

O
ly

m
p
ic

s
 a

n
d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 l
e
g
a
c
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

it
y
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

4
.5

.3
 :

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
lt

h
 o

f 
o

u
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 H

e
a
lt
h

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 

a
n
d
 s

u
b
 g

ro
u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 C

it
y
 s

ta
tu

s
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 a

p
p
ly

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.3
.1

 :
 W

it
h
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

th
e
 H

e
a
lt
h

y
 C

it
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h

y
 

C
it
y
 S

ta
tu

s
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

130



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.5

.3
 :

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
lt

h
 o

f 
o

u
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 l
e
is

u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
 u

s
a

g
e
 s

h
o

w
s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
s
 a

 w
h
o
le

 a
re

 o
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e

 1
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 

la
s
t 

y
e
a
rs

 f
ig

u
re

s
. 

T
h
e
 l
e
is

u
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 h
a

v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.3
.1

0
 :

 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 b
y
 1

%
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 l
e

is
u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
k
e
y
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

le
is

u
re

 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 g
o
lf
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 

a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
u
b
m

it
ti
n
g
 t

e
n
d
e
rs

. 
F

a
c
ili

ty
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
t 

th
e
 K

in
g
 A

lf
re

d
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.3
.1

1
 :

 T
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 s

it
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

T
w

o
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
, 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 

te
m

p
la

te
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 c

re
a
te

d
. 

F
a
m

ily
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 S

h
a
p
e
 U

p
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.3
.2

 :
 I

n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 N

H
S

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 
w

e
ig

h
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h

y
 l
iv

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

T
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 w

a
lk

s
 S

c
h
e

m
e
, 
W

in
n
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

c
a
te

g
o
ry

 a
t 

th
e
 i
n
a
u
g
u
ra

l 
P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
E

x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
 A

w
a
rd

s
 

a
im

s
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 p

e
o

p
le

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t

h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 t

a
k
e
 l
it
tl
e
 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
 t

o
 d

o
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
s
h
o
rt

 w
a

lk
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

T
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 l
e

v
e
ls

 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

w
a
lk

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 b

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 c

h
ro

n
ic

 h
e
a

lt
h
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
, 

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 l
o

w
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 l
e

v
e

ls
. 

 T
w

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

a
lk

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 

to
 t

h
e
 L

e
d
 H

e
a
lt
h

w
a

lk
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 n

o
w

 o
ff

e
rs

 1
6
 w

e
e
k
ly

 
w

a
lk

s
 l
e
d
 b

y
 a

 c
o
re

 t
e
a

m
 o

f 
5
0
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

.4
0
0
 n

e
w

 w
a
lk

e
rs

 
h
a

v
e
 w

a
lk

e
d
 s

in
c
e
 A

p
ri

l 
a
n
d
 a

 n
e

w
 M

u
lt
ic

u
lt
u
ra

l 
W

o
m

e
n
’s

 
G

ro
u
p
 w

a
lk

 a
n
d
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h
 A

c
ti
v
e
 f

o
r 

L
if
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 3

 ‘
S

o
u
p
 &

 S
to

m
p
’ 
e
v
e
n
ts

 i
n
 

M
o
u

ls
e
c
o
o
m

b
, 

H
o
lli

n
g
d

e
a
n
 a

n
d
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.3
.3

 :
 T

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 H

e
a
lt
h
 W

a
lk

 
S

c
h
e
m

e
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

131



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.5

.3
 :

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
lt

h
 o

f 
o

u
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 N

H
S

 e
m

p
lo

y
s
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h

w
a

lk
s
 

v
o

lu
n
te

e
r 

c
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 ‘
S

te
p
 t

o
 i
t’
 C

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 p

ilo
t.

 
M

a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.3
.4

 :
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 ‘
S

te
p
 T

o
 I

t 
‘P

ro
je

c
t 
to

 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h
 a

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h

w
a
lk

s
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

In
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 N

H
S

, 
A

S
A

 &
 D

C
 L

e
is

u
re

 t
h
e
 f

re
e
 

s
w

im
m

in
g
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 h

a
s
 s

e
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

1
3
,0

0
0
 p

e
o
p

le
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

a
n
d
 

o
v
e
r 

4
7
,0

0
0
 f

re
e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 u

p
. 

A
 s

te
e
ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 s

te
e
ri
n
g
 

g
ro

u
p
 a

tt
e
n
d
s
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 w

e
ig

h
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
. 

M
o

n
th

ly
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 S

p
o
rt

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
S

p
o
rt

 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 S

t 
L
u
k
e
’s

 P
o
o
l 
h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 s

o
u
rc

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 

p
la

n
n
e
d
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.3
.5

 :
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 D

M
C

 S
 F

re
e
 

s
w

im
m

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
u
rc

e
d
 t

o
 p

ilo
t 

w
a
te

r 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

A
c
ti
v
e
 F

o
r 

L
if
e
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.3
.6

 :
 P

ro
v
id

e
 f

re
e
 w

a
te

r 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 

in
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 f

o
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

T
h
e
 E

x
e
rc

is
e
 R

e
fe

rr
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

in
a
c
ti
v
e
, 

a
t 

lo
w

 o
r 

m
e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
 o

f 
c
h
ro

n
ic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 

h
a

v
e
 a

 d
e
s
ir
e
 t

o
 g

e
t 
m

o
re

 a
c
ti
v
e
. 

A
t 

a
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t,
 t

h
e
 

n
u
rs

e
 h

e
lp

s
 e

a
c
h
 p

a
ti
e

n
t 

to
 c

h
o
o
s
e
 a

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 t

h
a
t 

b
e
s
t 

s
u
it
s
 

th
e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
. 

 T
h
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
s
 a

 c
o
p

y
 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
fo

rm
. 
 T

h
e
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 

c
a
n
 c

h
o
s
e
 f

ro
m

 a
 w

id
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 

o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

t 
n
o
 o

r 
v
e
ry

 l
o

w
 c

o
s
t,

 a
n
d
 t

a
k
e
 p

a
rt

 f
o
r 

u
p
 t

o
 3

 
m

o
n
th

s
. 
 T

h
e
 n

u
rs

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

ti
m

e
 

a
n
d
 c

a
rr

ie
s
 o

u
t 

a
n
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 

a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
. 

H
e
a

lt
h
 

w
a

lk
s
, 

c
y
c
lin

g
 l
e
s
s
o

n
s
, 

s
w

im
m

in
g
, 

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 C
o
n
le

y
 f

it
n
e
s
s
 

c
la

s
s
e
s
, 

A
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

o
re

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
g

y
m

 b
a
s
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
 

id
e
a
 i
s
 t

o
 f

in
d
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 t

h
a
t 

b
e
s
t 

s
u
it
s
 e

a
c
h
 p

a
ti
e
n
t.

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.3
.7

 :
 I

n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 N

H
S

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h

y
 L

iv
in

g
 C

e
n
tr

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 

A
c
ti
v
e
 L

iv
in

g
 E

x
e
rc

is
e
 o

n
 P

re
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

132



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.5

.3
 :

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
lt

h
 o

f 
o

u
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

1
5
 H

e
a
lt
h
 t

ra
in

e
rs

 r
e
c
ru

it
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 B

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

C
h
a
n
g

e
 C

o
u
rs

e
 a

n
d
 C

it
y
 &

 G
u
ild

s
 t

ra
in

in
g
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.3
.8

 :
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 t

ra
in

e
rs

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

c
h
a

n
g
e
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
 p

o
s
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

T
h
e
 S

u
s
s
e
x
 A

c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h

y
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
 h

a
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 t

h
e

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 v

o
lle

y
b
a

ll,
 

b
a
s
e
b
a

ll 
a
n

d
 b

a
s
k
e
tb

a
ll.

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
 t

e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 

c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 w

e
e
k
ly

 t
a
i 
c
h
i 
a
n
d
 y

o
g

a
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 a

re
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 

o
u
t 

h
e
a
lt
h
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 f

o
r 

m
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

4
0
. 

S
ig

n
p

o
s
ti
n
g

 t
o
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.3
.9

 :
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 h

e
a

lt
h
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

4
.5

.4
 :

 T
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 i

n
e
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
 i

n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

F
u
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 N

H
S

 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
v
e

 f
o
r 

L
if
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
o
rk

s
 w

it
h

in
, 

a
n
d
 e

n
g
a

g
e
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 e

x
h

ib
it
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

h
ig

h
e
s
t 

in
d
e

x
e
s
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
d

e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
it
y
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
, 

lin
k
s
 t

o
 c

lu
b
s
, 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

. 
6
0
0
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 h
a

v
e
 e

n
g

a
g
e
d
 i
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
in

c
e
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

0
9
. 

A
n
 a

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 m

a
p
p
in

g
 o

f 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 g
a
p
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 m

a
x
im

is
e
d
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.4
.1

 :
 C

H
A

L
L
E

N
G

E
: 
T

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
liv

e
r 

a
n
d
 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 s
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
in

e
q
u
a

lit
y
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 

a
n
d
 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

L
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

c
ti
v
e
 F

o
r 

L
if
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 A

c
ti
v
e
 F

o
r 

L
if
e
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 B

ig
 L

o
tt

e
ry

 u
n
ti
l 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
 t

o
 e

m
p
lo

y
 o

n
e
 f

u
ll 

th
e
 A

c
ti
v
e
 F

o
r 

L
if
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 s
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.4
.2

 :
 T

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
s
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n
 

Q
u
e
e
n
s
 P

a
rk

 a
n
d
 C

ra
v
e
n
 V

a
le

. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

133



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.5

.4
 :

 T
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 i

n
e
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
 i

n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h

y
 L

iv
in

g
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 N

H
S

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 A

c
ti
v
e
 E

a
s
t 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 S

p
o
rt

s
 P

ro
je

c
t.
 

T
h
e
 t

e
a
m

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 l
in

k
 i
n
to

 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h

y
 L

iv
in

g
 p

re
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 t

e
a
m

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

v
e
n
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 w
o
m

e
n
 B

a
n
g
la

d
e
s
h

i 
g
e
n
tl
e
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 T

A
K

E
P

A
R

T
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
v
e
n
t 

a
t 

E
a
s
t 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 p

a
rk

. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.4
.3

 :
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 s
p
o
rt

s
 

a
n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 E

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

it
y
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 e

v
e
n
ts

 h
a

v
e
 b

e
e
n
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 f

o
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

W
e
e
k
ly

 m
in

i 
te

n
n
is

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
, 

b
o
c
c
ia

 t
o
u
rn

a
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
th

ly
 s

h
o
rt

 m
a
t 

b
o

w
ls

 l
e
a

g
u
e
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

. 
W

o
m

e
n
’s

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 e

v
e
n
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 

th
e
 R

a
c
e
 F

o
r 

L
if
e
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.4
.4

 :
 D

e
liv

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 e

v
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

lo
w

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

ty
w

id
e
 D

is
a
b

ili
ty

 w
o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 t

o
 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 s

p
o
rt

. 
A

 R
e
a
c
h
in

g
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

b
id

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n
d
 C

o
a
c
h

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

. 
A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
‘T

a
k
in

g
 P

a
rt

’ 
g
ro

u
p
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 l
e
is

u
re

 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
d
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
. 

W
o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 A

m
a
z
e
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 

C
o
m

p
a
s
s
 L

e
is

u
re

 c
a
rd

, 
a
n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 a

 c
o
a
c
h
in

g
 

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.4
.5

 :
 T

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
 D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 S

p
o
rt

 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

4
.5

.5
 :

 T
o

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 m
a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
 s

p
o

rt
 &

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

134



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.5

.5
 :

 T
o

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 m
a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
 s

p
o

rt
 &

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

A
tt

e
n
d
e
d
 C

it
y
w

id
e
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

te
e
ri

n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
fi
rs

t 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e
 C

it
y
, 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 s

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

in
te

re
s
ts

  
T

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
. 

T
h
e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

a
n
d
 c

o
a
c
h
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 

g
ro

w
. 

C
o
a
c
h
e
s
, 

c
lu

b
s
 a

n
d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 r

e
c
o
g
n

it
io

n
 

fo
r 

th
e
ir
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 s

p
o
rt

 a
t 

th
e
 C

it
y
 S

p
o
rt

s
 A

w
a
rd

s
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.5
.1

 :
 T

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 a

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

4
.5

.6
 :

 T
o

 r
a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 t

o
 s

u
s
ta

in
 a

n
d

 e
n

h
a
n

c
e
 s

p
o

rt
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

T
e
n
 T

A
K

E
P

A
R

T
 g

ra
n
ts

 w
e
re

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t

o
 c

lu
b

s
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
. 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 s
p
o

n
s
o
rs

h
ip

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 s

o
u
rc

e
d
 f

o
r 

S
p
o
rt

s
 A

w
a
rd

s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 S

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 P
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 g

ra
n
ts

 w
e
re

 l
a
u
n
c
h

e
d
 

fo
r 

in
d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
n

d
 c

lu
b
s
. 

T
h
e
 A

c
ti
v
e
 F

o
r 

L
if
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

w
a
s
 

g
ra

n
te

d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 d

e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o

n
. 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 w

o
rk

, 
T

A
K

E
P

A
R

T
 a

n
d
 s

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 
d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.5

.6
.1

 :
 T

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 c

lu
b
s
 a

n
d
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
. 

J
a
n
 S

u
th

e
rl
a
n

d
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

135



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

�
��


�
�
��


�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
	

�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	�


�
�
�

	

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
c
tu

a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 

%
 

 6
1

.2
0

 
 4

5
.2

0
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

R
e

s
u

lt
 f

ro
m

 A
c
ti
v
e

 P
e

o
p

le
 S

u
rv

e
y
 2

 (
s
u

rv
e

y
s
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

A
p

ri
l-

O
c
to

b
e

r 
0

8
),

 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 &
 H

o
v
e

 h
a

s
 a

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
6

1
.2

%
, 

th
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

le
v
e

l 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 o

u
ts

id
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 2
4

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
s
e

le
c
te

d
 N

I 
1

1
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 L

A
A

's
. 

A
s
 t

h
is

 w
a
s
 t

h
e

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 y
e

a
r 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
4

5
.2

%
 r

e
fe

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
re

s
u

lt
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
. 

 
 S

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

a
s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 d
a

ta
, 

s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 d
a

ta
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
le

a
s
e

d
 

to
 g

iv
e

 a
 s

e
n

s
e

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 -

 t
h

is
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 a

s
 i
t 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 r
e

lia
b

le
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
. 

It
 c

a
n

 b
e

 n
o

te
d

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 

th
a

t 
re

s
u

lt
s
 a

p
p

e
a

r 
to

 b
e

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 l
e

v
e

l.
  

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 
e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

(1
0

/1
1

) 
w

ill
 b

e
 6

4
.2

%
. 

N
I0

1
1

 -
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 A

rt
s

 

4
.6

.1
 :

 F
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 D

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 F
e
s
ti

v
a
l 

(B
D

F
L

) 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

136



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.6

.1
 :

 F
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
 D

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 F
e
s
ti

v
a
l 

(B
D

F
L

) 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
a
u
la

 M
u
rr

a
y
 a

tt
e
n
d
s
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 B

F
D

L
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 p

lu
s
 

m
o
n
th

ly
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

h
ie

f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
. 

 D
o
n
n
a
 C

lo
s
e
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 a

n
 a

d
v
is

o
ry

 r
o
le

 o
n
 o

u
td

o
o
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

it
y
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

th
e
 f

re
e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 F

e
s
ti
v
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 f

e
s
ti
v
a
l 
in

 t
w

o
 c

o
n
s
o
rt

ia
 W

it
h
o
u
t 
W

a
lls

 a
n
d
 

Z
E

P
A

. 
 T

h
e
 n

e
w

 P
I 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 Q

4
 o

f 
0
9
/1

0
. 

 
 A

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 a

u
d
ie

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

re
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 i
n
 M

a
y
 0

9
 w

a
s
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t

o
 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

h
e
 B

D
F

L
 m

a
k
e
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

in
g
 N

I 
1
1
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.6

.1
.1

 :
 •

 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
b
o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

• 
C

lo
s
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

• 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 n
e

w
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 P

I 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 N

I 
1
1
 

D
o
n
n
a
 C

lo
s
e
 

4
.6

.2
 :

 P
ro

v
id

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 g
ro

u
p

s
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 f

e
s
ti

v
a
ls

 a
n

d
 f

u
n

 d
a
y
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e
d

 a
rt

s
 a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

3
 r

o
u
n
d
s
 o

f 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
g
ra

n
ts

 n
o

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 G

ra
n
ts

 T
e
a
m

. 
 T

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

d
e
a
d
lin

e
 w

a
s
 e

a
rl

y
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

w
it
h
 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 d
u
e
 f

o
r 

N
o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 

g
iv

e
n
 f

o
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 N

I 
1
1
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 
 A

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

1
4
 a

rt
s
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 a

rt
s
 o

rg
a
n
s
ia

ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 A

rt
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 G

ra
n
ts

 f
o
r 

S
m

a
lle

r 
O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

1
4
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f

e
s
ti
v
a
ls

 w
e
re

 
a

w
a
rd

e
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 F

e
s
ti
v
a
ls

 F
u
n
d
 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.6

.2
.1

 :
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

- 
G

ra
n
t 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 
D

o
n
n
a
 C

lo
s
e
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

137



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.6

.3
 :

 P
ro

v
id

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 K
e
y
 3

 y
e
a
r 

fu
n

d
e
d

 a
rt

s
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
, 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
g

ra
n

t 
a
id

e
d

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
o

s
e
 i
n

 r
e
c
e
ip

t 
o

f 
A

rt
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 A
w

a
rd

s
, 
a
rt

s
 f

e
s
ti

v
a
ls

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

W
e
 a

re
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

2
 o

f 
th

e
 3

 y
e
a
r 

fu
n
d
in

g
 c

y
c
le

 w
it
h
 8

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
's

 s
h

a
ri
n
g
 £

1
5
0
,0

0
0
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

. 
T

h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 a

p
p
ra

is
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 a

t 
th

e
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

c
a
b
ie

n
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 

O
ff

ic
e
r'
s
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
d
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

 o
f 

2
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
's

 e
a
c
h
 y

e
a

r.
 T

h
e
 n

e
w

 P
I 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 
b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 Q

4
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

ro
u
n
d
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
's

' 
fe

s
ti
v
a
ls

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 l
e
a

d
in

g
 o

n
 a

 F
e
s
ti
v
a
ls

 C
lu

s
te

rs
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 S

E
E

D
A

 a
n
d
 A

C
E

. 
 T

h
is

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 o
n
 o

u
r 

S
p
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 A

u
tu

m
n
 F

e
s
ti
v
a
l 
C

lu
s
te

rs
 r

a
is

in
g
 

th
e
ir
 p

ro
fi
le

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 a
n
d
 i
n
te

rn
a
ti
o

n
a
lly

. 
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

3
 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.6

.3
.1

 :
 G

ra
n
t 

a
p
p
ra

is
a

ls
 &

 a
n
n
u
a
l 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 v

is
it
s
. 

 N
e

w
 P

I 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
to

 b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

D
o
n
n
a
 C

lo
s
e
 

4
.6

.4
 :

 T
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i

n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s

s
 t

o
 a

rt
s
 a

c
ti

v
it

y
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e
 W

h
it

e
 N

ig
ts

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
 (

fr
e
e
 e

n
tr

y
 

a
n

d
 e

n
te

rt
a
in

m
e
n

t 
a
t 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 M
u

s
e
u

m
 a

n
d

 R
o

y
a
l 

P
a
v
il

li
o

n
 u

n
ti

l 
m

id
n

ig
h

t 
o

n
c
e
 a

 y
e
a
r)

 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

138



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.6

.4
 :

 T
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i

n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s

s
 t

o
 a

rt
s
 a

c
ti

v
it

y
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e
 W

h
it

e
 N

ig
ts

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
 (

fr
e
e
 e

n
tr

y
 

a
n

d
 e

n
te

rt
a
in

m
e
n

t 
a
t 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 M
u

s
e
u

m
 a

n
d

 R
o

y
a
l 

P
a
v
il

li
o

n
 u

n
ti

l 
m

id
n

ig
h

t 
o

n
c
e
 a

 y
e
a
r)

 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

F
ir
s
t 
W

h
it
e
 N

ig
h
t 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 o

n
 2

5
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
. 

 
A

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 1

5
,0

0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
tt

e
n
d

e
d
 t

h
e
 f

re
e
 e

v
e

n
ts

 i
n
 1

3
 

v
e

n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

u
td

o
o
rs

. 
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 w
id

e
 a

g
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 f

ro
m

 1
 t
o
 

7
0
. 

4
5
0
0
0
 a

tt
e
n
d

e
d
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 L

ib
ra

ry
, 

2
5

9
2
 t

h
e
 M

u
s
e

u
m

 
a
n
d
 1

2
3

2
 a

t 
th

e
 P

a
v
ili

o
n
. 

 
T

h
e
 f

e
s
ti
v
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 b

e
in

g
 a

w
a

rd
e

d
 b

e
a
c
o
n
 s

ta
tu

s
 

fo
r 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

ig
h
t 

ti
m

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
. 

S
e
c
o
n
d
 W

h
it
e
 N

ig
h
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 o

n
 2

4
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

w
it
h
 t

w
ic

e
 a

s
 m

a
n
y
 v

e
n

u
e
s
 a

n
d
 e

v
e

n
ts

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

n
d
 

c
o
llb

a
o
ra

ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 4

 o
th

e
r 

a
n
n
u

a
l 
fe

s
ti
v
a
ls

. 
A

 n
e

w
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

s
ta

rn
d
 w

ill
 t

a
rg

e
t 

h
a
n

d
s
-o

n
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 N

I 
1
1
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.6

.4
.1

 :
 •

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
W

h
it
e
 N

ig
h
t 

(f
re

e
 e

n
tr

y
 a

n
d
 

e
n
te

rt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

a
t 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 M

u
s
e

u
m

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

R
o
y
a
l 
P

a
v
ili

o
n
 u

n
ti
l 
m

id
n
ig

h
t 

o
n
c
e
 a

 y
e
a
r)

 
•D

e
v
e

lo
p
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

o
 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

 b
ro

a
d
e
r 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

 W
h
it
e
 N

ig
h
t 

D
o
n
n
a
 C

lo
s
e
 

4
.6

.5
 :

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 m
a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 c

u
lt

u
ra

l 
s
e
c
to

r 
- 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 t

h
o

s
e
 t

h
a
t 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
 b

re
a
k
 d

o
w

n
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

tt
e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

T
h
re

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

t 
A

C
E

 w
it
h
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
g

io
n
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 N

I1
1

 t
o
 e

x
p
lo

re
 

s
h
a
re

d
 N

I1
1
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
g
io

n
. 

  
S

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
s
e
m

in
a
r 

to
o
k
 p

a
lc

e
 l
e
d
 b

y
 A

u
d
ie

n
c
e

s
 S

o
u
th

 t
h
a
t 

e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 N

I 
1
1
 t

o
 o

u
r 

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
 W

e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h
 S

u
s
s
e

x
 A

rt
s
 M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

a
im

e
d
 a

t 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 e

n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

n
e

w
 a

u
d

ie
n
c
e
s
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 

th
e
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
s
e
c
to

r.
 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.6

.5
.1

 :
 •

 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
A

u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

• 
A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
A

C
E

 N
I1

1
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

• 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 P

I 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 A

C
E

, 
G

O
S

E
 a

n
d
 A

M
H

 
• 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

‘s
o
ft

’ 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

D
o
n
n
a
 C

lo
s
e
 

4
.6

.6
 :

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 d
e
li

v
e
r 

a
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
to

ry
 p

u
b

li
c
 a

rt
s
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il

s
 P

e
rc

e
n

t 
fo

r 
A

rt
 P

o
li

c
y
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

139



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.6

.6
 :

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 d
e
li

v
e
r 

a
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
to

ry
 p

u
b

li
c
 a

rt
s
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il

s
 P

e
rc

e
n

t 
fo

r 
A

rt
 P

o
li

c
y
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
a
n
k
h
u
rs

t 
A

v
 P

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h

y
 P

ro
je

c
t 

–
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 

w
it
h
 1

0
0
 r

e
s
id

e
tn

s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
. 

H
o
lli

n
g
b

u
ry

 I
n
fa

n
t 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
&

 D
o

w
n
s
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o

o
l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 -
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 /

 J
u
ly

 2
0
0

9
. 

T
h
e
 c

e
le

b
ra

ti
o

n
s
 e

v
e
n
t 

a
tt

ra
c
te

d
 2

0
0
 f

a
m

ily
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
M

y
th

 o
f 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 -

 V
e
ry

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p
u
b
lic

 a
rt

 p
ro

je
c
t 

le
d
 b

y
 

U
s
e
fu

l 
A

rt
s
 a

n
d
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
n
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
o

w
 a

rt
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
rs

. 
 5

0
0
 

p
e
o
p

le
 e

n
te

re
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

 o
f 

6
0
0
 a

u
d
ie

n
c
e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
ls

o
 h

a
d
 2

0
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
 2

 d
a
y
 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
. 

A
d
d
ti
o
n

a
l 
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 w

e
re

 r
u
n
 a

t 
O

a
s
is

 a
n
d
 

R
e
c
o

v
e
ry

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.6

.6
.1

 :
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
to

ry
 p

u
b

lic
 a

rt
s
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 (
5
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

) 
D

o
n
n
a
 C

lo
s
e
 

4
.6

.7
 :

 C
o

ll
a
b

o
ra

ti
n

g
 o

n
 j
o

in
t 

a
g

e
n

d
a
s
 w

it
h

 c
o

ll
e
a
g

u
e
s
 i

n
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
c
to

rs
 t

o
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
rt

s
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

o
s
e
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e
 J

o
u

rn
e
y
 O

n
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 D

ru
g

s
 a

n
d

 A
lc

o
h

o
l 

A
c
ti

o
n

 T
e
a
m

 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

D
e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
 a

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 
W

h
it
e
 N

ig
h
t 

w
it
h
 C

re
a
ti
v
e
 F

u
tu

re
 t

o
 

e
n
g
a

g
e
 w

it
h
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
rg

in
a
lis

e
d
 a

rt
is

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 

y
e

a
r 

ru
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 o

u
r 

s
is

te
r 

fe
s
ti
v
a
l 
in

 
F

ra
n
c
e
 

W
h
it
e
 N

ig
h
t 

a
ls

o
 h

a
s
 j
o
in

t 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 w

it
h

 c
o
lle

a
g

u
e
s
 i
n
 

ro
a
d
 s

a
fe

ty
, 

s
a
fe

ty
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

.  
C

a
r 

F
re

e
 D

a
y
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 b

ro
a
d

e
n
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n

ts
 (

S
e
p
t 

0
9
) 

U
s
e
fu

l 
A

rt
s
 (

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e

r 
le

d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
) 

M
y
th

 o
f 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 

R
o
a
d
 

n
e

w
 e

v
e
n
t 

c
a
lle

d
 T

h
e
 B

o
o
k
 a

n
d
 T

h
e
 R

o
s
e
 l
e

d
 b

y
 c

o
lle

a
g

u
e
s
 i
n
 

P
o
lic

y
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

0
9
 

A
q
u
a
 f

e
s
ti
v
a
l 
p
la

n
n
e
d
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h
 Y

M
C

A
  
fo

r 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
0
 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.6

.7
.1

 :
 I

n
p
u
t 

in
to

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 

4
 e

v
e
n
ts

 a
n
n

u
a
lly

 (
 

2
0
0
8
: 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 f

e
s
ti
v
a
l,
 C

a
r 

F
re

e
 D

a
y
, 
W

h
it
e
 

N
ig

h
t)

 

D
o
n
n
a
 C

lo
s
e
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

140



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

�
��


�
�
��


�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
	

�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	�


�
�
�

	

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
c
tu

a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 

%
 

 9
2

.8
5

 
 9

3
.0

0
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
is

 l
o

c
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 j
u

d
g

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
ta

rg
e

ts
 

s
e

le
c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

A
A

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 p

la
n

 (
s
e

e
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
d

e
ta

ils
).

  
 B

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 %
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 r

a
te

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 s

e
t,

 
L

ib
ra

ri
e

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 9

3
%

 o
f 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 s

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
8

-0
9

 -
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

s
e

t 
a

s
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
0

9
/1

0
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 
A

 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

t 
m

id
 y

e
a

r 
is

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

o
n

-t
ra

c
k
 o

r 
ju

d
g

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 o
n

 t
ra

c
k
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
(g

re
e

n
 a

n
d

 
a

m
b

e
r)

. 

L
 2

1
 -

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 l
o

c
a

l 
li
b

ra
ri

e
s

 

4
.7

.1
 :

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 –

 v
is

it
s
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 Q

2
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
: 

T
o
ta

l 
v
is

it
s
 t
h
is

 y
e

a
r 

a
re

 
9
4
3
,3

7
5
, 

w
h

ic
h
 m

e
a
n
s
 w

e
 a

re
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

re
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
.8

 m
ill

io
n

 v
is

it
s
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.7

.1
.1

 :
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 1

.8
3
6
 m

ill
io

n
 v

is
it
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
-1

0
 

S
a
lly

 M
c
M

a
h
o
n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 Q

2
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
: 

6
7
2
,9

6
8
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s

o
 f

a
r,

 s
o
 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 u

n
d

e
r 

ta
rg

e
t.

  
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
lu

ll 
in

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

h
o
lid

a
y
s
, 

a
n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 u

s
u

a
lly

 p
ic

k
 u

p
 o

n
c
e
 t

h
e
 

n
e

w
 a

c
a
d

e
m

ic
 t

e
rm

 s
ta

rt
s
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r/

O
c
to

b
e
r,

 s
o
 t

h
e
 g

a
p
 

m
a
y
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a

s
t 

6
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.7

.1
.2

 :
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 1

.4
7
 m

ill
io

n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
-1

0
 

S
a
lly

 M
c
M

a
h
o
n
 

4
.7

.2
 :

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s

 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 l

e
a
rn

in
g

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

fr
e
e
 I

C
T

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 i

n
 p

u
b

li
c
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

141



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.7

.2
 :

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s

 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 l

e
a
rn

in
g

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

fr
e
e
 I

C
T

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 i

n
 p

u
b

li
c
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 Q

1
, 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
: 

6
2
4
,3

6
7
 v

ir
tu

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 t

o
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u

lt
 i
n
 a

n
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

fi
g
u
re

 o
f 

2
.5

 m
ill

io
n
. 

 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
is

 i
s
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 s

e
t 

ta
rg

e
t,

 B
H

C
C

 h
a
s
 t

h
e
 4

th
 

h
ig

h
e
s
t 

v
is

tu
a
l 
v
is

it
s
 o

f 
a
n

y
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
 (

o
n
ly

 
N

o
rf

o
lk

, 
K

e
n
t,
 E

s
s
e
x
 a

n
d
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 s
c
o
re

d
 h

ig
h

e
r)

 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

IP
F

A
 

2
0
0
7
-0

8
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
, 

s
o
 w

e
 a

re
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

w
e
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

h
ig

h
e
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
, 

b
a

s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
is

 
p
ro

je
c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.7

.2
.1

 :
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 2

.7
0
 m

ill
io

n
 v

ir
tu

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 

(w
e

b
s
it
e
 v

is
it
s
) 

in
 2

0
0
9
-1

0
 

S
a
lly

 M
c
M

a
h
o
n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

2
, 
S

e
p
t 

2
0
0
9
: 

 C
u
rr

e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

t 
4
5
%

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r,

 b
u
t 

th
e
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 t

im
e
 i
s
 l
o

w
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
, 

d
u
e
 t

o
 p

e
a
k
s
 a

n
d
 t

ro
u
g

h
s
 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.7

.2
.2

 :
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
ta

k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 I
C

T
 t

im
e
 i
n
 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 t

o
 5

0
%

 
S

a
lly

 M
c
M

a
h
o
n
 

4
.7

.3
 :

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 r

a
n

g
e
 a

n
d

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

n
e
w

 i
te

m
s
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 s

to
c
k
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 Q

2
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
: 

 2
2
,6

7
6
 i
te

m
s
 b

o
u
g
h
t 

fo
r 

s
to

c
k
 s

o
 f

a
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r.

  
F

e
w

e
r 

b
o
o
k
s
 a

re
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

s
u
m

m
e
r,

 w
it
h
 a

 b
o
o
s
t 

in
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 a

u
tu

m
n
 p

e
ri
o
d
, 

s
o
 

w
e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 

o
u
r 

s
to

c
k
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 3

rd
 q

u
a
rt

e
r.

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.7

.3
.1

 :
 P

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 5

5
,1

1
6
 n

e
w

 i
te

m
s
 f

o
r 

s
to

c
k
 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

S
a
lly

 M
c
M

a
h
o
n
 

4
.7

.4
 :

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

n
e
w

 l
ib

ra
ry

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
d

d
e
d

 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 Q

2
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
: 

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

to
ta

l 
o
f 

n
e

w
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

is
 9

,7
8
9
. 

 W
e
 a

re
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

o
f 

re
a
c
h
in

g
 t

h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

2
0
,0

0
0
 f

o
r 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 w

e
 g

e
t 
m

o
re

 n
e
w

 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

u
tu

m
n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

s
ta

rt
in

g
 

in
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.7

.4
.1

 :
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 2

0
,4

0
0
 n

e
w

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

S
a
lly

 M
c
M

a
h
o
n
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

142



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.7

.5
 :

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

n
g

 i
n

 l
ib

ra
ry

 r
u

n
 a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 Q

2
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
: 

1
8
,5

6
6
 p

a
rt

ip
a
n
ts

 i
n
 L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 

e
v
e
n
ts

 s
o
 f

a
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r.

  
R

e
g
u
la

r 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 H

o
m

e
w

o
rk

 
c
lu

b
s
 a

n
d
 B

a
b

y
 B

o
o
g
ie

 c
e
a
s
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r,

 s
o
 w

e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 a

re
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 l
e
v
e

ls
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.7

.5
.1

 :
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
8
,0

0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
a
k
in

g
 

p
a
rt

 i
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

S
a
lly

 M
c
M

a
h
o
n
 

4
.7

.6
 :

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 Q

2
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
: 

 T
h
is

 s
u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

e
v
e
ry

 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

, 
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 j
u
s
t 

h
a
p
p
e
n
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 w

e
e
k
s
 i
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r.

  
W

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.7

.6
.1

 :
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 9

4
%

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 w
it
h
 

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

ro
m

 C
IP

F
A

 s
u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
 

lib
ra

ry
 u

s
e
rs

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 

S
a
lly

 M
c
M

a
h
o
n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 Q

2
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
: 

T
h
is

 s
u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

e
v
e
ry

 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

, 
a
n
d
 o

u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

s
u
rv

e
y
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 2

0
0
7
 i
s
 9

1
%

. 
 W

e
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 t

h
e

 c
o
u
n
tr

y
. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.7

.6
.2

 :
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 9

0
%

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 w
it
h
 

lib
ra

ri
e
s
 -

 C
h
ild

re
n
 

S
a
lly

 M
c
M

a
h
o
n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 Q

2
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
: 

T
h
is

 s
u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

e
v
e
ry

 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

, 
a
n
d
 o

u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

s
u
rv

e
y
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 2

0
0
8
 i
s
 7

7
%

. 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.7

.6
.3

 :
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 7

7
%

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 w
it
h
 

c
o
m

p
u
te

r 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 E

-P
lu

s
 C

IP
F

A
 S

u
rv

e
y
 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
 

S
a
lly

 M
c
M

a
h
o
n
 

4
.7

.7
 :

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 l

e
a
rn

in
g

 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

143



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.7

.7
 :

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 l

e
a
rn

in
g

 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 Q

2
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
: 

B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

p
o

p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

fi
g
u
re

 f
o
r 

b
a
b
ie

s
 o

f 
3
0
8
8
: 

S
ta

g
e
 1

 (
0
-1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

- 
1
0
2
%

 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 (
1
8
-3

0
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

- 
7
8
%

 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 

S
ta

g
e
 3

 (
3
6
-4

8
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

- 
1
0
2
%

 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 

A
ll 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 o

n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.7

.7
.1

 :
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
B

o
o
k
s
ta

rt
 p

a
c
k
s
 f

o
r 

th
o
s
e
 a

g
e
d
 1

-3
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

s
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

S
a
lly

 M
c
M

a
h
o
n
 

T
h
e
 S

u
m

m
e
r 

R
e
a
d
in

g
 G

a
m

e
 t
o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

h
o
lid

a
y
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

fo
rm

 3
7
%

 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

to
 3

9
%

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

  
W

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 a

 
n
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 e

x
c
e
rc

is
e
 w

it
h
 o

n
e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

lo
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 g

a
m

e
 o

n
 

c
h
ild

re
n
's

 r
e
a
d

in
g
. 

 W
e
 w

ill
 a

d
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

is
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

th
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
h

e
n
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
is

 l
a
te

r 
in

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.7

.7
.2

 :
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 S

u
m

m
e
r 

R
e
a
d
in

g
 C

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t

o
 

4
0
%

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
. 

S
a
lly

 M
c
M

a
h
o
n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 Q

2
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
: 

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
ta

l 
fo

r 
A

p
ri
l 
to

 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

is
 5

0
2
 c

h
ild

re
n
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 d

o
w

n
 o

n
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r,

 
h
o

w
e

v
e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 t
h
e
 H

o
m

e
w

o
rk

 C
lu

b
s
 f

in
is

h
e
d
 e

a
rl

y
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
la

s
t 
te

rm
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 o

n
ly

 n
o

w
 g

e
tt

in
g
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.7

.7
.3

 :
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

a
tt

e
n
d
in

g
 H

o
m

e
w

o
rk

 C
lu

b
s
 t

o
 2

,8
0
0
 i
n
 2

0
0

9
-1

0
 

S
a
lly

 M
c
M

a
h
o
n
 

4
.7

.8
 :

 P
ro

v
id

e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

h
e
a
lt

h
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 i

n
 l

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

 T
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

  
W

e
 a

re
 a

w
a

it
in

g
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
fr

o
m

 o
u
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
M

a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.7

.8
.1

 :
 E

x
p
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 B

o
o
k
s
 o

n
 P

re
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 

S
a
lly

 M
c
M

a
h
o
n
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

144



B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

�
��


�
�
��


�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
	

�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	�


�
�
�

	

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
c
tu

a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 

N
o

. 
 1

7
,8

8
0

.0
0

 
 1

5
,8

6
2

.9
8

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
1

5
,8

6
3

 u
p

 u
n

ti
l 
S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

0
9

 i
s
 a

 p
ro

fi
le

d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
 t

a
k
e

 i
n

to
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
s
e

a
s
o

n
a
l 
fl
u
c
tu

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
d

a
ta

 (
i.
e

. 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
h

o
lid

a
y
s
 e

tc
).

 I
t 

is
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 u
p

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 
fi
g

u
re

 o
f 

4
5

, 
3

2
3

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 u
p

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

is
 y

e
a

r.
  

 In
 0

8
/0

9
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 3

2
,7

0
0

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 w

a
s
 4

0
,0

2
3

 s
o

 w
e

ll 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
ta

rg
e

t.
 

L
 2

2
 -

 N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
c

h
o

o
l 
a

g
e

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 i
n

 o
rg

a
n

is
e

d
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
v

is
it

s
 t

o
 m

u
s

e
u

m
s

 

4
.8

.1
 :

 D
e
li

v
e
r 

th
e
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 v

is
it

s
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
a
s
s
e
m

b
li

e
s
 a

n
d

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
o

u
tr

e
a
c
h

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
 1

8
9

8
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
 w

a
s
 

1
8
7
0
).

  
N

e
w

 p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
m

a
te

ri
a
l 
d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.8

.1
.1

 :
 R

e
a
c
h
 8

5
0
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

u
t 

o
f 

c
it
y
) 

A
b
ig

a
il 

T
h
o
m

a
s
 

8
9
8
 u

p
 t

o
 S

e
p
t 

0
9
 s

o
 s

h
o
rt

 o
f 

ta
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 p

e
ri
o
d
 (

1
6
8
8
).

 
M

a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.8

.1
.2

 :
 V

is
it
s
 b

y
 3

4
8
0
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 

1
4
-1

8
 i
n
 f

o
rm

a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

A
b
ig

a
il 

T
h
o
m

a
s
 

4
.8

.2
 :

 E
n

g
a
g

e
 v

e
ry

 y
o

u
n

g
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 b
y
 d

e
li
v
e
ri

n
g

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 y

e
a
rs

 (
p

re
-s

c
h

o
o

l)
 a

g
e
 g

ro
u

p
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

145



 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e
 2

0
2

0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

4
.8

.2
 :

 E
n

g
a
g

e
 v

e
ry

 y
o

u
n

g
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 b
y
 d

e
li
v
e
ri

n
g

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 y

e
a
rs

 (
p

re
-s

c
h

o
o

l)
 a

g
e
 g

ro
u

p
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

1
,6

5
6
 c

h
ild

re
n
 r

e
a
c
h

e
d
 u

p
 t

o
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

  
S

h
o
rt

 o
f 

ta
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 p

e
ri
o
d
 b

u
t 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 w

o
rk

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 f

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 i
n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

c
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
M

u
s
e

u
m

 s
it
e
s
, 

in
 

lib
ra

ri
e
s
 &

 C
h
ild

re
n
's

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 p

ilo
t 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

 a
t 

M
o
u
le

s
c
o
m

b
e
 C

h
ild

re
n

's
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c

e
n
tr

e
 i
n
 

H
o
v
e
 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.8

.2
.1

 :
 R

e
a
c
h
 6

1
4
6
 c

h
ild

re
n
 b

y
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 e

a
rl

y
 

y
e

a
rs

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 -

 i
n
c
s
 l
o

a
n
 b

o
x
e
s
, 

p
re

s
c
h
o

o
l 
&

 
o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 

A
b
ig

a
il 

T
h
o
m

a
s
 

4
.8

.3
 :

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
e
a
c
h

e
rs

 t
o

 u
s
e
 m

u
s
e
u

m
s
 a

n
d

 m
u

s
e
u

m
 o

b
je

c
ts

 i
n

 t
e
a
c
h

in
g

. 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

1
 c

a
n
c
e
lle

d
 C

P
D

 e
v
e
n
t 

b
u
t 

h
ig

h
ly

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
e
v
e
n
t 

h
e
ld

 i
n
 e

a
rl

y
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

0
9
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 6

5
 t

e
a
c
h
e
rs

 
M

a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.8

.3
.1

 :
 T

ra
in

 3
6
 t

e
a
c
h

e
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
n
ti
n

u
in

g
 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

(C
P

D
) 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 

A
b
ig

a
il 

T
h
o
m

a
s
 

E
x
c
e
e

d
e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 (

3
6
1
7
 c

h
ild

re
n
) 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.8

.3
.2

 :
 L

o
a
n
 b

o
x
e
s
 o

f 
m

u
s
e
u
m

 o
b
je

c
ts

 
re

a
c
h
in

g
 6

5
0
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

A
b
ig

a
il 

T
h
o
m

a
s
 

4
.8

.4
 :

 W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 L
E

A
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 l
in

k
 u

p
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 &
 f

re
e
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 f

o
r 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 e
x
h

ib
it

io
n

s
 (

fu
n

d
e
d

 
e
x
te

rn
a
ll

y
) 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
y
 W

h
e
n

 
D

O
T

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

3
2
5
 r

e
a
c
h

e
d
. 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 n

o
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 b

u
t 

w
e
 a

re
 e

x
p
e
c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

v
is

it
s
 f

o
r 

0
9
/1

0
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 A

u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

w
o
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
n
 l
in

k
e
d
 

e
x
h
ib

it
io

n
s
 T

h
e
 L

a
n
d
 G

ir
ls

 a
t 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 M

u
s
e

u
m

 &
 W

a
r 

S
to

ri
e
s
 

a
t 

H
o
v
e
 M

u
s
e

u
m

 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.8

.4
.1

 :
 E

n
g
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 1

5
0
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 e

x
h
ib

it
io

n
s
 

A
b
ig

a
il 

T
h
o
m

a
s
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

e
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 v

is
it
s
 i
n
 A

u
tu

m
n
/S

p
ri
n
g
 t

e
rm

s
 

M
a
r/

2
0

1
0
 

4
.8

.4
.2

 :
 5

 n
e

w
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e
 

v
is

it
in

g
 M

u
s
e
u
m

s
 i
.e

. 
w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

v
is

it
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

la
s
t 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

 

A
b
ig

a
il 

T
h
o
m

a
s
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

, 
2

0
0

9
 

146



CULTURE, TOURISM AND 
ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW 
& SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 40 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Business Retention and Inward Investment Strategy 
and Implementation Plan - Update 

Date of Meeting: 23 November 2009 

Report of: Director of Culture and Enterprise 

Contact Officer: Name:  Andy Glover Tel: 29-1093 

 E-mail: andy.glover@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No Forward Plan No.  

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 

 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

  

 
1.1 The Business Retention and Inward Investment (BRII) Strategy and 

Implementation Plan was approved at the Enterprise, Employment and Major 
Projects Cabinet Member meeting on 23rd March.  This Strategy sets out the 
framework for the city council to work with internal and external partners to 
safeguard and develop the economic base of the city; setting out actions to 
support and retain existing businesses and attract new ones to the city. This 
report presents an update on activities carried out in the first 6 months against 
the approved Implementation Plan.  

 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
2.1 The Committee is recommended to consider the content of the report, and  
 
2.2 Request further updates from the Director of Cultural Services on the actions 

contained within the Implementation Plan. 
 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

  

 Background 
 

3.1 The Implementation Plan as contained with the main Business Retention 
and Inward Investment Strategy sets out a number of activities for the 
successful delivery of the Strategy over the short, medium and long term. 
The short term activities cover the first 3 years of the Strategy and following 
on from this the internal Officer Working Group, charged with delivering the 
BRII has prepared a 1 year Action Plan for the first year. 

 
3.2 The Action Plan is broken down into 7 key task areas with discrete actions 

underpinning each main task. This report will identify the main activities that 
have taken place during the first 6 months of the action plan under each key 
task heading. 

147



 
  
1 – Marketing and Communications 
 
3.3 The BRII has been launched to all the identified partners including the 

Economic Partnership, SEEDA, the city’s commercial agents, Business Link 
and has also be launched on the council’s web site. 

 
3.4 A Welcome Pack has been prepared which is in the final stages of 

production which provides information to businesses that are already 
located in the city, businesses that are looking to move within the city and 
businesses considering Brighton & Hove as a business location. The Pack 
has been produced in such a way that it can be collated to meet the specific 
needs of the business enquiry. 

 
 2 – Investor Information 
 
3.5 Research has been carried out to source the most appropriate database for 

information on investor information locally, regionally and nationally and 
after a series of tests of various databases, FDI Markets has been 
purchased and a member of the economic development team has been 
trained on how to use the database. 

 
 3 – Commercial Property 
 
3.6 The current commercial property database which is managed by the 

economic development team in partnership with the commercial agents 
operating in the city has been reviewed and compared against comparator 
authorities. The provider of the database is currently making a number of 
significant changes to the database in line with the findings of the review 
and this will include a more effective monitoring and reporting system 
behind the database which will enable officers to track commercial space 
movement in a more robust manner. These improvements currently being 
tested by the database provider and are due to be launched on the councils 
web site at the end of November. 

 
 4 - Inward Investment 
 
3.7 An Inward Investment Board has been formed as an early action and the 

representation comprises from the city council, the Economic Partnership, 
SEEDA, the two universities, City College and the commercial agents. This 
Board oversees the work of the Officer Working group and acts as 
‘ambassadors’ when required for inward investment enquiries or hosting 
business events. 

 
3.8 Inward investment enquiries previously have been handled in a reactive 

manner and information collated and provided when an enquiry is received. 
A generic report about the city and its benefits as a business location has 
been prepared and commercial property information is included at the end 
of the report to meet the property search requirements. 

 

148



3.9 A sector specific workshop has been held with national, regional and local 
partners with regards to the handling of inward investment focusing on the 
digital media sector.  

 
3.10 A Proposition Offer document for Brighton & Hove will be produced early in 

the new year working with colleagues from the Inward Investment team at 
SEEDA which will be used to promote the city to all of SEEDA’s overseas 
reps. This will enable Brighton & Hove to compete for international inward 
investment along side other locations in the region more effectively. 

 
 5 - Business Retention 
 
3.11 The key sectors for growth in the city were identified in the main BRII 

Strategy and the original action plan identified that the city council would 
work closely with SEEDA and other sector support agencies to carry out a 
co-ordinated approach towards business retention. Currently SEEDA are 
undergoing a review of their programme of sector support with a shift in 
emphasis away from the area based approach towards a sector based 
approach. They have identified the key sectors for the region and the 
majority of these coincide with the identified sectors in Brighton & Hove. 
This new working practice at SEEDA will be in place and operational from 
April 2010. 

 
3.12 At a local level, information is being gained on the key sectors and a 

programme of activities to work with the various sectors in the city is being 
planned. 

 
 6 – Research 
 
3.13 The position of Research Officer has recently been appointed within the 

economic development team. This officer will be able to provide up to date 
information on all aspects of economic development to support the delivery 
of the main Strategy and assist businesses when a request for research 
information is made. 

 
 7 – Events 
 
3.14 A number of events have been attended to promote the BRII and a 

programme of activities for the remainder of the year is being drawn up with 
partners. 

 
 Additional Information 
 
3.15 During the first 6 months the economic development team has been directly 

involved in the handling of 15 business retention and inward investment 
enquiries. To date these have resulted in one business relocation within the 
city and one inward investment into the city. A number of enquiries are still 
live and on-going.   

 
4. CONSULTATION 

  

149



4.1 The Action Plan was prepared by the Officer Working Group and the BRII 
Board were consulted with regards to the actions contained and approved 
this at their first Board meeting. 

 
 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The Implementation Plan has identified a series of actions that are required 

to enable a more structured and proactive approach towards business 
retention and inward investment.  For 2009/10 an allocation of £60,000 has 
been made from the LABGI grant, the amount available to support this work 
in 2010/11 will be considered by Cabinet once the LABGI grant for 2010/11 
is announced. 

  
 Finance Officer Consulted: Anne Silley, Head of Financial Services
 Date: 

 
 Legal Implications: 
  

 
5.2 The recommendations in this report are consistent with the council’s 

economic development and well-being powers and duties and there are no 
adverse implications arising. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted: Bob Bruce Principal Solicitor Date:  
 
 Equalities Implications: 
  

 
5.3 The Strategy and Implementation Plan has not had an Equalities Impact 

Assessment completed at this time but one will be carried out in due 
course. 

 

 Sustainability Implications: 
  

 
5.4 The Strategy and Implementation Plan fully supports sustainable 

development in the city. 

 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
  

 
5.5 It is not considered that there are any direct implications for crime and 

disorder arising from the actions contained within. 
 
 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications: 
  
 
5.6 A risk analysis has been prepared as part of the Implementation Plan 

identifying potential risks and mitigation measures. 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

150



 
5.7 The condition of the economy has a major impact on the city. The Strategy 

has considered the relevant policies, locally, regionally and nationally in 
reaching its conclusions in the Implementation Plan. 

 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):  

  

6.1 Not applicable in this instance 
  

 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

  

7.1 The Business Retention and Inward Strategy and Implementation Plan will 
provide a structured and proactive approach to assisting local businesses 
and attracting new businesses to the city. The current economic climate 
makes this even more important and will provide the city with the tools to be 
able to compete for business growth. 

 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 

Appendices: 
 
1. 1st year Action Plan 
 

 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 

 
1. none 
 
 

 
Background Documents 

 
1. none 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

151



152



Appendix 1 
 

Business Retention and Inward Investment Strategy 
 

1st Year Action Plan 2009/ 10 

Key Task Actions Timescale 

 Q1 
April – 
June 

Q2 
July - 
Sept 

Q3 
Oct- Dec 

Q4 
Jan - Mar 

1 – Identify key partners current marketing 
and communications activities 

    

2 – Identify key publications for inward 
investment activities locally, regionally and 
nationally 

    

3 – Prepare Welcome Pack for Brighton & 
Hove including consultation on content with 
key partners. 
 

    

4 – Launch BRII to commercial agents in the 
city 
 

    

5 – Launch BRII on ED website 
 

    

1 – Marketing and Communications 

6 – Prepare Inward Investment proforma  for 
inward investment enquiries 

    

1 – source relevant databases for information 
on investor information locally, regionally and 
nationally 

    

2 – Purchase investor database and training     

2 – Investor Information 

3 – Liaise with commercial agents to 
establish protocol for tracking investor 
movement in (and out) of the city 

    

1
5
3



4 – establish business enquiry database to 
track level of enquiries being generated 
through the economic development team 
 

    

1Review current commercial property 
database and look at other  inward 
investment commercial databases currently 
operational locally and regionally 

    

2 – set up meeting with current provider to 
determine how the database can be updated 
 

    

3 – look at how the reporting mechanisms 
can be improved to provide relevant 
information to support inward investment 
activities 

    

4 – Update commercial property database in 
line with competitors information 

    

3 – Commercial Property 

5 – Monitor and review quality of database     

1 – Launch BRII to inward investment 
partners 

    

2 – Set up Inward Investment Board     

3 – same as 1.6 above     

4 – set up ‘bank’ of support providers for 
inward investment visits 

    

5 – Provide relevant information when 
requested to inward investment enquiries 

    

6 – facilitate visits when requested for inward 
investment enquiries 

    

4 - Inward Investment 

7 – monitor and follow up on visits     

5 – Business Retention 1 – identify key sectors that require support     

1
5
4



2 – Liaise with IDM from SEEDA for co-
ordinated approach to business retention to 
ensure appropriate businesses / sectors are 
identified for support 

    

3 – Establish appropriate level of officer / 
member involvement for business retention 

    

4 – Develop a programme of Business 
Retention / aftercare visits to key businesses 
/ sectors 

    

4 – Revised – develop a programme of local 
business events to invite a wider attendance 
in partnership with the Brighton & Hove 
Business Forum / Economic Partnership to 
discuss issues around Business Retention 
and aftercare. 

    

5 – Provide on going support from any issues 
raised through programme of visits 

    

1 – working with key stakeholders and 
commercial agents provide supported 
information to developers to assist in bringing 
forward business space to meet business 
needs 

 
   

2 – provide appropriate research information 
when requested to meet business 
requirements 

    

6 – Research 

3 – up date and monitor research information 
on web site 

    

1 – identify potential events taking place in 
the city where BRII would be appropriate to 
take to 

    7 – Events 

2 – attend three events in the city promoting 
the BRII and its activities 

    

8 – Monitoring and Reporting 1 – Define the roles and responsibilities for 
delivering the BRII 

    

1
5
5



2 – Set up monitoring procedures for all 
activities associated with BRII activity 

    

3 – Provide quarterly monitoring information 
based on the key tasks identified in the 
Action Plan 

    

4- Reporting to City Council and Economic 
Partnership on 6 monthly basis 

    

 

1
5
6



Agenda Item 41 
 
Proposed Amended Work Programme for 09-10  
 

23 November 2009 14 December 2009 4th February 2010 1 April 2010 
 

• VisitBrighton Contact 
Centre review 

 

• Brighton Marathon update 
 

 

• Update on Performance 
Indicators 

 

• UK City of Culture 
proposals 

 

• BRII Update 
 

• Work programme update  
 

 

 
 

• Draft budget proposals. 

 

• Presentation by Fred 
Hasson re: digital 
gaming  

 

• Presentation from 
the East Sussex 
Credit Union? 

 

• Sports Facilities – one 
year on 

 
• Open Houses 

 

• Major projects update 
 

• South Downs Park 
update? 

 
New Items: 
 
Update on the Foredown 
Tower (requested by Cllr 
Mel Davis)  
 
Monitoring and funding of 
sports development – 
update/overview 

 

 

• Major projects  update 

 
• Work programme and Ad-hoc 

panel update 
 

• Creative Industries update 
 
New items: 

 
Public Art and planning? 
 
Music venues in the city 

1
5
7



 

1 July 2010 30 September 2010 25 November 2010 3 January 2010 

 
Presentation by the B&H 
Archaeological Society and report 
on what artefacts are in the city? 
 
The city’s approach to tourism ( Cllr 
Steve Harmer-Strange) 
 
 
Update on Museums’ plan and 
renaissance funding (agreed at 2 
July meeting) 

 

   

 
 
 
Other possible items suggested: 
 
Children’s Festival presentation 
 
 
 
 
 

1
5
8



159

Document is Restricted



162


	Agenda
	32 Procedural Business
	33 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	37 VisitBrighton Contact Centre Review
	Contact Centre Review Final

	38 UK City of Culture proposal
	City of Culture Outline Bid - Final Oct 09

	39 Local Area Agreement 09/10 mid year progress
	LAA delivery plans 09_10 mid year_appendix

	40 Business Retention and Inward Investment Strategy
	BRII report action plan cmm report

	41 Work programme
	43 Part two minutes from 7 October 2009

